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Dear Sharcholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), I hereby present to our Sharcholders the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s performance for the year under review achieved
improvement as compared with that of 2017, turning loss to making
a profit.

The Group recorded a profit after taxation of approximately
HK$16.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018, compared
with a loss after taxation of approximately HK$7.5 million for the
previous financial year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group reported total
operating revenue of approximately HK$422.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately 13.1% from the
operating revenue of approximately HK$373.5 million of the
previous year. Profit attributable to equity sharcholders of the
Company was approximately HK$16.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, compared with loss of approximately HK$6.6
million for 2017. The profit for the year was mainly attributable to
profit contributed by Financial Services segment of approximately
HK$21.2 million, increased segment profit attributable to Media
segment of approximately HK$3.8 million with satisfactory
performance achieved for BUS-BODY and BUS-SHELTER, one-off
gain on deregistration of a subsidiary of approximately HK$13.7
million, net off by decrease in net reversal of provision for onerous
contracts of approximately HK$13.4 million and increased overall
operation costs of approximately HK$2.4 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In January 2018, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Target Capital Management Limited (“T'CM”), BTS
Investment Limited, BTY Investment Limited, NanTai Investment
Limited and Shangtai Asset Management Limited (collectively, the
“Subject Companies”). TCM is principally engaged in (i) external
asset management and (ii) provision of investment advisory services
to fund managers and/or general partners of offshore private equity
funds. The Subject Companies are the fund managers or general
partners of several offshore private equity funds.

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018

LETTER FROM THE BOARD

ERMRE

AAEBRRAKREREERARAR (ARE)) RE
MEBAR(AKEDEF(EF)E(EFE))E
AR REERARNEE_E-NFT+TZA=+—
HIEFERFR -

REFRE

AEEREBEFENRAR _T—LFAMNE -

HE-_ZTZ—)\E+-_A=Z+—ALFE ~EEK
BB AT 475 %16,300,0007T * 1 — 18 B B
EBRFIZEIE Y A% 7,500,0007T °

REBEE-ZT—N\F+_A=1+—HIFEE XEH
RIS AE 2 IR A KREE 4) 75 %5422 400,0007T * BEEF LKL
WA %) 78 %373,500,0007C 1 M1 4013.1% c BLEZZ
—N\F+ A=+ BLEFENRRRBREEER
F 54978 #16,300,0000C ' T —ZE—+F A AEELY
7 #6,600,0007C c AFEM AN EZ R HRN AR
75 5 BB Hy 22 K 497 #21,200,0007T * 15 88 53 50 FE {1 &Y
D ER B 4B 3 800,000t (EFBELEH LB
TIREZESNSES)  FHMBATH — AN
Wz 4978 %613,700,000T * R EHREBIES L EE
B [0 7F 58 7 D 4978 5 13,400,0007T K2 FE BE 4% & RR AR 1
HO#9 7 ¥ 2,400,0007T °

KRR

ESTREMBE_ZT-\F+-_A=+—HLF
ERERBRES (ZT—LF BETR) -

E O

RIZE-NF—F FEEEHPWERZEEEER
BRAR ([ZREEEEIE]) * BTS Investment Limited *

BTY Investment Limited * NanTai Investment Limited ;2
Shangtai Asset Management Limited (B IZELED2
HEBTRATLEEHS REEETREER
FOMBEEBTE RAIBIMBRELENES
KRR/ R—REBARBREERRSE - %EA
AIRETHEIMEREESNESLIZL—REBA -



Completion of the aforesaid transaction took place on 14 December
2018, TCM and the Subject Companies have become wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company. Upon completion of the transaction,
the Group has started to engage in financial services business
through TCM and the Subject Companies.

During the year under review, the Group continued to engage in
insurance brokerage business relating to sports (the “Insurance
Brokerage Business”) in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
which included the provision of insurance brokerage service, risk
assessment and advisory services in relation to sport events. With a
view to enlarge our market share in insurance brokerage business in
the PRC, the Group also commenced new insurance brokerage
business in relation to life insurance products in the second half of
2018, which is expected to provide stable source of income to the
Group in the long term.

Since the year ended 31 December 2018, the investment advisory
services business and fund management business, together with the
Insurance Brokerage Business, formed a new business segment of
the Group (the “Financial Services Business”).

During the year under review, the Group continued to develop its
media and advertising business (the “Media Business”) in Hong
Kong. Although notable for increasingly fierce competition, BUS-
BODY achieved satisfactory performance in 2018. For BUS-
SHELTER advertising, the Group has been making new investments
in digital panels as 4-dimension interactive advertising platform at
bus shelters in Hong Kong which was launched during the year
under review to drive the growth of the Media Business.

PROSPECTS

It is expected that the global economy will still be impacted by
trade friction and geopolitical tensions in the coming years. Despite
the economic uncertainty, the Group will support the sustainable
development of the Media Business and look for ways to accelerate
the growth of the Financial Services Business. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to identify other investment opportunities and
explore further opportunities for investments in the Financial
Services Business to broaden its business portfolio and income
stream and maximise returns for its Sharcholders. We are optimistic
that the Financial Services Business will become a key driver of the
Group. Meanwhile, we will cautiously monitor market change and
impose robust control measures to improve cost efficiency and risk
management which will provide a solid foundation for sustainable
growth in the future.
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APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its gratitude to all the staff for
their hard work and dedication and to thank all our shareholders,

clients and suppliers for their continuous support.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

On 14 December 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of
TCM and the Subject Companies, and the Group is licensed to
engage in Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities since
then. The assets under management (“AUM”) of external asset
management (‘EAM”) remain stable at 31 December 2018 and
amounted to approximately HK$5.0 billion, while the AUM of fund
management services amounted to approximately HK$6.9 billion.
During 2018, TCM and the Subject Companies contributed
approximately HK$16.5 million of operating revenue and
approximately HK$1.8 million of operating expenses. The Group is
positive that the new businesses will contribute a stable income
stream in the future. Despite the uncertainties of global economy
brought by trade friction and geopolitical tensions, the Group will
continue to make use of the global network of Sharcholders and
Directors in the PRC and Hong Kong, to expand the customer base
and support continuous development of the EAM and investment
advisory services carried out by the Group.

Meanwhile, as at the date of this annual report, TCM is in the
process of obtaining admission as the Participant of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited to commence its licensed
activities, the Group will spend more resources to develop its
securities business and aiming at broadening its scope of services to
develop synergies by providing integrated financial products and

services.

Driven by the increase in overall awareness of health and wealth
management, insurance industry maintained a fast-growing
momentum in the PRC. The revenue derived from the insurance
brokerage business during 2018 amounted to approximately HK$17
million, represented an increase of approximately HK$16.3 million
from last year, which is in line with the Group’s development plan.
In the second half of the year, the Group commenced new insurance
brokerage business in relation to life insurance products (the “Life
Insurance Brokerage Business”). The Group expected that the Life
Insurance Brokerage Business will provide stable source of income
to the Group in the long term.

MEDIA BUSINESS

The Group continued to engage in BUS-BODY advertising, BUS-
INTERIOR advertising, BUS-SHELTER advcrtising, BILLBOARDS
advertising, and provision of integrated marketing solutions services
in Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Media
Business recorded revenue of approximately HK$380.5 million
(2017: approximately HK$348.4 million).
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BUS-BODY faced fiercer than ever competition in 2018. As agile
and responsive as always, we were able to implement a number of
initiatives and sales packages to tackle the challenges.

Starting from 1 July 2017, the Group has expanded its business to
BUS-SHELTER advertising. BUS-SHELTER can accommodate a
diversity of advertising formats namely Static and Scrolling
Premicre Panel, Mega Panel, 4-Sheet, Shelter Top, Shelter
Domination and Digital Panels. As at 31 December 2018, BUS-
SHELTER ad service offered more than 480 developed bus shelters
for advertising and promotion purposes. In the coming years, the
Group will develop 100 bus shelters each year. In addition, the
Group will continue its endless effort to enhance the cost efficiency
of every aspect of the media operation.

OPERATIONS UNDER CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

On 14 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Company incorporated
in the PRC (“WFOE”) entered into a series of structured contracts
(“Structured Contracts”) with the registered owners of 715 (K
)R BEEEBAERAA] (Ankai (Tianjin) Economic
Information Consulting Limited*) (formerly known as 7l (R
E)ERERA A](Ankai (Tianjin) Holdings Limited*)) (“Ankai”),
which is the direct sole sharcholder of 1t X A B (R 45 40 B IR
X A)(China Sports Insurance Broker Co., Ltd.*) (“CSIB”), which
engages in insurance business relating to sports. As insurance
business in the PRC is subject to restrictions on foreign ownership
under the prevailing laws, regulations and practice in the PRC, the
Structured Contracts allowed the Group to gain control over the
financial and business operations of CSIB in the PRC and the Group
is also entitled to the economic interest and benefits of the
operations, so as to optimise the Group’s business structure. The
financial results of CSIB (including the assets and liabilities and
revenue and profits) have been consolidated into the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group since 14 December
2017.

The information of CSIB and its registered
shareholders under the Structured Contracts

CSIB is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and is
primarily engaged in insurance business relating to sports in the
PRC. The sole registered sharcholder of CSIB is Ankai, which is a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The registered
sharcholder of Ankai are Mr. JIANG Xiaolin (“Mr. Jiang”) (holder
of 99% of the equity interests of Ankai) and Mr. SHI Pengfei (“Mr
Shi”) (holder of 1% of the equity interest of Ankai) (together, the
“Registered Sharcholders”).

*  For identification purposes only
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Summary of the major terms of the Structured
Contracts

The major terms of cach of the Structured Contracts are set out as

follows:

(1) Loan Agreement

The WFOE agreed to provide a loan in the sum of
RMB40,000,000 (i) to Mr. Jiang and Mr. Shi for the
acquisition of the entire equity interests of Ankai; and (ii) to
Ankai to acquire 30% of the equity interest of CSIB so that
upon completion of the two acquisitions, Mr. Jiang and Mr. Shi
shall become the sharcholders of the entire equity interests of
Ankai and Ankai shall become the sole shareholder of CSIB.

Mr. Jiang, Mr. Shi and Ankai shall repay the loan by way of
transferring the equity interests of Ankai and CSIB to the
WFOE or its designated entities when the WFOE could
directly hold all the equity interests of Ankai and CSIB directly
under the prevailing laws of the PRC.

The term of the loan agreement is 10 years from the date of
execution of the loan agreement and shall be extended for
another term of 10 years automatically unless mutually agreed
by both parties. The loan agreement will be terminated when
the respective obligations by each party to the agreement are

fulfilled.

(2) Exclusive Technical Support and Service
Agreement
The WFOE shall provide Ankai and its subsidiaries or
associated companies (including CSIB) exclusive technical
support services, including: (i) research and technical support;
(i) consultancy services; (iii) on-the-job technical training
services; (iv) provision of licence in relation to intellectual
property rights including softwares, trademarks, domain names
and technical secrets; and (v) other services as agreed between
the WFOE and Ankai. For services provided by the WFOE,
Ankai and its subsidiaries or associated companies which have
received the services shall pay to the WFOE its net profits
(after deducting all necessary amounts to be reserved as
required by law) as service fees. The WFOE is entitled to
adjust the service fees to be charged.

Furthermore, the WFOE is entitled to (i) make suggestions and
requirements as to the employment of operation and finance
staff of Ankai; (ii) the shareholders of Ankai and Ankai shall
appoint directors and senior management nominated by the
WEFOE as the directors and senior management of Ankai; (iii)
terminate the employment of any senior management and
directorship of any director. The WFOE is granted access to
the financial information of Ankai at any time.
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The term of the exclusive technical support and service
agreement is 10 years from the date of execution of the loan
agreement. The term of the exclusive technical support and
service agreement could be extended at the option of the
WEFOE and there is no limitation on the number of extension
of the term.

(3) Exclusive Call Option Agreement

The Registered Shareholders and Ankai agreed to
unconditionally and irrevocably grant an exclusive right to the
WFOE that insofar as permitted under applicable PRC laws
and regulations, they shall (i) transfer their respective equity
interests in Ankai to the WFOE or its designated entities; or
(ii) transfer all or part of the assets of Ankai at the lowest
consideration as allowed under the laws of the PRC.

In the event that consideration is required to be provided for
such transfer under relevant PRC laws and regulations, such
consideration shall be the minimum as permitted under
applicable PRC laws and regulations, and that insofar as
permitted under applicable PRC laws and regulations, the full
amount of consideration received by or is paid to the registered
shareholders of CSIB, shall be returned to the WFOE or its
designated entities. The registered shareholders of CSIB shall,
upon request from the WFOE at any time, immediately and
unconditionally, transfer their entire equity interests in CSIB to
such representative(s) as nominated by the WFOE.

The exclusive call option agreement takes effect from the date
of execution of the loan agreement and will only be terminated
by the WFOE in writing.

(4) Power of Attorney

The Registered Shareholders have irrevocably authorised an
exclusive authority to the WFOE:

(a) to convene sharcholders meeting, participate in the
shareholders” meeting and to approve shareholders
resolutions of Ankai;

(b) to exercise the sharcholders rights of Ankai including
voting rights, nomination rights and appointment rights;

(c) to file any documents required to be submitted by the
shareholders of Ankai to government authorities;

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018
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(d) to be entitled to the dividend rights, power of sale or
transfer or pledging or disposal of the shares of Ankai held
by its registered holders, and the rights of distribution
upon winding up of Ankai; and

(e) to be entitled to all sharcholders’ right of Ankai.
The power of attorney takes effect from the date of execution

of the loan agreement and will be valid and effective during the
term of the exclusive technical support and service agreement.

(5) Equity Plcdgc Agreement

The Registered Shareholders agreed to pledge the entire equity
interests and additional registered capital of Ankai held and to
be held by the Registered Shareholders to the WFOE, as
security for the obligations under the loan agreement, exclusive
technical support and service agreement, exclusive call option
agreement and the power of attorney (collectively the
“Transaction Documents”). Under the equity pledge
agreement, except with prior written consent of the WFOE,
the Registered Shareholders are prohibited from transferring
any of their equity interests in Ankai, or creating or allowing
any creation of any third party security interests which may
affect the rights and benefits of the WFOE.

The equity pledge agreement takes effect from the date of
execution of the loan agreement and shall be terminated until
the earliest of: (i) fulfilment of all obligations under the
Transaction Documents; (ii) the lapse of the Transaction
Documents; and (iii) termination of the Transaction
Documents.

Risks relating to the Structured Contracts

M

2)

3)

There is no assurance that the Structured Contracts could
comply with future changes in the regulatory requirements in
the PRC and the PRC government may determine that the
Structured Contracts do not comply with applicable PRC laws,
rules, regulations or policies;

The Structured Contracts may not be as effective in providing
control over and entitlement to the economic interests in CSIB
as direct ownership;

Potential conflicts of interest among the WFOE, CSIB and the
registered shareholders of CSIB may exist;

)
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(4) The equity pledge against the equity interest of CSIB under the
equity pledge agreement is subject to successful registration
with the relevant governmental authority to take effect; and

(5) The Structured Contracts may be subject to scrutiny of the
PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be imposed.

Nevertheless, the Company has obtained PRC legal opinion that the
Structured Contracts are not in contravention of the current
regulatory requirements in the PRC. Yet, the Company will
continue to monitor the relevant PRC laws and regulations relevant
to the Structured Contracts and will take necessary actions to
protect the Company’s interest in CSIB. The Company will also
unwind the Structured Contracts when the restrictions on foreign
ownership under the prevailing laws, regulations and practice in the
PRC are removed.

Measures taken to mitigate the risks

The Structured Contracts contain dispute resolution clauses that (i)
provided for arbitration and that arbitrators may award remedies
over the shares or assets of Ankai, injunctive relief or order the
winding up of Ankai; and (ii) provided the courts of competent
jurisdictions with the power to grant interim remedies in support of
the arbitration pending formation of the arbitral tribunal or in
appropriate cases. The courts in Hong Kong, the place of
incorporation of Ankai and CSIB, and the place where Ankai and
CSIB’s principal assets are located have been specified as having
jurisdiction for this purpose.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B

For the year ended 31 December
HE+_A=1+—HILtFE

Full Year Results (HK$’000)

2ERM (BB ) 2018 2017

Revenue A 414,008 348,449

EBITDA KRz HE - HIE - HERBHANEF 31,106 3,427

Profit/ (loss) before taxation BREMBR(FE) 22,812 (1,337)

Net profit/(loss) B/ (&18) BH# 16,257 (7,527)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) BREXRR(FE) GBAL) 1.45 (0.66)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Data (HK$’000)

REMBRRREE (BET )

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 245,737 250,305

Total assets EEZE 952,323 592,272

Total liabilities & F4 & 230,229 97,571

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders B R F&{h # 5 & 8 722,094 486,431

Cash Flow Data (HK$’000)

RenBYE (BB T

Net cash used in operations (30,824) (70,587)

ARREEHNREFE

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,331) 30,294

BeRESZSEY D) EFE

Financial Ratios

B i kb =

Current ratio i Btk & 2.62 5.43

EBITDA margin R&F A8~ BE  fTIERBHANBR X 7.5% 0.9%

Net profit/(loss) margin F&F] /(&) = 3.9% (2.2%)

Debt-to-equity ratio B E &AL & 14.8% 0.1%
2018 3R - EREWMEEBRLF



FINANCIAL REVIEW
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group reported total
operating revenue of approximately HK$422 .4 million,
representing an increase of approximately 13.1% from the
operating revenue of approximately HK$373.5 million of the
previous year. Profit attributable to equity sharcholders of the
Company was approximately HK$16.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, compared with loss of approximately HK$6.6
million for 2017. The profit for the year was mainly attributable to
profit contributed by Financial Services segment of approximately
HK$21.2 million, increased segment profit attributable to Media
segment of approximately HK$3.8 million with satisfactory
performance achieved for BUS-BODY and BUS-SHELTER, one-off
gain on deregistration of a subsidiary of approximately HK$13.7
million, net off by decrease in net reversal of provision for onerous
contracts of approximately HK$13.4 million and increased overall
operation costs of approximately HK$2.4 million. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had bank deposits and cash of
approximately HK$245.7 million (2017: approximately HK$250.3

million).

OPERATING REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group reported total
operating revenue of approximately HK$422 .4 million, of which
approximately HK$33.5 million was from the Financial Services
segment, approximately HK$380.5 million was from Media
segment and approximately HK$8.4 million was from other
revenue and other net income. Revenue generated from the Media
segment was approximately HK$380.5 million in 2018 compared
with approximately HK$348.4 million in 2017, representing
approximately 9.2% increase mainly resulting from BUS-BODY and
BUS-SHELTER. Revenue generated from Financial Services
segment was approximately HK$33.5 million in 2018 representing
revenue from acquisition of TCM and the Subject Companies after
14 December 2018, and brokerage income generated from

insurance brokerage services in the PRC during the year.
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OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group’s operating expenses increased by approximately
HK$24.6 million, from approximatcly HK$374.8 million in 2017
to approximately HK$399.4 million in 2018 as a result of the
increase in cost of production and services of approximately
HK$7.7 million, the increase in staff expenditures of approximately
HK$23.2 million, the increase in depreciation and amortisation of
approximately HK$3.3 million, the decrease in net reversal of
provision for onerous contracts of approximately HK$13.4 million
and general increase in other operating expenses of approximately
HK$7.8 million, net off by the increase in net reversal of accounts
and other receivables of approximately HK$6.6 million, one-off
gain on deregistration of a subsidiary of approximately HK$13.7
million and the decrease in royalty, licence and management fees by

approximately HK$10.5 million.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2018. In the event that the Group engages in any
plan for material investments or capital assets, the Company will
make announcement(s) and comply with relevant rules under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as and when appropriate.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$Nil).

CASH FLOW

In 2018, the cash used in the operations of the Group was
approximately HK$30.8 million (2017: approximately HK$70.6
million). Payment for capital expenditure in 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$36.9 million (2017: approximately HK$7.2
million). The consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is set out on pages 100 to 101 of this
Annual Report.

KEEH

AEBKEERAR T —EFHLB374,800,000
T3 0049 75 #524,600,0000C E —F — NF B
399,400,0007T * J3 A A B I AR 7% B A 3 00 49 8 1
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[B] S5 58 U3 > #4975 15 13,400,000 & B (&2 FI 2 E 1B
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1, FE U2 B 51 J8 (20 )5 BR300 49 78 #56,600,0007T © 7E $8
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
On 13 April 2018, for the purposes of broadening the sharcholder

base and satisfy the following genuine business needs of the Group
in the acquisition of TCM and the Subject Companies and the
development of the Media Business, the Company entered into a
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent
(the “Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the Placing Agent
conditionally agreed to place as the Company’s placing agent on a
best effort basis of up to 187,500,000 new shares (the “Placing
Shares”) to not less than six placees who are professional,
institutional and other investors selected and procured by or on
behalf of the Placing Agent at the placing price of HK$1.44 per
share (the “Placing”). As all the conditions of the Placing have been
fulfilled, completion of the Placing Agreement took place on 24
April 2018, and 187,500,000 Placing Shares were allotted and
issued to not less than six placees at the placing price of HK$1.44
per Placing Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of the

Placing Agreement. The aggregate nominal value of all Placing

Shares amounts to HK$18,750,000. The market price of the Placing

Shares was HK$1.65 at the date of the Placing Agreement and the
net issue price per Placing Share (after deduction of the Placing

commission and other related expenses) was approximately
HKs$1.43.

The gross proceeds from the Placing were HK$270.0 million, and
the net proceeds, after deducting the placing commission,
professional fees and all related expenses which were borne by the

Company, from the Placing was approximately HK$269.6 million.
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The net proceeds from the Placing of approximately HK$269.6
million are intended to be used and the actual use of the net

proceeds as at 31 December 2018 are respectively as follows:

Intended use of the net proceeds

FERAFENRERE

(i) approximately HK$220.0 million for redemption of the
promissory notes in the principal amount of HK$220.0 million
to be issued by the Group for the acquisition of TCM and the
Subject Companies;

#075 #220,000,000 RIEBE M A S E B WIEREEEEE N %
SN G BEATH A £ 5878 #5220,000,0007T H A H R AR

(ii) approximately HK$10.0 million for investment in digital panels
as 4-dimension interactive advertising platform at bus shelters
in Hong Kong; and
#0178 %10,000,0007C FR 1EIR B PN & B Eiiﬁﬁiﬁ)“"iﬁ% HER
EHEETIRETNMAEHESTE K

(iii) approximately HK$39.6 million for general Working capital
purposes including the payment of the staff costs, the royalty,

licence and management fees and other administrative expenses.

#)78%39 600,000 AE—REEES  BRINEINA &
FE BFHFENEEEAREMITRAS

fic &5 25 18 BT 15 3008 F 58 4978 15269,600,0007T B 5t 7F A
BRR-ZE-NFE+_A=+t—BHNMEREFE
MEBRRA®DIWT :

Actual use of the net proceeds

FERBFENERAR

has fully been utilised as intended as at 31 December
2018.
RZE-—NE+ZA=+—HERBTRAETIEH
}EH °

/1

has fully been utilised as intended as at 31 December
2018.
RZZE-—N\F+ZA=+—HBELRBRERZETHH
}EH °

has fully been utilised as intended as at 31 December
2018.
RZZE—NF+-_A=+—HELRBRTERARTHH
ﬁ °

Redemption of promissory notes

As stated in the announcement and circular of the Company dated
23 January 2018 and 28 February 2018 respectively, the Group has
entered into a sale and purchase agreement in respect of acquiring
TCM and the Subject Companies which are engaged in external
asset management and investment advisory businesses. The
proposed acquisition was approved by the then independent
sharcholders at the special general meeting of the Company held on
16 March 2018. The consideration of the proposed acquisition is
HK$270.0 million of which HK$50.0 million has been settled in
cash. It was originally contemplated that the balance of the
consideration of the acquisition in the sum of HK$220.0 million
will be settled by way of issue of promissory notes bearing interest
of 3% per annum repayable on the date falling two years after the

date of issue.

Completion of the proposed acquisition took place on 14 December
2018 and the remaining balance of the consideration in the sum of
HK$220.0 million has been settled by way of issue of promissory
notes at completion, which all the aforesaid promissory notes were
then redeemed by the Group on the even date as the Company
strives to keep its debts to a minimal level at present so that it
would be able to arrange debt financing at a more favourable rate

later on in view of the upcoming interest rate hikes.
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At 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank deposits and cash
amounted to approximately HK$245.7 million (2017:
approximately HK$250.3 million), denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, US dollars, Euro, Singapore dollars and Renminbi. Apart
from providing working capital to support its media sales, the
Group maintains a strong cash position to meet the potential needs

for business expansion and development.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s indebtedness comprised finance
lease liabilities and promissory note of approximately HKS$106.6
million (2017: approximately HK$0.7 million). The finance lease
liabilities and promissory note obligations carried interests ranging
from 6% to 9% per annum in which all of the indebtedness are
carrying fixed interest rates. The indebtedness shall be repayable in
1 to 3.5 years. The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of total
indebtedness to the total share capital and reserves of the Group
was 14.8% at 31 December 2018 (2017: 0.2%). The Group did not
have any bank borrowings at 31 December 2017.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had stand-by banking facilities
totalling HK$30.0 million (2017: HK$30.0 million).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$350.4 million (2017: approximately HK$429.0
million) and total assets of approximately HK$952.3 million (2017:
approximately HK$592.3 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2018, bank deposits of approximately HK$98.7
million (2017: approximately HK$98.2 million) were pledged
mainly to secure certain bank guarantees provided by the
subsidiaries of the Company to the independent third parties
regarding their due performance and payment under certain licence
agreements between the subsidiaries of the Company and the

independent third parties.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Euro and
Renminbi. During the year, the Company recognised an exchange
loss of approximately HK$1.5 million (2017: exchange gain of
approximately HK$12.3 million) due to the depreciation of the
Euro against Hong Kong dollars. During the year, there was no
material fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars and
US dollars. The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities
and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its

financial position exposure in 2018.

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018

RZE—N\F+_A=+—H AEBEHNRTEX
IR & %) 576 #045,700,00000 ( ZFE—+HF L9785
250,300,0007T) * LAVEHE ~ T - BUIT A0 T &

ARBREMN BRERHEBESUIHERBHE
RGN REBE T A FRENIRSARRNIARNES

BRAMBERNEERE

RZE—NF+_A=+—8B AEENEBERE
AL EMHE B E MA R EE 498 %106,600,0007T (ZF
—+ & 49 700,0000T) c MEFREABERARE
BIEF B ERenZEowsT B M BEHHIREE B X
R REEBAMEISFRNERE R _T—)\F
+TZA=+—8 EXBEBHER(AEKEEELSE
BERAREESBENLLE) Blasn(ZT—tF
02%) MRZZE—+tF+-_A=+—0 rAXEETE
ESRITE R -

- NFE+_A=+—8 KEBENERIRT
rﬂém,\%ﬁﬂ%zoooooowﬂ_? tF B
30,000,0007C) ©

RZE—N\FF+_A=Z+—H AEENLRBEE
SEE X A #350,400,000C (ZE—+HF B
429,000,0007T) * 1 & = 2B 49 5 7% #952,300,0007T
ZT—+F 478 8592,300,0007T) ©

EEEHA

RZZE-—NF+=ZA=+—H ' #75%98,700,0007C
(ZZF— 4 57%98,200,0007T) VR 1TF K2 HIE
B ETEERARFINBARIREZEEIT RSN
HEBYFE=FIUME TRTBE THETRE
VE=ZFREE TRTERAOER -

0 sk 5% B9 Py % A B

AEENEREERRSEBUEE  E1-
AR ABEN - FRA - EEE’\EAIR/%M‘%%TE Eﬁl
RN R HERREE BB 41881 ,500,0000T (ZF— £ 4F ¢
[ 5 U 25 4978 #12,300,0007T) ° A B HETH
ERVEEAFRH R N\F AEBELEE
TEMAFETEERIANK S NERETMNE
BT ASRE B MR R



CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$36.9 million (2017: approximately HKS$7.2

million).

Capital commitments contracted for but not provided for in the
financial statements of the Group at 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HKS$22.3 million (2017: approximately HK$13.5

million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2018 and 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of TCM and the
Subject Companies, in which TCM is licensed to engage in Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. For discussion of the performance during 2018
and their future prospects, please refer to the section headed

“Operational Review — Financial Services Business”.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of TCM and the
Subject Companies. For the details of the acquisition, please refer
to the section headed “Financial Review — Liquidity and Financial

Resources — Redemption of promissory notes”.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND POLICIES

The financial statements set out on pages 95 to 197 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules, all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICIES
At 31 December 2018, the Group had 179 full-time employees.

The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
and benefits package to all its employees. In addition, it offers a
performance bonus scheme to its senior staff based on achievement
of business objectives and a sales commission scheme to its sales
team based on achievement of advertising revenue targets. The
Group has adopted a provident fund scheme for its employees in
Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund

Schemes Ordinance.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 8 June 2018,
under which the Company may grant options to, among others,
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares for providing them
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company as a reward for their contribution and to encourage them
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares

for the benefit of the Company and the sharcholders as a whole.

The Company also adopted a share award scheme on 24 August
2018 which complement the share option scheme of the Company,
under which shares of the Company may be awarded to, among
others, selected employees of the Group for providing them with
incentives to continuously make substantial contributions for the
long-term growth of the Group in the future and aligning their
interests directly to the sharcholders of the Company through

ownership of shares of the Company.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Since the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange, the Group
has fully utilised approximately HK$538 million for the
development of, and the purchase of equipment for use in, the
BUS-TV and other advertising business, acquisition of
complementary businesses in Mainland China and for general

operating expenditures.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
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Dr. MA Weihua
BERERL

Chairman and Non-Executive Director £ & RFHITES

Dr. Ma, aged 70, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company on 21 November 2017 and 29 May
2018 respectively. He served as an executive director, president
and chief executive officer of China Merchants Bank from 1999 to
2013. Dr. Ma formerly served as the chairman of CIGNA & CMC
Life Insurance Company Limited, and served as the chairman of
Wing Lung Bank Limited from 2008 to 2015. Dr. Ma was a deputy
to the 10th National People’s Congress from 2003 to 2008, a
member of the 11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”) from 2008 to 2013
and a member of the 12th National Committee of the CPPCC from
2013 to 2018. In addition, he is currently the chairman of National
Fund for Technology Transfer and Commercialisation.

Dr. Ma is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with
stock code: 670 and the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code:
600115) since October 2013, Postal Savings Bank of China Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code:
1658) since December 2013, Legend Holdings Corporation (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 3396) since
June 2015 and China World Trade Center Co. Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600007)
since August 2014. He was previously an independent non-
executive director of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 386 and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600028) from May 2010
to May 2015, China Resources Land Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 1109) from July 2013 to June
2017, Winox Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 6838) from June 2011 to March 2015
and Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 2611 and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange with stock code: 601211) from January 2013 to May
2016.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
ESEHN

Mr. XU Peixin

Executive Director H1{TE %

Mr. Xu, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 21 November 2017. He has more than 10 years of
corporate executive management and investment experience. From
June 2005 to June 2012, Mr. Xu was a venture partner of New
Enterprise Associates (Beijing), Ltd., one of the group companies of
New Enterprise Associates, Inc. which is a venture capital firm. He
was primarily involved in designing and executing investment
strategies in the retail and healthcare industries. Mr. Xu also served
as a director of AirMedia Group Inc., a NASDAQ Stock Market-
listed company and a leading operator of out-of-home advertising
platforms in the PRC, which operates digital TV screens in 37
airports and digital frames in 32 airports and providing
advertisements on airline routes, as well as operating traditional
media platforms such as billboards, lightboxes and LED screens,
from September 2013 to December 2016. Mr. Xu founded Bison
Capital Holding Company Limited, which is an investment holding
company specialised in investments in the media and financial
industries, and has been an executive director since December
2013. In May 2010, Mr. Xu was nominated as a chief committee
member of the Expert Committee of the APEC E-Commerce
Business Alliance.
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Mr. SUN Lei
BRERE

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer SI{TEE R THAR

Mr. Sun, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 24 December 2018.
Mr. Sun is also an executive director and responsible officer of
Target Capital Management Limited (“TCM”), a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance to carry
out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. TCM has become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from 14
December 2018. Prior to joining TCM, Mr. Sun had worked at
Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited as executive
director in corporate coverage from March 2014 to September
2015 and BOCI Securities Limited as a director from March 2011
to February 2014. With experience for over 15 years in the
financial industry, he has extensive experience in various aspects
such as corporate finance, fixed income and bond issuing. Prior to
stepping into the financial industry, Mr. Sun had been working on
environmental engineering, overseas corporate financing, futures
and project budgeting. Mr. Sun obtained a bachelor of engineering
from China University of Mining and Technology in July 1990.

Mr. ZHU Dong
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Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer I {TES R EEMKEE

Mr. Zhu, aged 45, was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 13 December 2017. He
has more than 23 years of experience in accounting, corporate
finance and advisory services. Mr. Zhu was previously the chairman
and executive director of AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 260) from
December 2015 to November 2017 and an executive director of
Peace Map Holding Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 402) from December 2012 to October
2017. He previously acted as the deputy chief financial officer of
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 232) and from January 2011 to
January 2016, he acted as the deputy chief accountant of AVIC
International (HK) Group Limited. Mr. Zhu obtained a master’s
degree in accounting from Capital University of Economics and
Business of the PRC in August 1998 and a bachelor degree in
accounting from Xiamen University, the PRC in July 1994, and is a

senior accountant.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
ESEHN

Dr. QI Daqing
BREBL

Independent Non-Executive Director Y F#HITESE

Dr. Qi, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a member of
the Company’s remuneration committee and nomination
committee. He is a professor of accounting and former associate
dean of Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (“CKGSB”) in
Beijing, the PRC. He began teaching in CKGSB in 2002 and was the
founding director of the executive master of business association
programme. His primary research interests are in financial
accounting and reporting as well as profit manipulation by
management of listed companies.

Dr. Qi received his degree of doctor of philosophy in business
administration from Michigan State University in 1996, master of
business administration degree from the University of Hawaii at
Manoa in 1992 and bachelor of science and arts degrees from Fudan
University, the PRC in 1985 and 1987 respectively.

Dr. Qi is currently an independent director of Sohu.com Inc. (a
company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: SOHU)) since 2005 and
Momo Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: MOMO))
since 2014, an independent non-executive director of SinoMedia
Holding Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 623) since May 2008, Jutal Offshore Oil Services
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code:
3303) since July 2015 and Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 376) since
February 2016. Dr. Qi was previously an independent non-
executive director of Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co.,
Ltd. (a company which was delisted from the Stock Exchange in
September 2016 with stock code: 3699) from January 2016 to
September 2016 and Honghua Group Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 196) from January 2008 to
December 2017, and an independent director of Bona Film Group
Limited (a company which was delisted from NASDAQ in April
2016 (Symbol: BONA)) from December 2010 to April 2016 and
iKang Healthcare Group, Inc. (a company which was privatised in
January 2019 and will be delisted from NASDAQ (Symbol:
KANG)) from 2014 to 2019.
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Mr. CHEN Yigong

BRI T4
Independent Non-Executive Director BAFHITES

Mr. Chen, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and a
member of the Company’s audit committee and remuneration
committee. He is currently a partner in PacGate Law Group, a law
firm in the PRC. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree in
biochemistry in the Peking University, the PRC in 1992, and he
obtained a degree of jurisdoctor in the University of lowa, the
United States of America in 1998.

Mr. Chen is currently an independent director of Ambow Education
Holding Ltd. (a company listed on New York Stock Exchange
(American depositary shares) (Symbol: AMBO)) since March 2013.
He was previously an independent director, a director and president
of Link Motion Inc. (a company listed on New York Stock Exchange
(American depositary shares) (Symbol: LKM)).

Mr. FENG Zhonghua
BPERE

Independent Non-Executive Director BAFHITES

Mr. Feng, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is
the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a
member of the Company’s audit committee and nomination
committee. He was previously a director of AirMedia Group Inc.
from May 2011 to December 2016, and served as chief operating
officer with respect to certain affiliated entities of AirMedia Group
Inc. from October 2005 to December 2016. Mr. Feng received an
executive master of business association degree from Peking
University, the PRC in 2009,

§ENI()R MANAGEMENT
SREEAR

The Executive Directors are also members of the senior
management of the Group.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Scope of this Report

This is the annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended
31 December 2018. This report provides information on the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) issues and
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
Given the relatively insignificant insurance brokerage business in the
Pecople’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) to the Group, this report
only covers our Hong Kong operations which represent the majority
of the Group’s investments and businesses, and our most significant
environmental and social impacts and influence are from our media
sales, design and management services, and advertising production.
For more details of our businesses, please refer to the Operational
Review on pages 5 to 10 of this Annual Report.

This report should be read in conjunction with the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 46 to 68 of this Annual Report.

Reporting Standards

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“HKEx ESG Reporting
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions
contained in the HKEx ESG Reporting Guide for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The HKEx ESG Guide Content Index that refers to the relevant
information contained in this report is set out in the Appendix to

this report on pages 39 to 45.
Feedback to this Report

If you have any feedback and suggestions about this report, please
contact us at: cosec(@bison.com.hk.

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

AR AR E

ARENESE
AFERBERSBEEFRAB([ARFNEES
TE-N\E+_A=Z+-BLEFENFERE 1€
RERARE - AMSEHEBARANQFREWE A A
([FEBDHWRE HEeRER(RE HEEE
BN EERRAMNER - ERAEERPEARH
ME([REDZRELCEEFBEILIEER - KR
LEREBRMOEBEY  EFEBARERNELE
ERABNIREREYR MEMEYRERTENR
EAFERAEEHEE [T MEERSE  URE
ERE- BARMMNEBRNE— LS 20
RAFRFE-BEF10E A ETFOIEE -

AR FEAF N A F R F46H = Fes BB E
WE—HEE -

il

AN
/H

LA

= R aalP
TRETIR(CEBBAZGABERATES ETHRAD
M-+ EmEMNERE e kERMmERES (1B
RFRE g RERMEES)RE -

RBEZZ-N\E+-_A=t—RHLLEE AQ7A
BEETERMRE e RERMERSIMEANIT
BT R AR 53

BRPRE - LB REREINTRIIBRBARE
PREVIERIE R - SN A EF39B EH45s A APEE

HARENEE
M ABREFEIMEERESE FEHE
cosec@bison.com.hkJA B 48 P9 o



MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We have reviewed our operations to identify the ESG issues
relevant to the Group. Subsequently, the identified ESG issues have
been assessed by considering their importance to our stakeholders
as well as the Group based on the results of the stakeholder
engagement conducted in the previous year. The ESG issues
considered to be material are listed below:

List of material issues

EEMA

HMERARMEER  ABRIEAKEBENR
S OHEREREHE - BEE BBRRENFERD
EEBOBER ZEMBNNERE HEREAR
BHASENFNERAEENERNHZSEE
ELHRIE - WEREANRE HEREARAFEHR
FIAT

EEEHRE

Operating practices -

Protection of consumer data and privacy —

Protection of intellectual

ZEEH REHEEENRALE property rights
—  Product/Service quality 3R 58 R0 288
Em/REEE —  Supply chain management
—  Customer service HEREE
B R — Anti—corruption practices
REEBE
Employment and labour practices —  Labour standard —  Occupational health and safety
ERRESTER TR BERRELS
—  Workforce and turnover —  Development and training
B8 RiE8mAKL % R M
Community —  Community investments
e HRIE
Environmental —  Waste management and reduction —  Energy consumption and
R initiatives efficiency initiatives

BEEMERLREELENEE

RE IR OB #E I {5 A R sk 51 3

—  Material use and efficiency

MR P e e P A as

ABOUT THE GROUP

Our Business

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with a history of 18 years.
Headquartered in Hong Kong, the Group was principally engaged in
the provision of media sales, design services and production of
advertisements for transit vehicle exteriors (“BUS-BODY”) and
interiors (“BUS-INTERIOR?), shelters (“BUS-SHELTER”), online
portal, mobile apps and outdoor signage advertising business and
the provision of integrated marketing services covering these
advertising platforms in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2018.

BARAKE

EMHEB

ARREBTEMERXSMAERAR ([BRM]) £
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The Group started to engage in insurance brokerage business in the
PRC during the first half of 2018. However, given the relative
insignificance of such business in the PRC to the Group, this report
only covers our Hong Kong businesses.

ESG Strategy and Policy

The Group is committed to a high standard of corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”). It focuses on minimising the impact of our
operations on the environment and promoting environmental
awareness among employees and the public. We believe that the
Group can play a positive role in the development of the local
community through our community investment. We treat all
employees with fairness and respect, and facilitate their career
development.

The following ESG policies guide the Group’s business and

operational decisions, and deliver our commitments:

*  meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
CSR matters

. ursuing good CSR practices in our operations
P 28 P P
*  minimising the Group’s potential impact on the environment

*  promoting environmental awareness among employees and the

public

*  minimising its carbon footprints through efficient use of
resources and employing green office initiatives

*  providing a safe and healthy working environment for

employees

M supporting partnering non governmental organisations

(“NGOs”) and charitable organisations to help the needy

*  engaging our stakeholders and taking into account their
interests to achieve sustainable business growth

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018
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ESG Prospects

The Group will continue to improve its CSR performance and
actively pursue environmental sustainability. In particular, we will
adopt new and innovative measures in handling material issues
concerned by our stakeholders, including waste reduction and
intellectual property rights protection.

We will keep up with our work to give back to the society, and
continue supporting our partnering NGOs and charitable
organisations to help those in need. Moreover, we understand the
importance of communication in our approach towards

sustainability. We will keep leveraging our business edge to

promote social and environmental awareness.

ESG HIGHLIGHTS IN 2018

Environmental Initiatives and Awards

* World Green Organisation (“WGO”)’s United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals — Green Office and Eco-
Healthy Workplace Awards Labelling Scheme 2018

*  Participated in World Wide Fund (“WWF”)’s Earth Hour 2018

*  Supported Greeners Action’s Amazing Greeners

Social Initiatives and Awards

* Awarded the 15 Years Plus Caring Company Logo 2018/19 by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service

* Supported Orbis World Sight Day 2018

*  Supported The Community Chest of Hong Kong — Dress
Causal Day 2018

*  Supported Agency for Volunteer Service — AVS Run & Walk
for Volunteering 2018 and International Volunteer Day
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Our Industrial Participations

*  Affiliated Member of the Association of Accredited Advertising
Agencies of Hong Kong (HK4As)

*  Participated as a Major Sponsor of HK4As Kam Fan Awards to
recognise the best advertising works in the market

*  Membership in Sub-Committee on Promotion & Publicity of
Volunteer Service for Volunteer Movement in the Social
Welfare Department

*  Membership in Promotion and Fundraising Committee for
Agency for Volunteer Service

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance Structure

The Group recognises the importance of good corporate governance
practices in directing and guiding the Group using professional and
cthical business practices. Our capable Board of Directors (the
“Board”), effective risk management and internal control systems,
and dedication to accountability and transparency with our
sharcholders are core elements of our governance principles. We
aim at achieving sustainable business development by taking into
account the interests of our stakeholders while ensuring that our
business is conducted in compliance with all applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

Our Board is responsible for the success and sustainable
development of the Group. The Board provides direction and gives
approval on matters concerning the Company’s business strategies,
policies and plans, while the day-to-day business operations are
delegated to the Executive Directors.

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. For details of the Board and the Board Committees,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 46 to 68
of this Annual Report.

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

T30
- BARLTHEBAER

- NEEREPBESNSEBTARSEHELNES
R REMS LREFEESE®

TEENEEIEDEIMBHERERSE/NAE
%8

- EBIEERBREENMERZEGZE

BMHExEESR

L
AEBAARFEEEAEMANERYE  FAEX
REREBERAREEIT T HAEES - HAE
BNEFE([EFE)) TZARNREREERA
MEERG  URBHABLOHRREERGATER
B -ARERMEBRAUNZLITE - RIFIEERE

FhENNs BERUBEEBER BBBRRL
BERBHBE—IEREIEREERE

EEgRAREAREERNRI M BHERRNE
T-EFSHR IR BHEBARAXHRE
BREFENEE  MEEXHEFENRANTE
=RE-

%$Aﬁﬂﬁm$% EFECRI-AES
g DRAEZEZEET FMEESRIERZE
cHBEEEREFLZESHNFE  H2HHE
FHRF46B EFSEMDEERARE -

Som Wh

H 1 M E@



Code of Conduct

We set high standards of professionalism and ethicality for our
Directors and employees in order to maintain our position as a
top-performing media company in Hong Kong. Our Code of
Conduct provides guidance on responsibility towards the Group’s
sharecholders, customers and the community. It sets out the rules
and policies on conflicts of interest, procurement and tendering
procedures, confidentiality of information, bribery and corrupt
practices, and equality of employment opportunity.

All Directors and employees are required to abide by our
professional standards and comply with our Code of Conduct. Any
member in breach of the Code of Conduct is subject to disciplinary

action.

Anti-corruption Measures

We are committed to providing a fair and efficient business and
working environment for all of our employees. It is the Group’s
policy to prohibit bribery and corrupt practices. The Group
complies with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and will act
without delay if any legal proceeding arises. Our Code of Conduct
describes all types of anti-corruption practices, such as bribery and
money laundering in detail so as to avoid any misunderstanding by
our employees and prepare them to react accordingly. It also
recognises employees’ rights and obligations to report any related
cases. In 2018, there were no incidents of bribery, extortion, fraud

and money laundering reported within the Group.

OUR EMPLOYEES

People are our most valuable asset. Our dedicated employees are
the keys to success. The Group ensures that our employees are well
taken care of through adopting policies that aim at developing their
skills to maximum potential, maintaining their health and safety,
upholding our equal opportunities principle, and maintaining a safe

working environment for all.

People

We are an employer that provides equal employment opportunities.
Employment, recruitment, training, terms of employment,
benefits, promotions are offered regardless of the individual’s race,
sex, marital status, pregnancy, disability or family status. Our
non-discrimination commitment is demonstrated by our Equal
Employment Opportunity Policy to ensure employees are treated
equally and fairly under all circumstances. Our policy is fully
compliant with the Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability
Discrimination Ordinance and Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance. Complaints or cases of discrimination can be directly
reported to the Head of Personnel Department/Human Resources
& Administration. A thorough investigation will be run, with
appropriate follow-up actions to department head/immediate

supervisor and the staff involved.
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We also have a firm belief in providing a harassment-free working
environment. As such, we have adopted the Elimination of Sexual
Harassment Policy in accordance with the Sex Discrimination

Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group is in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare, including the Employment Ordinance, Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Sex Discrimination Ordinance,

Disability Discrimination Ordinance and Family Status

Discrimination Ordinance.

Our emphasis on integrity is reflected in a firm commitment to
uphold the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, which specifies that
neither employees nor Directors shall accept any advantages

without the permission of the Company.

As a service provider, we also devote ourselves to protecting the
privacy of all staff, including their personal data, and treat all

information in the strictest confidence.

The Group prohibits the use of child or forced labour. With our
clear policy and dedicated efforts such as conducting employee
background check, no cases of child or forced labour has been

recorded in our operations in 2018.

At the end of 2018, the Group had a total of 133 full-time

employees in Hong Kong.
Statistic of workforce in Hong Kong

Total number of workforce by gender

BB s NESRE

As of 31 December R+ =HA=+—H

75 52 58 40

(2018) (2017) (2018) (2017)

Female 2% Male 214
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Total number of workforce by age group

BFERARNE T NESAR

As of 31 December R+ =HA=+—H

15 10 102 74 16 38

(2018) (2017)  (2018) (2017)  (2018) (2017)
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Keeping Our People Healthy and Safe
Occupational health and safety

We are committed to ensuring our staff’s health and safety, as they
are integral to our smooth operation. As part of our commitment,
we provide a good and safe working environment for our staff, and
comply with all occupational health and safety laws in Hong Kong
that are relevant to us. In addition, the Group has arranged
employees’ compensation insurance coverage and medical insurance
coverage for employees. In 2018, there were no records of work-
related incidents causing fatalities or injuries, nor lost days due to

work injury or occupational discases.

Sexual Harassment

Our staff are well-protected from all forms of sexual harassment
with our policy. As stated under the Sex Discrimination Ordinance
with which we are compliant, sexual harassment at work is unlawful
and prohibited and have the right to complain or report any cases of
workplace sexual harassment. Complaints or reports will be
directed to the Head of Personnel Department/Human Resources &
Administration and will be followed by a thorough investigation and
appropriate action. All cases will be treated in the strictest
confidence, and the complainant will not be victimised or penalised.
This demonstrates our motivation in providing a safe and favourable

work environment for all.

Keeping Our People Happy
Com])cnsation and Benefits

Further to our commitment to staff’s well-being, we ensure that
they get sufficient leave as suggested by Hong Kong labour laws.
They are entitled to one rest day every seven days, as required by
the Employment Ordinance. They also enjoy more holidays than the
statutorily required holidays (i.e. 12 days).

In addition, we have special arrangements that enable our staff to
leave work early on special occasions, such as Mid-Autumn Festival,
Christmas Eve and Chinese New Year’s Eve, allowing them to
spend more time with their families and loved ones. Our newly
married staff are also entitled to enjoy ten calendar days of marriage

leave.
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By organising staff-friendly activities, we aim at promoting staff
relationships and effective communication to foster a good working
environment. Encouraged by the very promising results of previous
events, we intend to continue holding such activities in the future.

Remuneration

We have a systematic process to ensure staff are paid in a timely
and regular manner. Our remuneration structures aim at rewarding
staff after taking into account of the abilities and performance of
each individual. Our staff members are also eligible for the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (MPF), allowing them to make
their own investment choices that would directly benefit them after
retirement (after turning 65 or retiring after the age of 60).

Keeping Our People Educated and Trained

Development and Training

We are committed to developing our staff and enhancing their skills
and knowledge so that they contribute fully to the growth and
success of the Group. We provide development opportunities and
programmes which are challenging and participative in nature to
hone our staff’s professional and personal skills. Training courses on
the topics such as company medical insurance policy and mandatory
provident fund scheme were organized by the Group for employees
during the year.

In 2018, all staff received a total of 323.5 hours of training through
attending both internal and external training courses.

OUR COMMUNITY

The Company believes it is important to proactively contribute to
our local community and maximise the effectiveness of our
activities. We supported various activities organized by NGOs and
charitable organisations to help the needy. Our active participation
in positive community»wide activities demonstrates our
commitment to being a socially responsible corporate citizen.

Giving back to Our Local Community

Long determined to be a good corporate citizen and give back to
our community that sustain its business, our Group continues to be
a very enthusiastic supporter of worthy causes.

In 2018, the Group supported various activities organized by NGOs
and charitable organisations including Greeners Action’s Amazing
Greeners and AVS Run & Walk for Volunteering 2018 and
International Volunteer Day organized by Agency for Volunteer
Service. Also, the Group sponsored the Social Welfare Department
and other NGOs such as Agency for Volunteer Service and
Greeners Action by sponsoring them with advertisement placement
on our BUS-INTERIOR and/or BUS-SHELTER platforms.
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The Company has been awarded the 15 Years Plus Caring Company
Logo 2018/19 by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in
recognition of our commitment in caring for the community, the

employees and the environment for 16 consecutive years.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group understands the implications of climate change for the
entire world and our indirect impact on the environment through
the services we provide to customers. We include principles of
sustainable development in all aspects of our operations to reduce
our impact on the planet as much as possible. Looking ahead, we
are moving towards the direction of environmental sustainability in
all aspects of our operations.

Emissions

We are acutely aware of the need to reduce our production of
greenhouse gases. This prompts us to employ green office initiatives
and use our resources efficiently. We will proactively explore
different ways in reducing carbon emissions in the future. The
Group has introduced various measures including, improving office
environment to help conserve energy, using of more energy-
efficient LED lights to reduce electricity consumption and reducing
the need for air-conditioning.

The operations of the Group do not involve direct greenhouse gas
emissions (other than greenhouse gas emission arising from the use
of electricity by our offices), use of packaging material and
discharges into water and land. The conversion of the amount of
greenhouse gas emissions from the use of electricity is around 128
tonnes' and around 0.96 tonnes per employee.

Remark:

! Greenhouse gases emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent

and was based on the carbon emission factor for electricity purchased
references information released by CLP Holdings Limited and The
Hongkong Electric Co., Ltd.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to raising the public awareness of
environmental conservation, while reducing our own carbon
footprint through various means. We are continuously looking for
innovative ways to showcase the consequences of climate change,
while keeping some of our more successful initiatives. On top of
that, we are constantly looking for ways to implement more
sustainable practices in our offices to further reduce our overall

environmental impact.
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Except for the measures for conserving energy disclosed above, the
Group also encourages efficient use of resources such as double-size
printing, less color printing and paperless practices. The concept of
“Reduce”, “Reuse” and “Recycle” are heavily promoted. Employees
are also encouraged to treasure food, water and minimize waste and

noise.
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Advertising Sticker and Paper Usage

EERERERARE

Sticker for BUS-BODY, BUS-INTERIOR and Billboards
BrES BrHEERESREE

112,823 con)

kg Ny

106,472 o)

kg /L\\)'/I—

The Group has made investments in digital panels as 4-dimension
interactive advertising platform at bus shelters in Hong Kong which
was launched during 2018. The digital panels not only provide the
customers with new advertising platform, but also reduce the use of
papers for bus shelter posters.
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Conserving Our Energy and Water

We devote ourselves to energy conservation as is well-
demonstrated by our use of more energy-efficient LED lights and
our active participation in WWF Earth Hour 2018. Electricity
consumption accounts for most of our energy use. We will
continuously look for ways to improve our performance in energy
efficiency.

REERRKER

BB ARERR - MEHENZE N ISR AE R
WIEMET - BIEERE RERUEMLEDE RiERS
Bt REAESGME—/Fo18- AMERA&EZ
HEEREE N - KM SRES KRS EIRNE
RIWFE -

Total electricity consumption BIEEE UKL 233.18 203.58
(MWh) (Note) (B 3E)

Total electricity consumption BHEEBFEEE 1.75 2.21
(MWh) per employee (JEELBR)

Note: The increase of electricity consumption in 2018 was due to the set up of
a new office.

Our motivation in environmental sustainability has driven us to
continuously improve water efficiency and reduce water
consumption. Sticker notes are used to promote the awareness of
employees on water saving in the offices. There is no issue in

sourcing water.

fiE: B\ EMATERNIMNRT T

MRE o

BPMEGESREUHEER AR SHERTX
AR RAFK - ERBAERARSEER
MRNEEERKNEH o REUERKRIL EMRE -

Total water consumption (cubic metre) ke (LK) 225.98 173.92
Total water consumption (cubic metre) FBREBBFKE 1.70 1.89
per employee (ZFXK)
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Recycling Our Waste

In order to minimise the amount of waste produced, the Group
actively recycles paper, plastic bottles, aluminum cans, fluorescent
light tubes, toner cartridges and electronic waste. The amount of

recycled waste in 2018 was estimated as below:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B W E =Y

REMELBENBBRERE  AEEKEE YR
BE- B BE LE BHARETEED-
REZ—N\FRRHERNBEMES DT :

Paper waste recycled FF7 (21 45 % 22 4R 5R 1,059 kg’Z\\ﬁ' 1,497 kgix\)'I/'
Fluorescent light tube waste recycled Fir [B] Us BE 22 & 1 pCBlZ 0 pc_i
Plastic waste recycled Fir [3] Us B 22 28 B8 738 pcsﬁ 796 pcs1
Aluminum waste recycled Ff7 (21 45 % 22 8 640 pcsﬁ 720 pcs1
Toner cartridge waste recycled Friel W EEE R D & 43 PCS@ 64 pes 1@
Electronic waste recycled Frim s T REEY) 19 computers 11 computers
21" 17"

2 printers 6 printers

AITEN# BT

43 monitors 11 monitors

BR% &R

7 Macs

A MacE

Note: As the figures in the above table are immaterial, the total amount of
hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste and waste intensity of the
recycled items has not been provided.

Environmental Commitments

As part of our commitments, we regularly support events organised
by environmental or social NGOs. Our support aims at enhancing
awareness and allowing our employees to participate in these

events.

*  WWF - Earth Hour 2018

We are active supporters in numerous meaningful local green
events. In particular, we sponsored the WWF — Earth Hour
2018, the lights of our billboards at Hip Kee Godown No. 2,
Cheong Wan Road, and Aberdeen Tunnel were switched off to
show our support for the worthy cause.

*  WGO - Green Office and Eco-Healthy
Workplace Awards Labelling Scheme 2018

Apart from social initiatives, we also play our part in
environmental conservation within our offices. Various green
office practices and initiatives have been employed to raise
awareness among our staff, and hence reduce our overall carbon
footprint. Our environmental efforts were honoured by the
WGO’s United Nations Sustainable Development Goals — Green
Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards Labelling Scheme.
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* Greeners Action — Amazing Greeners

We supported Amazing Greeners organised by Greeners Action
by sponsoring them with an advertisement placement on our
BUS-SHELTER platform.

OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group promotes sustainable business practices and supports
local suppliers. Our approach includes local procurement to reduce
carbon emissions arising from the transportation of materials and
products. We strive to be a professional and reliable partner for our
business associates. Reliability, fairness, quality and transparency

are key to successful long-term collaboration.

Responsible Procurement

We aim at keeping strict procurement practices so as to ensure the
utmost quality of our supply chain and reduce any supply chain
management risks. In 2018, we engaged a total of 192 suppliers
mainly from Hong Kong (188 suppliers from Hong Kong). By
purchasing the products and services that we need locally, our

Group reduces the carbon emissions associated with transport and

shipping.

Our Group has established long-term and good relationship with
the suppliers which ensures steady supply so as to provide high

quality products and services to customers.

Effective supply chain management can help to increase our
operational efficiency and minimise ESG risk. Maintaining an
effective and compliant supply chain is part of our daily operations.
We have a Billboard Services Procurement Procedure and Policy in
communicating the standards we uphold to our suppliers and staff.
In addition, our Contractor Performance Evaluation Guideline is

published to constantly review services of our contractors.

Product Responsibility

We assure customer health and safety. The Company attaches great
importance to product and service quality. We have established a
clear operating procedure to ensure both the high quality of our
products and services, and compliance with relevant laws and

regulations.
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Operating in the advertising industry, we attach importance to the
implications of the message and content of our advertisements to
society. If any advertisements placed by the advertiser which may
have legal issue or issue about compliance with the applicable laws,
rules or regulations, such advertisement shall be pre-vetted by the
Group in accordance with the advertising guidelines of the Group
and assess the legal risks associated with the advertisement content
provided by the advertiser before acceptance of publication.

Customer Satisfaction

Delivering top—quality service to customers is our number one
priority. To improve our customers’ satisfaction, we actively collect
customer feedback and complaints. Complaints received would be
investigated within 24 hours, followed by taking appropriate actions
s0 as to continuously offer top-quality services to our customers.

Customer Privacy

We strive to build confidence in our customers, particularly
through privacy and personal data protection. The Group keeps
reminding the employees of and emphasising the importance of
safeguarding the security of the personal data. When collecting and
processing such data, the Group complies with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance and the guidelines issued by the Office of the
Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data. The Group will not use or
provide personal data to any person for use in direct marketing
unless we have obtained the data subject’s consent in writing.

There were no incidents and substantiated complaints concerning
breaches of customer privacy or losses of customer data in 2018.

Customer Service

The Group is not complacent and is constantly seeking new ways to
enhance our clients’ satisfaction of our products and services. We
have commissioned survey specialists, Nielsen, to assess the
effectiveness of our BUS-BODY campaigns for our clients since
2010, and more than 120 campaigns have been surveyed. The
information is vital for us in understanding whether our services
and products are adequate and effective. In 2018, there were no
records of complaints received or recalled products due to safety
and health reasons. On the other hand, we respect and value
intellectual property rights. We prevent the use of pirated software
and infringement of copyrights in our operations, and there are no
claims against the Group in relation to infringement of intellectual
property rights against the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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APPENDIX

HKEx ESG Guide Content Index

Aspect Al: Emissions

BEAL : HEHY

General Disclosure
— BB

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant
regulations that have a sig
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse
discharges into water and land

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRBERREREBHN - [

BEREERRVNELSH

() BE: R

(b)y BTHEITABEAFE
Bl B #Y -

P 5%

BXARE - HEREBEIRETRS

About the Group: ESG Strategy
and Policy; Our Environment:
laws and Emissions; Conserving Our
nificant Energy and Water, Recycling
Our Waste

gas emissions

AEEE IR . e R SA
,andgeneration ARAERE : RE - HEREA

EHEREE  RIIHEE - B
W REAR ROKEE - BB
KRtimps - &Y

MBI E R

KPI Al.1
S E DUEIZALL

The types of emissions and res
data.

B TE A R ARBE T B

pective emissions Our Environment: Emissions

BAIRIRE - BERY

KPI A1.2
RRAE IR IRAL.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where

appropriate, intensity.

BERBESFHER (WER)

Our Environment: Emissions

HAFIRIRER « BRI

B -

KPI A1.3
R AAMIEIRALS

Total hazardous waste produced and, where

appropriate, intensity.

FMEAXBEREMAER (INE

Our Environment: Recycling
Our Waste

BR)EE BAIRIRE - BIRERY

KPI A1.4
R ESUIRIZAL 4

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where Our Environment: Recycling

appropriate, intensity.

FMELABZRRVEER (WER)BE -

Our Waste

BAORE  @KRERY

KPI A1.5
RRAENIEIRALS

Description of measures to mitigate emissions

and results achieved.

AR EPER BRI RS

Our Environment:
Environmental Commitments

PR © BAIRRE - RIRAGH

KPI A1.6
HRIEMIERALG

Description of how hazardous and nonhazardous Our Environment: Recycling

wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and

results achieved.

HRRIEEE R EEEEY
B A EERAERE -

Our Waste

HFIRIRE - RUREEZEY)
TE - RIRE
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBHA2 : EREMA

General Disclosure

—RKE

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIFELR - KREMERME) B
R e
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About the Group: ESG Strategy
and Policy; Our Environment:
Recycling Our Waste;
Conserving Our Energy and
Water

MRAERE: RE HBERER

REE RBOR - HAIRIRE : B
BEEY)  RERIRIKEIR

KPI A2.1
FARAMIRIRAL.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity.

RENEIDNER R, IRRERERERTE

Our Environment: Conserving
Our Energy and Water

BAIRIRE - REERRIKER

KPI A2.2
FRAMIEIRAL.2

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BREKERTE -

Our Environment: Conserving
Our Energy and Water

BAIRIRE - REERRIKER

KPI A2.3
FRAMIEIRAL.3

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

H R TR (L R R R AT &I AT S AR ©

Our Environment: Conserving
Our Energy and Water;
Environmental Commitments

HAIRIRE  (RERER RKER
IRIREGE

KPI A2.4
BB EBIEIZA2 4

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

L SREUE A KR LRI B AR RE - AR T
Rk st B RATEARR

Our Environment: Conserving
Our Energy and Water

AR - REREIR KK EIR

KPI A2.5
BRAAMIEIRAL.S

Total packaging material used for finished
products and, if applicable, with reference to
per unit produced.

M mmAEEMHNRER (WER) BLE
BhE -

Our Environment: Emissions

BAIRRE - PERY
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHA3 : RERARER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant

About the Group: ESG Strategy

—RIE impact on the environment and natural and Policy; Our Environment:
resources. Use of Resources; Recycling Our
Waste; Environmental
BRBTAHRERRAERENERNZEN  Commitments
BUR e
ERAKE :RE - HEkER
KRRBE  ZANRE : ER
R EIWERY  RIREGE
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant Our Environment: Use of

FA 4R UBIZAS.1

Aspect B1: Employment
EEBI1 : EfE

General Disclosure

— R

impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

WL EBRHERERRARERNERTEN
ERBMEEZERTENTY -

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest

periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

BRAHMEEE BEREN  TERE K

R FEHRE il REEAREMEER

BRI

(a) BUK: Rk

(b) BFHBEITABEATYENHEREZRR
PIE &R o

Resources; Recycling Our
Waste; Environmental
Commitments

HARIRE - ERER - EUEE
Y RORAGHE

Our Employees: Keeping Our
People Happy Our Corporate
Governance: Code of Conduct

B ES : A8 AR
BAIMEEENR - BTEA

KPI B1.1
A48 UEAEBL .1

Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region.

IR REEE - FieAn RibEE 5K
EEHH -

Our Employees: People
BZMOES - 8T

KPI B1.2
A48 UBIZB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

RIER - FRARN MR DNEERKLE -

Our Employees: People
BZMOES - 8T
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2: REHEZE

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

FHAREZE2TERERREREEB OB

MHEER

(a) B3R &

(b) BFHBEITABEAYENHEREZRR
PIE)E R o

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R -HEBRERATRE

Our Employees: Keeping Our
People Healthy and Safe

BAMER  REBIRERZ
€S

KPI B2.1
PR AR IE1RB2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

FTEREEMILTABRIER -

Our Employees: Keeping Our
Pcople Healthy and Safe

BMHNER  RFEEIRERR
S

KPI B2.2
BASRAE MIE1RB2.2

Lost days due to work injury.

AIBEATEBH-

Our Employees: Keeping Our
People Healthy and Safe

BAMER  REBIRERZ
S

KPI B2.3
B AE M IE1RB2.3

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted; how they are implemented
and monitored.

HOLPT IR B R R R R 2 U RER
MITRERTTE -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EHEB3 : /& KEH

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge

Our Employees: Keeping Our
People Healthy and Safe

BANER  REEIRERR

£

Our Employees: Keeping Our

—MIE R and skills for discharging duties at work. People Educated and Trained
Description of training activities. .
BMEES - REEH#EE KIFI
A IR B B BT T (B A A1 R
UK o i FFES o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender ~ Our Employees: Keeping Our

A5 A I 1RB3.1

and employee category 5

BURREEERNESNZIEER L

Pecople Educated and Trained

BARER - REER KIEI

KPI B3.2
B 4B RUEIEB3.2

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.

wIER KB 8 BRI D
H) PGB 8K o

CBREE KR

Our Employees: Keeping Our
People Educated and Trained

HARER - REER RIE

Bison Finance Group Limited ©

Annual Report 2018



Aspect B4: Labour Standards
fEMEB4 : 35 T %8|

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRI IEE TR T

(a) BK: Rk

(b) BFHETABEAZENEMEEZRA
IR &K

Our Employees: People

HPmES BT

KPI B4.1
B4R DUEIEB4. 1

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

LR A IO 1R 2 B T R
BT

Our Employees: People

HFMES BT

KPI B4.2
B B DR IEB4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

e 3 3R 2 MBI B R B B 15 0 AT BREX
28K -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EBEBS : HEEEE

General Disclosure

— R

Policies on managing environmental and social

risks of the supply chain.
EEMEENRERESRRBUR

Our Employees: People

HFMES BT

Our Products and
Services:Responsible
Procurement; Supply Chain
Management

HPWERERTE : ABEEN
TR fLEEE T

KPI BS. 1
A St 48 DB 1EBS. 1

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
R E D HHEREE o

Our Products and Services:
Responsible Procurement

HPWEmRRRTS : LB EEN
7R

KPI B5.2
4§ 4B B IEBS.2

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

WA E ARt EENEN  mERTERE
Pl EEE A  AREBEMNRITRES
A e

Our Products and Services:
Supply Chain Management

BRI EmMMRY - HERER
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R -HEBRERATRE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
fBEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

Information on:

Our Products and Services:

—REE (a) the policies; and Supply Chain Management;
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Product/Service Quality;
regulations that have a significant impact on Customer Service
the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, BMEm R AR - E@Ee
labelling and privacy matters relating to Em/REEX : EFRH%
products and services provided and methods of
redress.
EHAFMREEMNBREHERRAZE  ES
EEMALBEEARBERA AR
(@) BE: Rk
(b)y BTFHEHBETABEATZENHBEERS
PIE &R o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Our Products and Services:

A48 DB 1EB6. 1

subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

EENCERXEMABTER2ERFIEHM
ARWHBE DL -

Customer Service

B ERERYE - EPRE

KPI B6.2
A48 B 1EB6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

BREBRERMRBORFEE AREH A -

Our Products and Services:
Customer Service

B ERERYE - EPRE

KPI B6.3
B AE W15 1R B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

WG E R RENSEERBRBAOED -

Our Products and Services:
Customer Service

BANERERYE - EPRE

KPI B6.4
PR 1E MIE1EB6.4

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

HIEERERERERDWRER

Our Products and Services:
Customer Satisfaction

BANERERE  EPHERE

KPI B6.5
B4 4E W IE1RB6. 5

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

WA B EBRRERLBERE - ARABH
TRERTE-

Our Products and Services:
Customer Privacy

BANERERYE - BEPALE
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on: Our Corporate Governance:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on B EER : RESEG

the issuer

Anti-corruption Measures

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRI R  MEFERARER

(a) BE: &

(b) BFHEITABERAZROBEMEERAR
PIEE R} o

KPI B7.1
848 45 B 1ZEBT.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases.

Our Corporate Governance:
Anti»corruption Measures

RAIMEEER  RESHEE

RERBAHBTALEERREYCEED
B RRNEE RFRER

KPI B7.2
RS AE M IE 1R BT .2

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS : HtERE

General Disclosure

Description of preventive measures and whistle-  Our Corporate Governance:
blowing procedures, how they are implemented ~ Anti-corruption Measures
and monitored.

BMMEEES: RESEE
M EEm R BRER - ARABERITRE
BR7E e

Policies on community engagement to Our Community: Giving Back to

— AR B FE understand the needs of the communities where Our Local Community
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ B E : EELE
interests.
EBAUTRBERT REEMTARETEMEE
REZEBEESHSE BILENRAOBUR
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Our Community: Giving Back to

52 4 A IE 1RB8. 1

Our Local Community
EHEREE -
BT E : BEdE

KPI BS.2
8 248 U IZBS.2

Resources contributed to the focus area. Our Community: Giving Back to

Our Local Community

EEHBEMPHRER -
AR - EELE

2018 ¥} « EHREHMEEERAF

45



46

TERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) have placed strong emphasis
on maintaining high standards of corporate governance and believe
that good corporate governance provides a solid and sound
framework to assist the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Directors”) in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities to the Group
and its sharcholders. The Board also believes that good corporate
governance practices are important to protect the interests of our
shareholders and to build the investors’ confidence. The Board
applied the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) through various Board committees being
responsible for different functions and preparing this Corporate
Governance Report to enable sharcholders of the Company to

evaluate how these principles are being applied.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 with
the exception of code provisions A.2.7 and E.1.2 as described

below.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Chairman of the
Company did not hold meeting with the Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) without the
Executive Directors present as stipulated in code provision A.2.7
and was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8 June 2018 as stipulated in code provision E.1.2

due to other business engagement.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Directors are individually and collectively accountable to the
sharcholders for the success and sustainable development of the
Company. The Board provides direction and approval in relation to
matters concerning the Company’s business strategies, policies and
plans whilst the day-to-day business operations are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director is
required to pursue excellence in the interests of the sharcholders
and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of
skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the

statutory requirements.
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Board Composition

As at 31 December 2018, the Board has seven Directors,
comprising three Executive Directors (“EDs”), one Non-Executive
Director (“NED”) and three Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“INEDs”). The INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board.
These INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial
experience to the Board, which facilitates the provision of strategic
advice in the future development of the Group. One of these INEDs
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has received
from each INED a written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers that all INEDs are independent.

Board Structure

EEEAN

RZZB-NFE+_A=+—H EFTRLRESF
MR BR=Z2HTEF(RTESF]) - —BIFH
TERE(FRTEFRD) R=RBUFRTES (1B
MIEHITES)D - BUNTESHBEFTEAH
AR REBUNVTEFTREFEFTRER
MR LM BER B REAKERRERE
BUEER HEP—2BURNTESAAEENSE
EERAGARNAAVBEREENE - ARFD
WE B BILIFRITESFTRE LR ANF 3G
B IEESI T IR R ERE AR LB - IR
RERBIGFNTEFHEEL -

EEERE

Audit Committee

ERZEE FMEES
INEDs INEDs
BENFNTES BENFNTES

Profiles of all Directors are set out on pages 19 to 23 of this Annual

Report.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions is
maintained on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEx”).

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

REZEE

INEDs
BENFNTES

#

93

EENBNERANFRFIOAEFBE °

E2

RMNEFREIARENAC RBEHNAAR
WURBBEXHREERBR AR ([BRA]) O

Uty o
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Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in August 2013. The Company recognised and embraced
the benefits of having a diverse Board that fits its own business
model and specific needs to the quality of its performance. The
Board Diversity Policy aimed at setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered based on a range of perspectives
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision on the
appointment of the Directors will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board
without focusing on only one single diversity aspect.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to

ensure its effectiveness.

Board Responsibilities and Dclcgation

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the
best interests of the Company. The types of decisions that are taken
by the Board include those relating to:

¢ the strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

*  the monitoring and controlling of the Group’s operating and

financial performance;

*  overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders,
including sharcholders, customers, Government, suppliers,
employees and the community;

*  cnsuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions;

¢ the corporate governance functions; and

*  overseeing the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems.

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018
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Day-to-day management of the business of the Company is
delegated to the Executive Directors who are required to report
back to the Board.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs

of the Company during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, to fulfill the corporate
governance functions, the Board has: (i) reviewed and monitored
the policies and practices of the Company on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (ii) reviewed and monitored the Code
of Conduct for Directors and Employees; (iii) reviewed compliance
of the Company with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report as set out in the
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the results of such review
were satisfactory; and (iv) reviewed the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Company and made recommendations
to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal action against the Directors and officers.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that of the
Chief Executive Officer. Dr. MA Weihua was appointed as the
Chairman with effect from 29 May 2018 and Mr. BIAN Fang was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on 8 February 2018 and
resigned from the position on 24 December 2018. On 24 December
2018, Mr. SUN Lei was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer.
Neither of them has any financial, business, family or other

relationship with each other.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the Board
and ensuring that the Board works effectively and performs its
responsibilities in the best interest of the Company. In addition, as
the Chairman of the Board, he is also responsible for ensuring that
all Directors are properly briefed on all issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate, accurate and reliable information in

a timely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing and
reporting to the Board on the Company’s strategy and overseeing
the realisation by the Company of the objectives set by the Board.
In addition, the Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for
providing leadership for the management and running the day-to-

day operations of the Company.
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Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of the
Group. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. Written procedures are also in place for
Directors to seck independent professional advice in performing
their Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense. No request was
made by any Director for such independent professional advice in
2018.

Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal procedures for the appointment of
new Directors. Appointments are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The nomination is then submitted to the
Board for decision with reference to the criteria that include
professional knowledge and industrial experience, personal ethics,
integrity and personal skills, and the time commitments of the
candidates. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting (in the case of filling
a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting
(in the case of an addition to the Board) after his appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

All NEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three years.
All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meeting at least once every three

years.

Directors’ Induction and Training

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all
Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company updates Directors on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from
time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
trainings received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2018 is as follows:

REBEEERHNEH EEREE_ZT-N\F+=
A=+—HIESEEEZNZIGEEMNT

Chairman and Non-Executive Director: EERFHTESE :

Dr. MA Weihua FEFERE T A, B
Executive Directors: {TES :

Mr. XU Peixin MR 4E A, B
Mr. SUN Lei (appointed on 24 December 2018)

RExE (R_F—N\FT_H_1HAEZEL) A, B
Mr. ZHU Dong R& 54 A, B
Mr. BIAN Fang

(appointed on 8 February 2018 and resigned on 24 December 2018)

ks

(R-F-NF_ANABEERR - F—F+_H - 1THAAFEF) A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHTES :

Dr. QI Daging B AEH L A, B
Mr. CHEN Yigong RN T4 A, B
Mr. FENG Zhonghua S ZE 54 A, B

Notes:

A:  Reading materials and updates on various topics, including corporate
governance matters and directors” duties and responsibilities

B:  Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Ms. Christine MAK Lai Hung, supports
the Chairman, the Board and the committees of the Board (“Board
Committees”) by ensuring good information flow and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. She advises the Board on
corporate governance matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors. The Company Secretary is
an employee of the Company and is appointed by the Board.
Although the Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer, all Directors may call upon her for advice
and assistance at any time in respect of their duties and the effective
operation of the Board and Board Committees. The Company
Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship between the
Company and its sharcholders, including assisting the Board in
discharging its obligations to sharcholders pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

During 2018, the Company Secretary had over 15 hours of
professional training to update her skills and knowledge.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established various Board Committees. All the members
of the Board Committees are INEDs.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. The
Committee currently comprises three INEDs. After each meeting,
the Audit Committee reports to the Board on significant issues. As
at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the Audit
Committee are Dr. QI Daqing (chairman), Mr. CHEN Yigong and
Mr. FENG Zhonghua.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices, to
improve the credibility and objectivity of the Company’s financial
and other reports, and to strengthen the systems of internal control
and risk management and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and HKEx.

During 2018, the Audit Committee held two meetings. The Audit
Committee reviewed the following documents and matters at the

meetings:

¢ the Directors’ Report, Independent Auditor’s Report and
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 and the 2017 Annual Report, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

¢ the Company’s Interim Financial Statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 and the 2018 Interim Report, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

¢ the Company’s accounting policies and its compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards of Hong Kong;

*  the results of the external audits;
¢ the fees payable to the External Auditors of the interim review
for the six months ended 30 June 2018, and terms of

engagement of the External Auditors for approval by the
Board;
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*  reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control/mitigation tools including the enterprise risk
management programme, the risk management systems, the
internal audit function relating to risk management and the

Group’s contingency plans;

*  reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control systems after
considering the report from an outsourced independent
professional firm ( the “Internal Auditors”);

¢ the compliance by the Company with all applicable laws,
regulations, standards and best practice guidelines.

The Audit Committee also met in separate private session with the
External Auditors at least twice during the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
March 2004. The Committee currently comprises three INEDs. As
at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. FENG Zhonghua (chairman), Dr.
QI Daqing and Mr. CHEN Yigong.

The Remuneration Committee is intended to define and articulate a
compensation philosophy or strategy consistent with the strategic
objectives of the Company. To achieve this objective, the
Remuneration Committee formulates policies on and reviews the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the

Company.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the management on the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and senior management, and
make recommendations to the Board. The Board will have final
authority to approve the recommendations made by the

Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on websites

of the Company and HKEx.

The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for

Directors and senior management are:

*  no individual should determine his or her own remuneration

package;

*  remuneration packages should be on a par with companies with

whom the Company competes for human resources;

*  the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages
that attract and retain executives needed to run the Group
successfully and motivate executives to pursue appropriate
growth strategies whilst it should avoid paying an excessive

amount for such purposes;
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*  remuneration packages should reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well as the complexity of
work; and

*  remuneration packages should be structured in such a way that
they provide incentives to Directors and senior management to

improve their individual performance.
In 2018, the Remuneration Committee:

. reviewed the remuneration packages of Executive Directors

and senior management;

¢ reviewed the Directors’ fees proposal and made
recommendation to the Board;

¢ reviewed the salary adjustment of an Executive Director and
made recommendation to the Board; and

¢ reviewed the proposed remuneration packages to be offered to
the new Directors and made recommendations to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 8 March
2006. The Committee currently comprises three INEDs. As at the
date of this Annual Report, the members of the Nomination
Committee are Mr. CHEN Yigong (chairman), Dr. QI Daqing and
Mr. FENG Zhonghua.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include:

1. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and making recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s

corporate strategy;

2. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. In assessing the suitability of a proposed
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candidate, the Nomination Committee shall consider the
criteria that include professional knowledge and industrial
experience, personal ethics, integrity, time commitment and
diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, and whether such candidate would facilitate or assist
the development of the existing or future business of the
Company;

3. assessing the independence of INEDs; and

4. making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer.

The provisions set out in paragraphs 1, 2 and 4 above are regarded
as the key nomination criteria and principles of the Company for
nomination of Directors, and these provisions constitute the
“Nomination Policy” of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and HKEx.

In 2018, the Nomination Committee:

*  reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Board diversity;

*  reviewed and assessed the independence of INEDs;

*  made recommendations to the Board about the retirement and
reappointment of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company; and

* assessed individuals suitably qualified to become the Directors
and the Chief Executive Officer, and made recommendation to
the Board on individuals nominated for directorship.
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Directors’ Attendance at Meetings EENERLESBR

The Directors’ attendance records at the following meetings in FER T N\FHEUTSHENLESHIOT :

2018 are set out below:

Chairman and Non-Executive Director: TERFHTES :

Dr. MA Weihua 2/5 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/2
SHERT TER TER T

Executive Directors: $IfTEE :

Mr. XU Peixin 3/5 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/2
TRm R £ TR T T
Mr. SUN Lei* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
RaRE TER TER TER TER TiER TER
Mr. ZHU Dong 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 2/2
REKAE TER TER TEm
Mr. BIAN Fang™ 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 0/2
ThARET TR T TR

Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHTES -

Dr. QI Daging 4/5 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1 0/2
ERERT
Mr. CHEN Yigong 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1 0/1 0/2
BRI %4
Mr. FENG Zhonghua 5/5 1/2 1/1 1/1 0/1 0/2
BRELE
* appointed on 24 December 2018 ’ R=B-\F+-A-+MAREME - _
“* appointed on 8 February 2018 and resigned on 24 December 2018 o EE?E%EET%Q&% “ANBERZERR-ZF-NF+ZA
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial chorting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements for cach financial year or period that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that year or period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors

have:

*  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently;

*  made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;

and
*  prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group’s financial statements. This responsibility extends to annual
and interim reports, “price sensitive” or “inside information”
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, as well as reports to regulators and information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements. The
responsibility of the External Auditors for the audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 86 to 94 of

this Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of External
Auditors should not be impaired by other non-audit assignments,
the Group ensures that assignments other than statutory audits
undertaken by External Auditors should not have an adverse impact
on their independence. The External Auditors are also required to
review their relationship with the Group and furnish confirmation

to the Audit Committee confirming their independent status.

BEMREFZ

B S
EFEERUAREESMHFENBHOABERE -
REVHREGABRAMRBAEERZEER
HREOMBRR  RERRSRE REREE
T N\FT-A=Z+-ALFENMERRE &
HE:

BRI A B BUE R

- FHBERAEMHE LM R

- URBREEEREMBRE -
EXERRANSERUAKEYHREANELT - BEEH
ESFEFHlkhiinmE  EMRRREFEHOTRE
FRIKTABER I AMEEMMEEE MEE
EREXNHE  URRBEAERTAETEENE
o RERSMmEREARRBE T - N\F+=
A=+ - BLEFEMBRRNEEHRAFHREse
BEFHANE ZBEIRE -

B B B % BN

RETAIMNEZBENE BT R LM IR T1E
HISSHRIFER  NEBERIIMNEXZBMETEE
BRI TR T EHEBIMEREETE -
SNERBEM M ARN RERASENEE  XAF
REEERHRRENERLENIBELIL

2018 3% - EREBMEEERAF

57



58

TRERBE

During 2018, the External Auditors (including any entity under
common control, ownership or management with the External
Auditors or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
having knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably
conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally)
provided the following audit and non-audit services to the Group.
Details are set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MZT—)\F - SN BN (B 45 ({7 BE 5N IS 12 2R A
XE—#Ens HEUEE XREEMAREBE
HE=ZHE B RABE RN RZ R E%
PR B B D BaE) RARRERENTH
BRNIFEZR - FEHIMT

Audit 1%

2,605,000 2,000,000

Non-audit services (Note) FEZAZ IR (M)

802,000 1,149,000

Note:

Non-audit services for both years mainly consisted of the reviews of the
Group’s interim financial reports and the performance of certain agreed-upon
procedures.

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External
Auditors confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
thereafter to the date of this Annual Report, the External Auditors
are independent of the Group in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board should oversee the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems on an on-going basis, as well as ensure that a
review of the effectiveness of these systems has been conducted
annually. Management is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the internal control and risk
management systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives and ensuring that the
Group has established and maintained an appropriate and effective
risk management system.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the overall risk

management framework of the Group and to advise the Board on
the Group’s risk-related matters.
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With the assistance of an outsourced professional firm (the
“External Consultant”), the Company compiled a Risk Management
Manual, which sets out the Group’s risk management policy, risk

management framework and risk management process, for the

ENMHBEERR(SMNEBERBD BT - XRRIEHE
REBREEFM  EPHIIAEENHRRERBOR -
B E AR KRR EIRAR - AT h0oR AR B A
RRER RREEFNEEEREZESNERS

purpose of enhancing the risk management of the Group. The Risk
Management Manual was approved and reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Risk Management Framework

The Group’s risk management framework is based on a “Three
Lines of Defence” model with a systematic approach and clearly
defined roles and responsibilities of relevant parties.

1** Line of Defence

HEofE R 2B -

21 B B HEAE 28
AEENERERERZENZEHRIER - A

BRI AEAEEBALINACREE-

E—ERE
Risk ownership Departments/ Business Units/Staff Members %%BF?/ %ﬁﬁiﬁ/ 8T
BB *  identifying existing controls relating to the risks o HPREEHEMSIEMENIEEE
in their areas and evaluating the adequacy of the o SHEESIEE R R
control;
¢ designing risk responses (i.e. actions to improve . BRENERRRRRRETEREL S

or optimise controls or mitigate risks identified
during the risk assessment process) for risks

without adequate control to mitigate risks to the

target tolerance level;

¢ implementing the risk responses for which they .

are responsible for;

*  reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of risk
responses for which they are responsible for and
update the Risk Management Task Force at least

semi-annually on the status of their risk responses

implementation.

2" Line of Defence
FEER

Risk management

EREE

Risk Management Task Force

£ (BIE B BT sRE R
AHEBRETR AL EE) - A
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REMBESEETRREHEIR
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HEWKA - Y RDBFFREAR
EREEEGRERRRELTRE
TIERREHER -

EREESHEEHK

0 providing support to the senior management o

during the process of design,

implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems,
and ensuring that it is consistently applied

across the Group;

°  maintaining and updating the risk register; .

¢ providing the risk owners with the .

methodology for conducting the risk and

control monitoring activities, providing
direction and training on how to complete
the risk response plans and other risk

reports; and

*  overseeing activities performed by risk

owners, obtaining and reviewing work

prepared by the risk owners.
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2" Line of Defence
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ERERHRE

EERR
Risk reporting Senior Management BREEASR
BB E & *  monitoring risk management process and . EEREESEINIEF & INER R
developing relevant responses to risks; HEEETR
*  certifying that they operate an effective . EARSEETAEMNNERBEIEZR
system of risk management and have & W BT A SR RS
undertaken an exercise to identify and assess REBmEHEARR
significant risks faced by the Group;
*  reporting to the Audit Committee on the . MERZESEFRRABESIERT
progress and status of the risk management HEE R &
process; and
*  reviewing the risk register and reporting the - BHERLEMN ﬁﬁil"ﬁj%*}{
effectiveness of risk management to the §E@&§$@E$ﬁﬁtﬁﬁ§ﬁﬁ}i
Audit Committee and the Board annually. o
Risk oversight Audit Committee EREEY

BB R

overseeing the Group’s overall risk
management framework and to advise the
Board on the Group’s risk-related matters;

approving the Group’s risk policies and risk
tolerances;

reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk
tolerances and policies; and

reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk control/mitigation tools
including the enterprise risk management
programme, the risk management systems,
the internal audit function relating to risk
management and the Group’s contingency
plans annually.
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3" Line of Defence

|

= iERA
Independent assurance Internal Audit Function A8 E A% Th 8
BIRE *  outsourced to the Internal Auditors; o HNHFHNEEREARS s
*  carrying out the audit plan, assessing and . ETEZEEZ TEEROWTER
analysing if the controls stated in the risk DERT P B R D R AR AW
register is sufficient and effective; and &
¢ supporting the Board through the Audit . FEREREZEeYEEEeRT

Committee in reviewing the effectiveness
and efficiency of the Group’s risk

management system.
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Risk Management Process

The 5-Step risk management process is adopted under the Group’s
risk management framework, as illustrated below:

05

UPWARD REPORTING
AND MONITORING
B LR E R R B A

N\

Risk
Management
Process
04 ABREEEF
RISK
RESPONSES

[ FEE ,

EBREEEF
AEENAREEELCHEMATSRAKEERF -
SREAIAT ¢

01

RISK IDENTIFICATION
[ B B

02

RISK ASSESSMENT
AND PRIORITISATION
EREHE R
HEOIERIEF

03

RISK OWNER APPOINTMENT
ZERBAEA
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Step 1 Departments, business units and staff KEBPS - EBEMRETHEE - EER
Risk Identification members identify the risks which will be B2 BN RS - HREES R AR E AR -
2 _% categorised into external risks, strategic

s risks and preventable risks.

Step 2 Departments, business units and staff REPY . EBBEMNEE TIEEEBERE -

Risk Assessment

and Prioritisation

e

[ B 5T 1k S BE S B R E

members assess and score the risks
identified along with their impact on the
business and the likelihood of their
occurrence, and prioritise the risks in a

logical manner.

WHE B ERBEBOTERE LT
HHRERTS - BAA FEEN T AEEHE
BERIER -

Step 3 Risk owners will be appointed to all HETEEHFERZITRBEEA - BAkE
Risk Owner identified risks. The risk owners are EANBERROMEROEXKERRER
Appointment responsible for ensuring that an analysis VYRGEAERBEN TR TEIERELE -
=% over the causes and consequences of the
EERBREE A risk is conducted and an appropriate risk

response is in place to manage the main

causes and consequences.
Step 4 Risk owners design risk response plans BB EE ARERBMEL (HhE0 - KB ZAFH
Risk Responses based on the nature of the risks (external, &) AREBR A seER N BREYERELRR
Zns strategic and preventable) and overall AR R EY X -
LK FE impact and likelihood that may result from

the risk occurring.
Step 5 Senior management monitors the risk BRERABERAKREERR  WREZ
Upward management process and report to the FEeREZCESR -
Reporting and Audit Committee and the Board.
Monitoring
FRL
M) AR E R e B

Enterprise risk management (“ERM”) Assessment

The Company conducted an ERM assessment for the year ended 31
December 2018 based on the Group’s risk management framework
to assess the risks relevant to the business of the Group through the
External Consultant. The ERM assessment report was compiled to
cover: (i) the top inherent risks of the Group; (ii) the control
assessment results; and (iii) the new controls recommended to
manage the risks. The ERM assessment report, as endorsed by the

Audit Committee, was presented to the Board for review.
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Internal Control

The Board assesses the effectiveness of the internal control system
through the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit Committee
have decided to outsource the review of the internal control system
to the Internal Auditors and the Board has delegated to the
management the design, implementation and monitoring of the
internal control system as well as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls procedures. The Board shall

review the need for establishing an internal audit function annually.

Control Environment

The review of the internal control system by the Internal Auditors
has made reference to the “COSO” framework (the internal control
framework developed by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission). The expectations of
the Company regarding duty and integrity are clearly stated in the
Company’s Code of Conduct and Staff Handbook, as well as the
policies and procedures manuals, which set out the rules and
policies, for the Directors and employees to follow. These cover all
aspects of administrative and operational activities, including
relationships with customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow
staff. The internal control system covers every activity and
transaction of the Group. The system is based on clear stewardship
responsibilities, authorities and accountability. Our employees are
an important part of our internal system and the Group expects
them to contribute to that system. In addition to setting our
guidelines, principles and values, the Group recognises that an
environment where employees feel free to bring problems to
management is also necessary to make our internal control system

successful.

Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and employees, assisted by the
Internal Auditors with particular professional experience in
assessing risks and control procedures, have evaluated the
Company’s control environment, conducted risk assessments of
businesses and processes, and documented those processes that are
critical to the Group’s performance.

Qualified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor
the system of controls on an ongoing basis and the Chief Financial
Officer has to report any significant changes, deficiencies and
material weaknesses in, and fraud related to, internal controls to
the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors.
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Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the internal audit plan designed by the Internal
Auditors and agreed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Auditors
review the Company’s internal control system every year in such a
way that the review of all the major components of the internal
control system are completed within a period of three years. The
Internal Auditors provide recommendations to management to
improve internal controls after each review for management and

Audit Committee’s consideration.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Company’s
shareholders were identified.

The Board, through the Audit Committee with the assistance of the
External Consultant and the Internal Auditors, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2018 respectively. The
Board has received a confirmation from management on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and is satisfied that such systems are effective and adequate
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS ETHICS

Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees (the
“Code of Conduct”) has long been established to ensure that both
Directors and employees are kept abreast of and fulfill a set of
defined ethical obligations and appropriate behaviours when
conducting businesses and/or performing their duties. The Code of
Conduct also provides guidance on responsibility to the Group’s
sharcholders, customers and the community. Any member in breach
of the Code of Conduct is subject to disciplinary action. The Code
of Conduct is updated from time to time, taking into account

changes in the relevant legislation and the business environment.
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Price-sensitive and/or inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive and/or inside information, the

Company:

* isaware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance that information
that is expected to be price sensitive or inside information
should be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable;

*  conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission in 2012;

*  has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

*  has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs. Senior
management of the Group are identified and authorised to act
as the Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in
allocated areas of issues.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, procedures including preclearance on dealing in
Company’s securities by designated Director, notification of black-
out period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors
and employees, identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information to stated purpose and on a need-to-
know basis have been implemented by the Group to guard against
possible mishandling of inside information within the Group.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of the Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry by the Company, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Securities

Code throughout the year 2018.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with sharcholders
is essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the Group’s
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Major means of
communication with sharcholders of the Company are as follows:
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Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about
the Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. The Company
maintains a corporate website (www.bison.com.hk) where
important corporate information and other relevant financial and
non-financial information such as annual reports and interim
reports, notices and announcements, circulars and other
information are available for review by sharcholders and other
stakeholders.

General Mcctings with Shareholders

The Company’s annual general meetings and special general
meetings provide a useful platform for direct communication
between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general

meetings.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange
for the notice to sharcholders to be sent in the case of annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting
and to be sent at least 10 clear business days before in the case of all
other meetings. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, all
sharcholders have 21 clear days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) and Special General Meeting (“SGM”) for the
passing of a special resolution, and 14 clear days’ notice of all other
general meetings at which the Directors and Committee chairmen
or members are available to answer their questions. A
representative (usually the engagement partner) of the External
Auditors also attends the AGM and will take questions from
sharcholders relating their audit of the Company’s financial

statements.

The 2018 AGM was held on 8 June 2018. The poll results of the
2018 AGM were published on the websites of the Company and
HKEx. The 2019 AGM has been scheduled to be held on Tuesday,
18 June 2019.

Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
(other than on procedural and administrative matters) are taken by
poll. The results of any voting by poll are announced and published
as soon as possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before
the earlier of the commencement of the morning trading session or
any pre-opening session on the business day following the meeting,
on the websites of the Company and HKEx.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the sharcholders of
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules:

Con Vening of special genel‘al meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, sharcholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board of the Company to convene a
SGM for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. The request must be in written form with the purpose
of the meeting stated therein, duly signed by the sharcholders
concerned and deposited at our principal place of business in Hong
Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of
the confirmation by the Company’s Share Registrars that the
request is valid, the Company Secretary will arrange to convene a
SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the statutory requirements to all the registered

shareholders.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meelings l)/v shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of those shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meetings may submit a written request to move a resolution at
general meetings. The procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings (including nominating a person for election as a
Director) are set out in the Company’s Shareholders’
Communication Policy, which is available on the website of the

Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the Company
Secretary through (852) 2165 3000 or e-mail at
cosec@bison.com.hk or directly by questions at an AGM or SGM.
Questions on the procedure for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or a SGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary at the same means.
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Dividend Policy

Subject to the laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company,
the Board may from time to time declare dividends as appear to the
Board to be justified by the profits of the Company in any currency
and amount to be paid to the sharcholders. Any dividend for a
financial year shall be subject to sharcholders’ approval.

The Board may from time to time pay to the sharcholders interim
dividends or special dividends as appear to the Board to be justified
by the profits of the Company.

In addition to cash, dividends may be satisfied wholly or in part by
the distribution of specific assets of any kind and in particular of
paid up shares credited as fully paid up, debentures or warrants to
subscribe securities of the Company or any other company, or in
any one or more of such ways, with or without offering any rights
to the shareholders to elect to receive such dividend in cash. In case
of dividends to be satisfied wholly or in part in the form of an
allotment of shares credited as fully paid up, the Shareholders
entitled thereto will be entitled to elect to receive such dividend (or
part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
form and dividend amount, the Board takes into account the
following factors:

*  Financial results of the Group

*  Shareholders’ interests

¢ Operations and future prospect of the Group

¢ Capital and investment requirements

¢ Other factors the Board may deem relevant

There can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any given financial year.

Constitutional Documents

There were no changes made to the constitutional documents of the
Company in 2018. An updated version of the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws of the Company is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEx.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The directors (the “Directors”) of Bison Finance Group Limited (the
“Company”) submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Change of Company Name

S
As approved by the then sharcholders at the special general meeting

of the Company held on 16 March 2018, the change of the English
name of the Company from “RoadShow Holdings Limited” to “Bison
Finance Group Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name “8
ReREBERART as the secondary name of the Company in
place of its then existing name in Chinese “BRBIZERER AR
(which has been used for identification purpose only) have both
become effective on 16 March 2018. The Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name and the Certificate of Secondary
Name were both issued by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda
on 27 March 2018. The Certificate of Registration of Alteration of
Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 16 April 2018 confirming
the registration of the new English name and the secondary name of
the Company in Hong Kong pursuant to Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Principal Place of Business

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company has been
changed from Flat D, 2/F, HK Spinners Industrial Building, Phase
5, 760-762 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong to
Rooms 4105-06, 41/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect from 18 April 2018.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of media sales and design
services and production of advertisements for transit vehicle
exteriors and interiors, online portal, mobile apps, shelters,
outdoor signages advertising businesses and the provision of
integrated marketing services covering these advertising platforms.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group started to
engage in insurance brokerage services in the PRC and other

financial services.
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The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. The
analysis of the principal activities of the operations of the Group
during the financial year are set out in note 2 to the financial
statements.

Recommended Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$Nil).

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and the description of the risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing are set out in the Letter from the Board on
pages 2 to 4 and Operational Review on pages 5 to 10 of this
Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’
Report.

The risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set
out on pages 58 to 64 of this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in Financial
Highlights on page 11 and Financial Review on pages 12 to 18 of
this Annual Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group respects the environment and is committed to building
awareness of environmental conservation and minimising its carbon
footprints through efficient use of resources, employing green office
initiatives and promoting environmental awareness among
employees and the public. The Group understands the implications
of climate change for the entire world and is committed to
minimising the potential impact of its operations on the
environment.

In 2018, the Group supported various meaningful local green events
in town such as “Earth Hour 2018” of World Wide Fund and
“Amazing Greeners” of Greeners Action.

In relation to the efficient use of resources, the Group has
introduced various measures including, improving the office
environment to help conserve energy, using more energy-efficient
LED lights to reduce electricity consumption and the need for
air-conditioning, encouraging double-sided printing, less colour
printing and paperless practices to reduce carbon footprints. The
concept of “Reduce”, “Reuse” and “Recycle” are heavily promoted.
Employees are also encouraged to treasure food and minimise waste
and noise.
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During the year under review saw the Group’s continuous
commitment to greener office operations honoured by the World
Green Organisation’s United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals Green Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards.

For details of the Group’s environmental policy, performance and
commitments during the year, please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and chulations

On the Group’s business and operational levels, before using any
information, programme, music video or photo which is not owned
or taken by the Group, the Group shall identify the copyright
owner, ascertain the ownership of the relevant copyright work and
obtain consent from the copyright owner. In addition, if any
advertisement is placed by the advertiser which may have legal or
compliance issues with applicable laws, rules or regulations, such
advertisement shall be pre-vetted by the Group in accordance with
the advertising guidelines of the Group before acceptance of
publication. The Group keeps reminding employees of and
emphasising the importance of safeguarding the security of personal
data. When collecting and processing such data, the Group complies
with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and the guidelines
issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data.
The Group will not use or provide personal data to any person for
use in direct marketing unless we have obtained the data subject’s
consent in writing. For the business operations of the Group which
involves regulated entities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”), the Group has formulated internal guidelines
and has engaged compliance officers to ensure compliance with the

SFO.

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to
complying with the requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, and ordinances relating to disability, sex, family status
and race discrimination, as well as the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety of employees of the Group, so as to safeguard the interests

and well-being of its employees.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the SFO for, among other things, the disclosure
of information and corporate governance, and the Group has
adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set

out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets of the
Group. With a view to retaining talents, the Group offers a
comprehensive and competitive remuneration and benefits package
to all its employees. On-the-job training and development
opportunities are provided to employees to enhance their career
progression. The Group also encourages work-life balance by
organising charitable, corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) and
staff-friendly activities for employees, which are vital to promote
staff relationship and communication.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the key customers of the
Group include the advertisers and the advertising agents
(collectively, the “Advertisers”). Delivering top-quality services to
the Advertisers is our top priority. To ensure customers’
satisfaction, the Group actively collects feedback from the
Advertisers and deals with complaints within 24 hours. Most of the
Advertisers have established long-term business relationships with
the Group which ensures steady advertising income of the Group.

During the year under view, the largest supplier of the Group was
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”). The
Group has maintained long-term and close business relationship
with KMB over the years. The other key suppliers of the Group
include advertising production or outdoor media companies. The
Group has also established long-term and good relationships with
these suppliers which ensures steady supply so as to provide high
quality products and services to customers.

Shares Issued and Share Capital

During the year, for the purpose of providing an opportunity for
the Company to broaden the sharcholder base and satisfy the
genuine business needs of (i) redeeming the promissory notes in the
principal amount of HK$220.0 million issued in relation to the
acquisition of Target Capital Management Limited; and (ii)
expanding the Media Business, 187,500,000 shares of the Company
were allotted and issued to not less than six independent placees at
the placing price of HK$1.44 per share pursuant to the placing
agreement dated 13 April 2018 entered into between the Company
and a placing agent (the “Placing”). The gross proceeds from the
Placing were HK$270.0 million, and the net proceeds, after
deducting the placing commission, professional fees and all related
expenses which may be borne by the Company, from the Placing
was approximately HK$269.6 million.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

=
RAFERBEARE AHILOEENT :

Dr. MA Weihua”

BEER L

Mr. XU Peixin®

MR AT

Mr. SUN Lei* Appointed on 24 December 2018
REExLE" RZZE-NF+ZA-+NBEZF

Mr. ZHU Dong*
RRLES

Dr. QI Daqing”
BREEL

Mr. CHEN Yigong*
PR JR I 48 4

Mr. FENG Zhonghua®
R EE S A

Mr. BIAN Fang*
N7 A

Appointed on 8 February 2018 and resigned on 24 December 2018
R-E-—N\E-_ANBREZEIR - N\F+ - -+HHBE

Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 86(2), Mr. SUN Lei,
who was appointed as a Director with effect from 24 December
2018, will hold office only until the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87 and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
Mr. CHEN Yigong and Mr. FENG Zhonghua will retire from the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one

year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

compensation.

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out on pages 19 to 23 of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and EERHSTRASRKRG - HERO K
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and BEEENERRAR

Debentures

The Directors who held office on 31 December 2018 and have TIRE (BHERBEKD) F32 KR TEEAFTENES
interests in the shares of the Company, and its associated REmTRA B R A B BRMmgs RZT—N
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) at that FHZA=+—BEERRZBRAR R AR EE
date as recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’ (BEER (BHEREEG) ExvEl) BRMPERE

interests and short positions required to be kept under section 352 THEE  SREETRAMNESET (EMBETAESE
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock TREHFRGMZESTR]) MASITMG AR T LB EH
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to ~ AXZFHAARAT ( [BFT] ) MERESIINT
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers under the Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are set out as

follows:

Interests in issued shares of the Company and associated corporations of the Company

RAXFARADFANEBEBEERITROPNER

The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AQT BREEBRY 0.1 THEBER

Mr. XU Peixin (“Mr. Xu”) (Note 1) - - 680,508,005
MR ([HRAE]) (Hit1)

680,508,005 57.43%

Mr. ZHU Dong 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0.08%
REEHE

Bliss Chance Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”) (Note 2): Ordinary shares of no par value
EERRERAA(EE) (HiZ2): BHELER

Mr. Xu (Note 3) - ~ 325,119,444 ~ 325,119,444 100.00%
RIEE(H73)

Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited (“Bison Capital”) (Note 2): Ordinary shares of US$1.00 each
AREFERERBRAR (AREXR]) (H#2) BREE 1.00 ETHEER

Mr. Xu (Note 3) 1 - - - 1 100.00%
R (H5#3)

Notes: e &E -

1. These 680,508,005 shares of the Company are held by Bliss Chance, all 1. ZEARRAS80,508,005 RN EBHEERA MEELHE
the ordinary shares of which are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison BRYBERELRZERERES - ERERABKRELE
Capital. Bison Capital is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu. PERERES BREBEC(GEFRBEEA) EXVE - Rk
Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by EWBRRAREERANARBRNRHER#E -

Bliss Chance for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Tt

EREREARARRBNERAF -

Bliss Chance and Bison Capital are the holding companies of the Company. 2.

All the ordinary shares of Bliss Chance are wholly and beneficially owned 3. EEXMETBBRHYBEREAZERERER AHRER

by Bison Capital. Bison Capital is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by AR EETEREREAR - RECGEFRPEKH) - %
Mr. Xu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in the EEWBRREREARBENSERGTHEEER - RE
shares of Bliss Chance held by Bison Capital. Mr. Xu is a director of Bliss HEEERERERNES -

Chance and Bison Capital.
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Short Positions in issued shares of the Company and associated corporations of the Company

REAQXBDRADANEBEZEERTROPHNXE

The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AAFBREERE 01 THEBR

Mr. Xu (Note 1) - -
tREE (i)

678,259,144 -

678,259,144 57.24%

Bliss Chance: Ordinary shares of no par value

EE - ERELER

Mr. Xu (Note 2) - _
tREE (Hit2)

325,119,444 -

325,119,444 100.00%

Notes:

1. 678,259,144 shares of the Company held by Bliss Chance have been
charged in favour of Fruitful Worldwide Limited (“Fruitful Worldwide”).
Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China Huarong International
Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. All the ordinary shares of Bliss Chance are wholly
and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital is in turn wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is
deemed to be interested in the short positions in the shares of the
Company held by Bliss Chance.

2. Bliss Chance is the holding company of the Company. All ordinary shares
of Bliss Chance held by Bison Capital have been charged in favour of
Fruitful Worldwide. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is deemed to be
interested in the short positions in the shares of Bliss Chance held by Bison
Capital.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

P 5T

1. EERHANERDREGCS,259,14488 IR 5 B H  FFruitful
Worldwide Limited ([ Fruitful Worldwide]) © Fruitful Worldwide
AP EERBRERERAREERER @ i EERER
ERERARAUATHEREETERNERAFARE
BE-ZE2BEAEROBEAREL2EREREE - B
REARBGBEELZBERESRA - REBGESFRPERK
P)  BRAERBEANEERANARRRABRN P2 XA
AR -

2. EEARQATNEZERAT  EREAFENES2PLRE
f% 2 4K 4 F Fruitful Worldwide © RIE(EH R BEEH) - %
FEWRARERERHENEERGF 2ABR AR -

L& ARBEERESTRABRERAE
RAIHEAEMBEER (E&E R (GEHRBEERD)
ExvEp) WD HERDEREREPESRR
B(EARBE R EARRERFENE LM
EHRBIBRB(ETETAEZTETELRRHZNIEE
STADEMEARR LB RZAERIAR
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Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the then sharcholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8
June 2018.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company as a reward for their contribution and
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its sharcholders as a whole. The Share Option Scheme will
provide the Company with a flexible means of either retaining,
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or

providing benefits to participants.

2. The participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
employees, directors (including independent non-executive
director), shareholders, suppliers, customers, consultants,
business or joint venture partners, franchisees, contractors,
agents, advisers, lenders or financiers of the Group and
associates of any of the foregoing persons.

3. The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 118,486,533 shares,
representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company as at 22
March 2019 (the date of this Annual Report).

4. The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

5. The exercise period of any share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period must
not exceed ten years from the date of grant of the relevant
share options.

6. The Board has the authority to determine any minimum
period(s) for which a share option must be held before it can
be exercised. However, it is not a mandatory condition for the
participant(s) to hold the share options for a minimum period
before exercise of the share options granted.
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7. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the share options
must be made within 14 days from the date of offer with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from each participant.

8. The subscription price of share options shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme on 8 June 2018.

There is no outstanding option at the beginning and the end of the
reporting period and no option has been granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed pursuant to the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

Share Award Scheme

In order to (i) complement the Share Option Scheme; (ii) provide
incentives for the participants to continuously make substantial
contributions for the long-term growth of the Group in the future;
(iii) further align the interests of the selected participants directly
to the sharcholders of the Company through ownership of shares of
the Company; (iv) attract and retain talented participants who may
be beneficial to the growth and development of the Group; and (v)
encourage or facilitate the holding of shares of the Company by the
participants, on 24 August 2018, the Company adopted the share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) under which shares of
the Company (the “Award Shares”) may be awarded to selected
participants which include employees, directors (including
executive and non-executive directors), officers, agents or
consultants of the Group pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules
and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme on

24 August 2018.
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In connection with the implementation of the Share Award Scheme,
the Board or the Board committee may from time to time cause to
be paid certain funds to the trustee for the subscription of new
shares of the Company and/or purchase of the existing shares of the
Company (either on-market or off-market) and to hold them in
trust for the benefit of the selected participants and for the
satisfaction of awards granted or to be granted under the Share
Award Scheme upon vesting. The trustee shall not exercise any
voting right in respect of any Award Shares held in trust by it under
the Share Award Scheme.

Subject to the provisions of the Share Award Scheme, the Board or
the Board committee may, from time to time, grant such number of
Award Shares (subject to any vesting criteria and conditions or
periods for the Award Shares to be vested as determined by the
Board or the Board Committee) to any selected participants at a
price (i) equal to or lower than the average subscription price per
share of all shares of the Company subscribed by the trustee at the
date of grant (other than those Award Shares granted but not yet
vested) (in the case of subscription of new shares) or (ii) equal to or
lower than the average purchase price per share of all shares of the
Company purchased by the trustee as at the date of grant (other
than those Award Shares granted but not yet vested) (in the case of
purchase of existing shares) on and subject to such terms and
conditions as it may in its absolute discretion determine.

The Company shall not make any further grant of award which will
result in the number of shares of the Company granted under the
Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time.

During the year, the Company purchased an aggregate of
24,644,000 shares of the Company from the market through the
trustee at a total cost of HK$29,405,660 (excluding all related
expenses, transaction levy, brokerage, tax, duties and levies). As at
31 December 2018, 24,644,000 shares of the Company were held
by the trustee for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

During the year, no Award Shares were granted to any selected
participants pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 31(a)
to the financial statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018

D BB ENERNS EFEXAEFELE
SATHERERNZFTAINE TERUARBARA
RO R/ REEARARRERG (THRETHRTIS
tBE) YABEZ2EENNERNBER LR
R BB S E R D SR D ER M IAE
TABBEBRARD - XEARERKN ZEETET
REFEATIS A N ER R RO T SITEIREE -

RO ZBFENGEXORRT EFELEFE
ZEEUTHAEE2EERTARBE 2 BB
h(EEAXBRREFEXUEFTELREBTLHRE
RERGAREE) - BTEREOHESFRHERE
HEAMZEAERBOABEARRRN (B LA
) R 57 B 2 SRR A D RSN MV B A F 1 RIEE (R &R
BB 2BR) R FERNHERZFEAREH
HHECBENMEARRAIRND (ERTFEE KRGS
ZEBBROEIN NERTFHBEE (RNBERAK
2 BR)

R BV — B AT A B2 i 28 BUR R A% 19 48
B ERENARRROBE BBARRTRE
TR BRBEY 10% °

FA - ARABIBEBRIFTEARTISEAS 24,644,000

B AR QR I 0 BN BB 029,405 66070 (B3R
FTERMER BB B HE HELH

) e MZZE—NE+-_A=1+—8 - stRHER:T
BMS » LA B 24,644,00008 K A B EAD ©

FA-TEREEROZBFERTIMEESEER
B2 B AR oD o

o

Rt 22 Rh AT Bl M — SR B RN M R KM 310 ©

By ERR

ARAREREEMHRANE 3 ENRE  HESE
VHMTEFNFEBLMLERAE URF/DEE
MIFRITESTHREIIE -



Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

On 23 January 2018, Bison Financial (Hong Kong) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Bison Capital Holding Company
Limited (“Vendor 17), Bison Capital Fashion Limited (“Vendor 27),
Mr. TSE Sze Pan, Ms. LIU Li Ping and Ms. LU Rong in relation to
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Target Capital
Management Limited, BTS Investment Limited, BTY Investment
Limited, NanTai Investment Limited and Shangtai Asset
Management Limited for the total consideration of HK$270.0

million (the “Acquisition”).

As Vendor 1 and Vendor 2 are companies wholly and beneficially
owned by Ms. JIANG Feng Yun, the spouse of Mr. XU Peixin, an
Executive Director and the ultimate beneficial owner of the
controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. XU Peixin was
regarded as having a material interest in the Acquisition. The
Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the Acquisition
have been disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28
February 2018. Completion of the Acquisition took place on 14
December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other persons’ FERRRHEMATRERSG REERGH
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and, BRRkAR

Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the RZE-NF+ZA=+T—H BARFESEER
persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the Company) BITBA BN AT RAR A S HEMEEEE (B
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its ER(BHREEGN) FExvEL) Bk G5 & HER D
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) ~ R # A RIE (FE 7 LI E & M) BExval F2830 578
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange MEARARFRERIARBFARNRTBREBE(ES R

pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required HIEIEDI) 336 ITF EMECMMERSOAR T ¢
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Bliss Chance (Note 1) Beneficial owner 680,508,005 57.43%

E&8 (Wit ESHAA

Bison Capital (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 57.43%

ARER(Hit2) REHEE RS

Ms. JIANG Feng Yun (Note 3) Interest of spouse 680,508,005 57.43%

BRER L (Hi3) Lk e

Fruitful Worldwide (Note 4) Person having a security interest 678,259,144 57.24%

in shares

Fruitful Worldwide (#77#4) RBROPERRIEERZOHAL

China Huarong International Person having a security interest 678,259,144 57.24%
Holdings Limited (Note 4) in shares

oh B 2 R R B R AR R A B (M 424) R A7 R A AR B R ) A

China Huarong Asset Management Person having a security interest 678,259,144 57.24%
Co., Ltd. (Note 4) in shares

TREEREETERMARDA (Hids) RROTEERIJEZMHA

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Beneficial owner (Note 5) 30,000,000 2.53%
Financial Holdings Limited EmEA A (Hits)

REES (BR) 2RERBRAF Person having a security interest 103,624,000 8.75%

in shares (Note 6)

RO P HEBREESOAL

(Htite)
Cruiser Determined Limited (Note 7) Beneficial owner 103,624,000 8.75%
Cruiser Determined Limited (#7:%7) BEDEB A
Mr. TAN Bin (Note 7) Interest of controlled corporation 103,624,000 8.75%
BW R E (HiE7) REEEENE S
Ms. DENG Xianzi (Note 8) Interest of spouse 103,624,000 8.75%
B F 2+ (K1 72s) R
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Notes: B 5

1. Bliss Chance owns 680,508,005 shares of the Company. 1. = E# B KR 71680,508,005 fEA% 7 °

2. As Bliss Chance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bison Capital, Bison 2. HREERAEREANZEMBRR  REEHFRHE
Capital is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of the BB BEREARAEWRAREERBAATIRNSZHE
Company held by Bliss Chance under the SFO. BIRG PHEE s o

3. Ms. JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. Xu. She is deemed to be 3. BEZATABREENREB HEKANRAKAR
interested in 680,508,005 shares of the Company which represents the 680,508,005 19 R HE B R - BECEF AR IEDI) Exv
same interest of Mr. Xu for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. BHmME  ZEEREREEEENERER -

4. 678,259,144 shares of the Company held by Bliss Chance have been 4, EEEHBAMHAKRRA6TS,259, 1440 B D E K F Fruitful
charged in favour of Fruitful Worldwide. As Fruitful Worldwide is Worldwide ° Fi FFruitful WorldwideF 7 B 5 g B BX 122 1% 5 fR
wholly-owned by China Huarong International Holdings Ltd., which in NAIZEHEE  MPBRERBEBRERARAR A BHEZE
turn is wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd., RMEEETEROHAERABZERSE - WHCEHFRBAEKEN)
China Huarong International Holdings Ltd. and China Huarong Asset ExvElmE  PREERBEABRERERAFLPEERE
Management Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the security interest EBERG AR ARG ER BB E IR T Fruitul Worldwide
in the 678,259,144 shares of the Company charged in favour of Fruitful BN A B678,259, 144 fX % 1) R B IR B 2% o
Worldwide for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

5. Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited owns 5 REZEH (BB 2mERARRD R B A A §30,000,000
30,000,000 shares of the Company. A& A1

6.  Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited is interested 6. REFES(FB)RIERAR A BN R 71103,624,000%
in the security interest in 103,624,000 shares of the Company. Rt PR IREE R

7. Cruiser Determined Limited owns 103,624,000 shares of the Company. 7. Cruiser Determined Limited$5 4 28 72 5]103,624,0000% f% 15 °
As Cruiser Determined Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. A Cruiser Determined Limited B BW A A2 E R EmBE 1R
TAN Bin, Mr. TAN Bin is deemed to be interested in the same number of B(EHFRBEE) - BEWEERE AR AR Cruiser
shares of the Company held by Cruiser Determined Limited under the Determined Limited$ 78 A A B[R S8 E MR R A ER ©
SFO.

8. Ms. DENG Xianzi is the spouse of Mr. TAN Bin. She is deemed to be 8. BB FRITABWAENEBS HHEKARAEAADA

Short positions in the issued shares of the Company

RERNBEBTRONKR

interested in 103,624,000 shares of the Company which represents the
same interest of Mr. TAN Bin for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

103,624,000 f% 10 7 A 20 - BLCEZ R B RD]) Fxv
WME  ZEESEENEEHBNRRELS -

Bliss Chance (Note 1) Beneficial owner 678,259,144 57.24%
B8 (fr#t1) BERlAA
Bison Capital (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 678,259,144 57.24%
ARER(Wit1) REtDEESER
Ms. JIANG Feng Yun (Note 2) Interest of spouse 678,259,144 57.24%
BREEL L (Hi2) BBa R

2018 ¥R - BREMEEERAA
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Notes:

1. 678,259,144 shares of the Company held by Bliss Chance have been
charged in favour of Fruitful Worldwide. Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-
owned by China Huarong International Holdings Limited., which in turn
is wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. All the
ordinary shares of Bliss Chance are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison
Capital. Bison Capital is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu.
Bison Capital is deemed to be interested in the short position of shares of
the Company of Bliss Chance for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

2. Ms. JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. Xu. She is deemed to be
interested in the short position of the shares of the Company of Mr. Xu
for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of
the SFO have been notified to the Company.

Contract of Significance

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts”, there was no contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2018.

Competing Interests

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors were not
aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the controlling
Shareholders and their respective close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) that competes or may compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflict of interest, which any such
person has or may have with the Group.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively

during the financial year is as follows:

IBEFRHER
RAMBRFERN AEBEBEF REEESH BIE
R E R BEARMT ;

The largest customer SARE 7%
Five largest customers in aggregate AARFEAR 25%
The largest supplier SAMHERS 46%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARHEFEE 66%

No Director who held office at 31 December 2018 nor any of his
close associates; nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) had any interest in the largest suppliers.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities,
except that the trustee of the Share Award Scheme purchased a total
of 24,644,000 shares of the Company on the market at a total cost
of HK$29,405,660 (excluding all related expenses, transaction levy,
brokerage, tax, duties and levies) pursuant to the terms of the Share
Award Scheme.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws of Bermuda.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their shareholding in
the Company.

Management Contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company.

RZB-N\F+_A=+—-HEENEF HEW
ERBBALTREMBER(BEZRAN  EAEARA
BB ATRAN LS %) B A AN R P O (E A A e o

BE -HEIEBEEAQT LTRSS

FR - BREOEEENZTARBRDEETE
2 G TR A 48 B 7R 8 1529 ,405,6607T (N B2 1R AT A #H 8
B RHBE - fBe BEERREMSBAS
H24,644,00008 AN 2 &) B 19 5) + A A B Bk E AT AT B
NEMERE HEXBLRAQAB TR LHES -

BEARER
AR R 2 A48 B B B A ) L4 4 S R A
3

BBERR
AR B I R A A FI B R B AR A T A F A
B RS -

BEEEL

RBE-_ZT—N\F+-_A=1+—HILFE KAAQF
M ETEEA - AR SUEABEBT L E Bl EE
REBITMEBN IR ATERIT D EAEL -
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Equity-linked Agreements

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Shares Issued and Share
Capital”, “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” above,
no equity-linked agreement was entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2018.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 198 to 199
of this Annual Report.

Retirement Schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the local
governments of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) under the
regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes are defined
contribution plans and their particulars are set out in note 32 to the

financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders

of Bison Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bison Finance
Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 95 to 197, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Accounting for acquisition

Refer to note 28 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies on pages 107 to 108.

The Key Audit Matter

During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group
completed the acquisition of
100% of the issued share capital
of Target Capital Management
Limited (“TCM”) and related
companies for an aggregate
consideration of HK$270

million.

Goodwill arising from the
acquisition amounted to
HK$178 million, which
represented the excess of the

consideration paid over the

Group’s share of the fair value of

the identifiable net assets of the

acquired entities.

The fair values of the identifiable

assets and liabilities acquired in
the transaction was assessed by
management based on

independent valuation prepared

by external valuers.

We identified the accounting for
acquisition as a key audit matter
because of the significant impact
the acquisition have on the
consolidated financial statements
and because assessing the fair
values of the assets and liabilities
acquired can be inherently
subjective and requires
significant judgement and
estimation which increase the
risk of error or potential

management bias.

How the matter was addressed

in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
accounting for acquisition included

the following:

¢ evaluating, with the assistance
of our internal valuation
specialists, management’s
identification of acquired
intangible assets, the valuation
methodologies and
assumptions adopted by
management to assess the fair
values of the assets and
liabilities acquired, with
reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting

standards;

¢ cvaluating, with the assistance
of our internal valuation
specialists, the discount rates
used in estimating the fair
values of acquired assets and
liabilities by benchmarking
against those of comparable
companies in the same

industry; and

*  assessing the disclosures in the
consolidated financial
statements in respect of the
acquisition with reference to
the requirements of the
prevailing accounting

standards.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill

Refer to note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies on pages 120 to 122.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group acquired 100%
controlling stake in China Sports
Insurance Broker Co., Ltd
(“CSIB”) and TCM and related
companies in December 2017
and December 2018,
respectively. The principal
activity of CSIB is insurance
brokerage in the People’s
Republic of China while that of
TCM and related companies are
external asset management, fund
management and advisory. The
goodwill arising on these
acquisitions amounted to
HK$217 million, representing
30% of the Group’s net assets at

the end of the reporting period.

Management assessed goodwill
for potential impairment as at 31
December 2018 by comparing
the carrying amounts of the
cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated with
the recoverable amounts which
are also the value-in-use (“VIU”)
of the cash generating units.
Management assessed the VIU
using discounted cash flow
forecasts which involve the
exercise of significant
management judgement, in
particular in forecasting revenue
growth and operating profit, and
in determining appropriate

discount rates.

How the matter was addressed

in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
potential impairment of goodwill

included the following:

¢ evaluating the appropriateness
of management’s identification
of the cash-generating units
and the valuation methodology
adopted by management in
preparing the cash flow

forecasts;

¢ evaluating management’s cash
flow forecasts by comparing
the assumptions adopted by
management to our
understanding of the insurance
brokerage business, external
asset management, fund
management and advisory
business and by comparing key
assumptions and estimates
with relevant underlying
documentation, which
included comparing future
revenue growth and profit
margins with the historical
performance of the cash
generating unit and market

data;

*  engaging our internal valuation
specialist to assess whether the
discount rates applied in the
discounted cash flow forecasts
were within the range adopted

by similar companies;
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Key audit matters (continued)

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill (continued)

The Key Audit Matter

We identified the assessment of
potential impairment of goodwill
relating to CSIB and TCM and
related companies as a key audit
matter because the carrying value
of the goodwill is significant to
the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and also
because management’s
assessment of the value of the
future cash flows expected to be
derived from CSIB and TCM and
related companies involves
certain critical judgements in
respect of the assumptions made
which are inherently uncertain
and could be subject to

management bias.

How the matter was addressed

in our audit

performing sensitivity analyses
on the discount rates applied
and the assumptions for
revenue adopted by
management in the cash flow
forecasts to assess the impact
of changes in these key
assumptions on the conclusion
reached in management’s
impairment assessment and
whether there were any
indicators of management bias
in the assumptions adopted;

and

comparing the actual results
for the current year with
management’s forecasts made
in the previous year in order
to assess the historical
accuracy of the management’s

forecasting process o
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Key audit matters (continued)

Recoverability of accounts receivable

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies on pages 113 to 120

The Key Audit Matter

At 31 December 2018, the
Group’s accounts receivable,
after making allowances for
expected credit loss of
HK$7.5 million, amounted to
HK$142.0 million, of which
HK$66.3 million was past due.
The balance of accounts

receivable represented 19.7% of
the Group’s net assets at the end

of the reporting period.

The Group enters into sales
transactions with customers
across a number of different
sectors. These customers have
different credit profiles and the

timing of settlement of accounts

receivable can be influenced by
sector norms and the economic

environment in which the

customers operate. The Group’s

allowances for expected credit

loss are based on management’s

estimate of the lifetime expected
credit loss to be incurred, which

is estimated by taking into
account the credit history of the
Group’s customers and current
market environment and

customer-specific conditions.

At the end of each reporting
period a considerable level of
management judgement is
therefore required to determine
the amount of expected credit
loss.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recoverability of accounts
receivable included the following:

¢ understanding and evaluating
the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls relating
to the Group’s credit control,
estimate of expected credit
losses and making related
allowances;

¢ obtaining an understanding of
the key data and assumptions
of the expected credit loss
model adopted by the
management, including the
historical default data, and the
assumptions involved in
management’s estimated loss

rate;

¢ assessing the reasonableness of
management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the
information used by
management to form such
judgements, including testing
the accuracy of the historical
default data and evaluating
whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current
economic conditions and

forward-looking information;

¢ assessing whether items in the
ageing analysis of accounts
receivable were included in
the appropriate ageing
category by comparison with
the relevant sales invoices on a

sample basis; and
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Key audit matters (continued)

Recoverability of accounts receivable (continued)

The Key Audit Matter

We identified the recoverability
of accounts receivable as a key
audit matter because of the
significance of any potential
reduction in the recoverable
amount of accounts receivable to
the Group’s results for the year
and because the recognition of

expected credit loss is inherently

How the matter was addressed

in our audit

evaluating the recorded loss
allowance by comparing cash
receipts after the end of the
reporting period against
accounts receivable balances at
the end of the reporting
period, on a sample basis,
taking into account credit

terms given to the relevant

subjective and requires customers.
significant management

judgement which increases the

risk of error or potential

management bias.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Felix Kwo Hang Lee.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BET\F+-A=+—HLFE(RERFTH)

2018 2017
Note $°000 $’000
Bt 5 T T

Revenue A 2&3 414,008 348,449
Other revenue H U A 4(a) 9,918 10,759
Other net (loss)/income Hib (E18) W %5 4(b) (1,479) 14,274
Total operating revenue P PN L 422,447 373,482
Operating expenses KEBH
Royalty, licence and management fees BHNE EHENEEE (184,075) (194,574)
Cost of production BUERK 2N (74,839) (69,548)
Cost of services BR 7% Bk Zx (2,418) —
Staff expenditure ETYH (89,813) (66,598)
Depreciation and amortisation TE K (8,058) (4,764)
Repairs and maintenance BERRE (897) (2,211)
Reversal of provision/(provision) for impairment JiE UL BR BB (B fE5 18 29(a)

loss on accounts receivable B ERE,(BE) 185 (2,858)
Reversal of provision for impairment loss on H e W BR OB E B 18

other receivables BEER 3,600 —
Provision for impairment loss on property, plant ME - WERERERE 11

and equipment EBEEE - (37)
Reversal of provision for onerous contracts, net ERE B E R R F5E 25 545 13,910
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary - L NG € 13,725 -
Other operating expenses HigLE R (57,354) (48,139)
Total operating expenses 4R L R 4ERE (399,399) (374,819)
Profit/(loss) from operations REMBRR (&) 23,048 (1,337)
Finance costs BRE AN 5(a) (236) -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB A RR(EHE) 5 22,812 (1,337)
Income tax Frig#t 6(a) (6,555) (6,190)
Profit/ (loss) for the year KEEBF(FE) 16,257 (7,527)
Attributable to: EEmT
Equity sharecholders of the Company N/NETT L&D 16,257 (6,577)
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR RE RS - (950)
Profit/ (loss) for the year KEERRN(&E) 16,257 (7,527)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERN(EE) GB4) 10

(in Hong Kong cents)
Basic and diluted HEARR#EE 1.45 (0.66)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note

1(c).

The notes on pages 102 to 197 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the year are set out in note 9.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BET\F+-A=+—HLFE(RERFTH)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2018 2017
Note $°000 $’000
Mt 5 T v
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERFN(&GE) 16,257 (7,527)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHME2EKE (BRHEK
(after tax and reclassification ENOERER):
adjustments):
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HpnEHsBEEBamMER
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of the HMEEBIBINERTERER
financial statements of operations outside HE N =% MG FHRIER
Hong Kong, net of tax (8,438) 1,394
Release upon deregistration of a subsidiary A — M B A T R 27(c)(vi) (13,725) -
(22,163) 1,394
Total comprehensive income for the year KEELPHE KRS ELE (5,906) (6,133)
Attributable to: EiEmT
Equity sharcholders of the Company /NG (5,906) (5,183)
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR RE S - (950)
Total comprehensive income for the year KEEL2HEHWSAEE (5,906) (6,133)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note

1(c).

The notes on pages 102 to 197 form part of these financial statements.

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018

Hrat -

AEEER T N\F— A BNSEABTEULER
SERNESENEBH B REERF 155 o RIBATIE
BOEEE  WEEILRER - 2RME10 -

F102EEE197EHN M EBAM B REKRN — BP0



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R 3R

At 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R-ZB—N\F+-A=+—H(RE%HE)

2018 2017
Note $°000 $’000
B & T v
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MENEZE 11 40,751 15,491
Intangible assets W EE 12 68,525 =
Goodwill SES 13 217,176 40,770
Non-current prepayments and deposits BB AN A MR 14 54,843 3,218
Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE 26(b) 4,252 7,042
385,547 66,521
Current assets REEE
Accounts receivable JRE U AR 3R 16 142,023 91,737
Loan receivable U E X 17 25,080 26,400
Other receivables and deposits BEMERERRES 24,113 57,305
Other financial assets at fair value through profit RARBEFABRZ 18
or loss Hith &R A& E 29,650 -
Current tax recoverable FEU AN BR 7 1 26(a) 1,475 1,756
Pledged bank deposits BB ITER 19 98,698 98,248
Bank deposits and cash BITEFIERRE 20 245,737 250,305
566,776 525,751
Current liabilities BB E
Accounts payable FETBR IR 21 4,043 29
Other payables and accruals HimpEMNERLETER 53,775 95,227
Contract liabilities AHBE 22 53,592 =
Finance lease liabilities mEHERE 23 3,346 151
Promissory notes AHER 24 100,000 =
Provision for onerous contracts EEA LB E 25 - 545
Current tax payable JE 5 2N BA B 18 26(a) 1,627 835
216,383 96,787
Net current assets REEESE 350,393 428,964
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRGREBERE 735,940 495,485
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Finance lease liabilities mEHERE 23 3,289 590
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 26(b) 10,557 194
13,846 784
NET ASSETS EETHE 722,094 494,701

2018 3R -

EREREEERAR



98

RE MR R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZFB-N\FE+-A=+—8 (REHHH)

2018 2017
Note $°000 $’000
Bt 5 T FT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAREES

Share capital & 2 27(b) 118,487 99,737
Reserves HES 603,607 386,694

Total equity attributable to equity AATRREGESARE
shareholders of the Company 722,094 486,431
Non-controlling interests FERER - 8,270
TOTAL EQUITY A 722,094 494,701

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note

1(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

March 2019.

SUN Lei
BEZ
Executive Director

HITEF

The notes on pages 102 to 197 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-\FT-A=+—HLEFE(RBEEHEH)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FARARREL

Shares held

for share Non-
Share Share award General Contributed Other  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total ~interests equity

BUEL )

b 2 FER
ke BOEE BB -REBE RAER H4RE  NERE ZGER a3t BE ERAR

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T T T T T T

Balance at 1 January 2017 R=E-tE-A-H
fes 9737 - - 0 531,569 5 Bl (5200) 49164 900 500,834
Changes in equity for 2017: “E-LENERSD.
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - - - - - (6577) (6,577) (950) (1,507)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 Elz - - - - - - 1,394 - 1,39 - 1,394
Total comprehensive income 2EKEEE - - - - - - 1,39% (6,577) (5,183) (950) (6,133)
Balance at 31 December 2017 Nety) R=F—+ &
t=A=t-8
tes i) 99,737 = - 602 531,569 (605) 375 (158597) 486,431 §,070 494701
Impact on initial recognition of 1 ffﬁ BE R f%f& &
HKFRS 9 (Note (9} Qo v H2
Witim) - - - - - - - 1493 149 - 1,493
Adjusted balance at RZ2-NE-A-H
1 January 2018 EETS 99,737 - - 602 531,569 (605) 1375 (15,104 487924 8210 496,19
Changes in equity for 2018 CE-\ENEREE:
Profcor he yr KEEERA : - - - - - N 15 A 1517 - e
Other comprehensive income H@%Euyﬁ - - - - - - (22,163) - (22163) B (22163)
Total comprehensive income 2EkReE - - - - - - (22,163) 16,257 (5,906) - (5,06)
Placing of new share (Note 27b) RENRD Witom) 18750 250,824 - - - - - - - MM
Divided paid to a non—controlling BB
shareholder RRMRE - - - - - - - - - (8,269) (8,269)
Acquisition of nonrcontrolling interests  UREE JE R RRIE 25 - - - - - - - - - (1) (1)
Purchase of own shares for share award R {7} 52 E) ﬁ %J ﬂ% g
scheme (Note 31(a)) EEBH # i?]/(.i/) - - (29,498) - - - - - (2:499) - (248)
Deregistration ofa subsidiary THE-F it BAA
(Note 27(c)i) (W) - - - (602) - - - 602 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-B-N\%&
tZB=t-H
fes 18487 BOSH (9499) S BI 5 (388 (05 T ST

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under  ffz# + KREBER -Z— )/ \F— F — B EREBUBER

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note HEXER|F R N BB IFHREERE 155 o IBRIEFTIE
1(c). BRBEL  WESIILEER - 2RMT1c) -

The notes on pages 102 to 197 form part of these financial statements. F100BEF197EHNM B AT B HRERAH D ©
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BET\F+-A=+—HLFE(RERFTH)

2018 2017
Note $°000 $’000
(if= T T
Operating activities RETH
Profit/ (loss) before taxation BB AT AR, (EiE) 22,812 (1,337)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation and amortisation B N 8,058 4,764
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  BENLEZE
plant and equipment B8 (M) 21 (1,987)
(Reversal of provision)/provision for FEWBR FORBEEER
impairment loss on accounts receivable (B fsBem) Bl (185) 2,858
Reversal of provision for impairment H {th fE U B TR (E & 18
loss on other receivable BEER (3,600) —
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary M B A R E (13,725) —
Net unrealised gains on financial assets at RARBEFABRZEHEE
fair value through profit or loss MRS N R 58 (11) -
Provision for impairment loss on property, W% - HEKRERE
plant and equipment EiERE - 37
Interest income T2 WA (9,747) (5,260)
Interest expenses B 236 -
Reversal of provision for onerous contracts, net BB A 4B E R b F5E (545) (13,910)
Foreign exchange gain DE 3 U s (3,193) (10,461)
Operating profit/(loss) before changes EEESRIBANKY
in working capital B/ (F8) 121 (25,296)
Decrease in amount due to ultimate holding JEN SRR A B KB
company, net e RNE R - 3)
Decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries A EE NG E =N - 5,203
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEUTBE 5% (38 40) R 2> (35,314) 8,331
Decrease/ (increase) in other receivables and Hih R IR %
deposits w5 ) 4,564 (44,166)
Decrease in accounts payable FE T BR 2R (1,282) (1,948)
Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE ST TR R B B A B T IR A - (1,065)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals — E f [ 5} BR 30 & FE 51 & FB
#m/ ORd) 5,342 (6,725)
Cash used in operations ARKRETENES (26,569) (65,669)
Tax paid BHIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - BENBBNES (3,201) (4,339)
— The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) _BENFREAREME([FE])
income tax paid A8 (1,054) (579)
Net cash used in operating activities AREETHNRESFHE (30,824) (70,587)
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2018 2017

Note $°000 $’000
(if= T T
Investing activities REED
Payment for the purchase of property, BAME  WMENLBENK
plant and equipment (21,376) (7,176)
Payment for the purchase of intangible assets BAETLEENK (15,500) —
Payment for purchase for other financial BARALBEABRZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss Hitv & REEMNK (29,639) -
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries g1 TN PNGIE B 28(a) (243,476) (40,500)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME  BEREEDH
plant and equipment B RIE - 2,001
Increase in loan receivable JE U & FR3E N - (26,400)
Interest received B W F B 8,673 6,292
Decrease in bank deposits with original RESHEBBRE=@AN
maturities over three months RITFEFRD 888 186,642
Increase in pledged bank deposits =K R 1T 17 L N (450) (19,905)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U B8 FEIR AR ME 25 (1) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR),/ REERETEBHN
investing activities HeFHE (300,881) 100,954
Financing activities BEEE)
Repayment of finance lease liabilities EERmEREAE 23 (2:433) (73)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling sharcholder BT —RIEEBERARE (8,269) =
Placing of new shares it & 37 A& 10 27(b) 269,574 -
Proceeds from issuing promissory notes BITEN BRI A 24 320,000 .
Redemption of promissory notes BEO& N ZER 24 (220,000) -
Purchase of own shares for share award scheme BRH BT EEE LR T RG 31(a) (29,498) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) ®E(AR)METHHN
financing activities HeFHE 329,374 (73)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BERBLSZEEYCRD)
and cash equivalents FE (2,331) 30,294
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January N—A—HBNBRERESEEY 238,707 204,621
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERESEHNWTE (1,349) 3,792
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+-—A=+—-HWEEE 20
HEZEY 235,027 238,707

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note

1(c).

The notes on pages 102 to 197 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HR AR B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEERI - B ETE)
1 Significant accounting policies

(@)

(®)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
other financial assets are stated at their fair value as explained

in note 1(f).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(<)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements and estimates made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the

financial statements are discussed in note 35.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial

statements:

1) HKEFRS 9, Financial instruments

(ii) HKERS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation

that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
HKERS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments

recognition and measurement. It sets out the requirements
for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial

items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items
that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements. The Group has recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
comparative information continues to be reported under

HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

The following table summarises the impact of transition

to HKFRS 9 on accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.

1 EESFEE®
() BHBESH ()
() (BEBOBREER)E% [¢MTA]
€
TR —_ZE—N\F—A—HBEZ
(BB BREER) SR YR EE

pe-
HK$’000
T
Accumulated losses 2 BB
Reversal of expected credit losses on accounts receivable BOEWEZRNESEERR 1,493
Net decrease in accumulated losses at 1 January 2018 RZZE-—N\F—-—A—HMWRHEE
B 1,493

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to

the previous accounting policies and the transition

approach are set out below:

a.  Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier

than under the “incurred loss” accounting model in

HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
accounts receivable, loan receivable, other
receivables and deposits, pledged bank deposits,
bank deposits and cash). For further details on the

Group’s accounting policy on accounting for credit

losses, see note 1(j).

The following table reconciles the closing loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKAS 39
as at 31 December 2017 with the opening loss

allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9

as at 1 January 2018.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEESFEE®)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(© BHBERD(E)
() (BEBHBHEEN)Zo% [2BTA)

(&)
a.  Credit losses (continued) a. 1EEERE(K)
HK$’000
T
Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 RZFB—tF+=-A=+—HBRE
(BB ER)FEIHETHEERE 9,192
Reversal of expected credit losses on accounts R-ZZE—\F—F — B¥ERE L EIRER
receivable recognised at 1 January 2018 NEEEEE (1,493)
Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 R-ZTE—N\F— A —BRBE(EBUER
EAERA) BT EE E M E B R A 7,699
b.  Transition b. BE
Changes in accounting policies resulting from the B TPt s - EER R CE S B 15 R
adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied S XERBI) o5k i 5| BUA) & 5T BUR 2
retrospectively, except as described below: BEEMER :

—  Information relating to comparative periods has — BAMNERALERERTE
B o FNCKBEBI B IRELER]D
FoRFMEBeMEEREMBE L
ZEER-_ZT-N\F—H—AZ
EAERELFEERBER -
2018. Accordingly, the information presented I ZE—tFE2IHNERE
for 2017 continues to be reported under HKAS BRIBE(E BT ER]) F395%
39 and thus may not be comparable with the =t RSP A R N S R
current period. LEER -

not been restated. Differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in

accumulated losses and reserves as at 1 January

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) (BEBHBHEEER)E 155 [EFEHN
KA
(BAEVBRELA)F 1R RERRA
BEF A KU B 3 Lo A 32 37 — {47
BIER (FRMBME LR F155H

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which

covered revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering

of services.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method. Therefore, comparative information
has not been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group has
applied the new requirements only to contracts that were
not completed before 1 January 2018. The Group
assessed that initial application of HKFRS 15 would have
no impact on the opening balance of equity at 1 January

2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

HKFRS 15 does not have material impact to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements except the recognition
of receivables and contract liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Further details are set out

below:

Recognition of receivables and contract liabilities

Previously, the Group recognised accounts receivable
when the Group issued invoice to customers before the
transfer of goods or services and the payment is due,
with the corresponding credit being recognised as
deferred income under “other payables and accruals” in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the
Group has an unconditional right to consideration.
Before the transfer of goods or services, a receivable is
not recognised until the payment becomes due.
Accordingly, the Group no longer recognises accounts
receivable and deferred income upon invoice issuance
when the goods or services have not been transferred and

the payment is not due yet.

To reflect these changes the Group has made the
following adjustments at 1 January 2018, as a result of

the adoption of HKFRS 15:

(i) “accounts receivable” amounting to approximately
$954,000 and “deferred income” amounting to
approximately $954,000 (previously included in

“other payables and accruals”) are derecognised.

(i) “deferred income” amounting to approximately
$49,967,000 which was previously included in
“other payables and accruals” is now included under
“contract liabilities” as a separate line item in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate

share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity sharcholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss

is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s

previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Goodwill (continued)

®

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

1()(ib)).-

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other financial assets
The Group’s policies for investments in financial products are

set out below:

Investments in financial products are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investment. The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised

directly in profit or loss.

For an explanation of how the Group determines fair value of
financial instruments, see note 29(e¢). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their

classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

FESHHER®E)
(h HttemEE(H)
(A) B=F—/\F—F— ABBAHBKE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(f) Other financial assets (continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

110

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified

into one of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, in which the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is calculated

using the effective interest method (see note 1(q)

(v1)).

—  fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost. Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in

profit or loss.

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments held for trading were classified as financial
assets measured at FVPL. Any attributable transaction
costs were recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value was
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being

recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group had the positive
ability and intention to hold to maturity were classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities were stated at amortised cost (for impairment
see note 1(j)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Other financial assets (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

Interest income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method was recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(q)(vi).
Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from debt

securities were also recognised in profit or loss.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1()(iD)).-

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the

date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment 5-7 years

Billboards Over the remaining

lease term
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
Hardware and software 5 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Leaschold improvements Over the remaining
lease term
Panels Over the remaining

lease term

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,

are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1

Bison Finance Group Limited ©

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Intangible assets and amortisation

)

(i)

(i)

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete the development. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)

and impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 1(j)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives from the date they are

available for use as follows:

Customer relationship 10 years
Fund contracts 5 years
Website and mobile apps 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that
the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change and
in accordance with the policy for amortisation of

intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

@)

(0))

Accounts receivable and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of

time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(j)

@)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(4) Policy applicable from [ January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on

the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including accounts receivable, loan receivable,
other receivables and deposits, pledged bank
deposits, bank deposits and cash)

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
other financial assets, are not subject to the ECL

assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows

that the Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

(4) Policy applicable from [ January 2018 (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of

discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, accounts receivable,
loan receivable, other receivables and deposits,
pledged bank deposits, bank deposits and cash:
effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition or an approximation thereof; and

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective

interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which

the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions

and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;

and

—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the
ECL model applies.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

(4) Policy applicable from [ January 2018 (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for accounts receivable are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at

the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held). The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or

effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

(4) Policy applicable from [ January 2018 (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or

interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal

credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration

in the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s

ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit

risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying

amount through a loss allowance account.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 DB (8)
() BEECEBRERREE(E)
() EHITAZEEEHEE)
(4) Policy applicable from [ January 2018 (continued) A) B=ZFE—NFE—H—HEFHNE

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1 (q)(vi) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)

of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future

cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes the following observable events:
—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the

issuer.

& (&)

FTEF S U aS my A

B AR B 21 (q)(vi) T FR B9 FI B AT
RECHEEZARERENE B
IZeMmEELREERE Tt
ERT  FERATIRES#EE
ZE SRR (BN AR E RS 1B BE)
FrE

EA%i&iEIHﬂ SEFEEHEE
EELBREERE - EELE—IARX
%IaiTi}@EQF{ﬁE‘I“*%iE@MLE
BEANFENENR 2REED
BREERE-

EREELRACEERENEEEE
AT R E A

- BEBABEAMBERE

—  EH - PR sk R EER
B A

- ERARERESCETHEME
HEM

- Bt W5 BREIERRE
HIREANE B M EHAEK
THIEE %

- HRBEOTALBUBRE &
FIEBmISHEK -

2018 3% - AHREMEBBRAA 117



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

)

(8

Policy applicable from [ January 2018 (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to

repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which

the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to [ January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model
was used to measure impairment losses on financial
assets not classified as at FVPL. Under the “incurred
loss” model, an impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment included:
—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market.
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to [ January 2018 (continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was

determined and recognised as follows:

For accounts receivable and other receivables
and other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, where the effect of
discounting was material. This assessment was
made collectively where these financial assets
shared similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit

risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss was reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss was only recognised to the
extent that it did not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss

been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBE®
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () EEFEBBERAEMEE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued) () EHITAZEEEHEE)
(B) Policy applicable prior to [ January 2018 (continued) B R-FE—/VF—H—HI#ERNEK
x (&)
When the recovery of accounts receivable or il S8 DA 2 88 BK A 51) BR A9 FE I AR
other financial assets carried at amortised cost R H M & Bl & &= /) A 4 E 1t
was considered doubtful but not remote, AR BT R BN IE T E ik
associated impairment losses were recorded BI| A8 BA Rk (B B 18 DA BB AR T A
using an allowance account. When the Group R0 8% o fin AN 55 B 5 4 Ui [E] 78 LR
was satisfied that recovery was remote, the BR R M & i T E 4 AR
amount considered irrecoverable was written AAFAIREMEEERZES
off against the gross carrying amount of those EWAREER B M - M
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of ZRIEF ABERORER E%
amounts previously charged to the allowance el - AEZRIE B B AR AR o
account were reversed against the allowance BERNEMESH R CATEE
account. Other changes in the allowance i 85 T H 1% W Bl B9 FROE - R
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts BERER o
previously written off directly were recognised
in profit or loss.
(ii) Impairment of other assets (i) BtEZEHE

Internal and external sources of information are REBERGEREHAREEAINE F2K

reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify B AHBTIEERTREDTR (B

indications that the following assets may be impaired or, BRIN) 2R ERNREEER

except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss BETBHEENXAED LR

previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment; — U BB REE

—  intangible assets; - EREE;

—  goodwill; and - EER

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s — AR BARRE AN E R FE

statement of financial position. & o
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any

indication of impairment.

—  Caleulation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

- R ecognition Ojf impairment Losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value

in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at

the end of the financial year (see notes 1(j)(i) and (ii)).

(k) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(q)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also

be recognised (see note 1(i)).

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, contract liabilities were presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position under
“other payables and accruals”. These balances have been
separated out as a line item in the consolidated statement of

financial position on 1 January 2018 (see note 1 (c)(ii)).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case

they are stated at cost.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(@)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with the

policy set out in note 1(j)(i).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively‘

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

FESHHER®E)
() FIEH (&)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(n) Income tax (continued)

124

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Group or the Company has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
or the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;

or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:
—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(©)

(p)

Promissory notes
Promissory notes are measured initially at fair value less

transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, promissory notes are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(s)).

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to

settle the obligation.

Provision for an onerous contract is recognised when the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower
of the cost of fulfilling the contract and any compensation or

penalties arising from failure to fulfil the contract.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Revenue and other income recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods or the provision of services in the

ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of

financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Income from bus interior and exterior advertising, multi-
media sales, and advertising on transit vehicle shelters,
online portal, mobile apps and outdoor signages is
recognised when the related advertisements are telecast
or commercials appear before the public. Revenue is
recognised over the advertising period of the related

advertisements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Revenue and other income recognition (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

Fee income from media sales management and
administrative services, production of advertisements and
advertising agency services is recognised when the

related services are rendered.

Insurance brokerage income are recognised upon the
services rendered to customers are completed and the

rights to receive payment are established.

Revenue from fund management services is recognised

over time as the services are provided.

Contractual fees earned based on the performance of
funds are a form of variable consideration in their
contracts with customers to provide investment
management services. Performance fees are earned based
on fund performance during the period, subject to the
achievement of minimum return levels, or high water
marks, in accordance with the respective terms set out in

each fund’s governing agreements.

Incentive fees will not be recognised as revenue until (a)
it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur, or (b) the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. Incentive fees are typically
recognised as revenue when realised at the end of the
measurement period. Once realised, such fees are not

subject to clawback or reversal.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018

1

FESHHER®E)
(q) YR EAMRARER (8)
AEEZ WA RE A ERIKE 2 E— 5

G

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

wr (&)

RERRBHEEE RITRRYE  BIEE
EREERERENEBKRATIEREMH
B AR MR

R RRLWARRE PR IRS T
3 B 7E R AS AR RO R AR SR o

B IR WA BE (AR 7 B B B

AERESRBMBBMOAEMNERHHE
BEPZHRHEREEERE 28K H A
EREN-BER RESESEEW
EMENBEEGR RRERAANES
REMKRER @ HEAEEKEDHRK
FRBIKA o

BEREHNATERTER @ ER
B2t AELEA RIS HRANRERER
by E &R FORE T ZRBEH N THEE
HE - REE - RNTEHREBERE
RREA - —REH ZFEATEM
B Em -

MBWA T E BT B IRABERA EIAR

27
o



1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Leased assets and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases.

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 1(j)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Leased assets and operating leases (continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

made.

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Employee benefits

()

)

Short term employee benefits and contribution to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans under which the Group
receives services from employees, officer, agent or
consultant as consideration for equity instruments of the
Company. These plans comprise a share option scheme

and a share award scheme.

The fair value of the services received in exchange for
the grant of the options and the awarded shares is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options or the awarded shares as at the date of grant:
(i) including any market performance conditions; (ii)
excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets); and (iii) including
the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save or holding shares
for a specified period of time). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options or awarded shares that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options or awarded shares that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of profit

and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Employee benefits (continued)

For the share award scheme, the Group may purchase its own
shares through the trustee of the share award scheme from
the open market for the shares to be vested under the share
award scheme. The shares purchased by the Group that are
not yet vested for this share award scheme were recorded as
treasury shares and recorded as “Shares held for share award
scheme” as a deduction under equity. Upon vesting of the
awarded shares, the related costs of the purchased shares are
reduced from the “Shares held for share award scheme”, and
the related fair value of the awarded shares are debited to the
share-based compensation reserve with the difference

charged/credited to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company will issue new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollar while that
for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is Renminbi.
The presentation currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising
on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that

applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that operation is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(v) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(il) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(il) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party .

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

chmcnt rcportmg

The Group manages its businesses by business line (products and

services) and has reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Financial services — investment advisory services business,
fund management business and insurance brokerage business;

and

(b) Media — provision of media sales, design and management

services and production of advertisements.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before interest and tax.
The adjusted profit/loss is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that certain income and gains/losses,
finance costs as well as head office and corporate expenses are

excluded from such measurement.

1

SETBUR ()

(w) DEBEHE
REDF RPN B HRKRERNSED EIEB
CRNVERAEETRAEBRELEELRD
B RRAEREMAAERZSRITHE
BABTERRENTBER TIARA -

EREEANEEDBRPBHREM = LA
A RIEZRZ D BABF RS BERFE
UREBHEUERRREEE  £ERFE
B BEFEEAMNER - BESHERIIRE
RIS A REERENE - Wi IEERI B
BANKES AR LRI H4FE - BIlF
BEE T UAEE -

2B E
REBEEB B (ERLRY) EREEBRE
T2 WMEEHH -

@ ZTRRT-REBHERBER ESTEX
BRRBRELER &

) HE—RGURREE R REERB LR
CETEE
EREETERAREEE SN LAEEL A

BIRDBREFTHAVAK - HRBIIERZ
HwOBEF BB (BEAERMNERFEIR
BBzt E) ETRTE - CAERT IS
BAASERBNABFN KN E - ST
WA Rz, B8 BERANAREHERE &
ESXHTFAZIENA ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

Segment rep Ol‘ting (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and non-current
assets and liabilities, respectively, which are directly managed by
the segments, excluding unallocated head office and corporate
assets and liabilities as these assets and liabilities are managed on a

group basis.
There are no sales between the reportable segments.

The Group manages its business by geographical areas for the year
ended 31 December 2017. During the year ended 31 December
2018, management has revisited the reportable segments and the
Group’s internal reporting. After taking into account the future
strategic plan and size of the recently acquired operations, it is
determined that the investment advisory services business and
fund management business acquired in December 2018 and the
insurance brokerage business acquired in December 2017 be
grouped under the financial services segment; while the media and
advertising business be grouped under the media segment. The
corresponding segment information for the year ended 31

December 2017 has been restated.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the

years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is set out below.
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2 Segment reporting (continued) 2 DEHEE)

(a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets () EBIBYRA - BRREE - EEREE:

and liabilities:

Financial services Media Total
TR R% R mE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $’000 $°000 $’000 $°000 $’000
T T T Tt Fr Fr
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(fe&E75) (fe&E75) (mE75)
Disaggregated by timing R T R
of revenue recognition: DI
Point in time R 2 31,945 684 188,994 154,156 220,939 154,840
Over time e B 1,547 - 191,522 194,293 193,069 194,293
Revenue from external RENBFEEH
customers /PN 33,492 684 380,516 348,449 414,008 349,133
Reportable segment 2/ KA
revenue 33,492 684 380,516 348,449 414,008 349,133
Reportable segment 2RI HBEF
profit/ (loss) (E8) 21,161 (103) 18,109 14,277 39,270 14,174
Other revenue and H b A R E fth
other net income Yo a5 0% B 122 - 16 19,425 138 19,425
Interest income from RITE R EWA
bank deposits 74 - 24 2,011 98 2,011
Interest expense e - = (86) = (86) -
Depreciation and amortisation E R#HE (428) (6) (7,020) (4,758) (7,448) (4,764)
Gain on deregistration i PG
of a subsidiary g - - 13,725 - 13,725 -
Reversal of provision/(provision) 71| & 18 5 8 &
for impairment of Bm ()
— property, plant and equipment —#]2% « iE &
B - = - (37) - 37)
— accounts receivable — U AR 3R - - 185 (2,858) 185 (2,858)
— other receivables — H M fE R BR K 3,600 - - - 3,600 -
Reversal of provision for BES OB ERD
onerous contracts, net ek - - 545 13,910 545 13,910
Reportable segment assets ERSHEE 404,027 51,548 319,274 342,588 723,301 394,136
Additions to non-current FRIERED
segment assets during the year ~ BEHFE 10,749 - 19,630 7,176 30,379 7,176
Reportable segment E/RHWEE
liabilities 22,181 3,471 100,580 89,373 122,761 92,844
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

2 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

2 PEEHRE ()

b) SHRIBYA - BRSEE  EERAKY

profit or loss, assets and liabilities are as follows: R :
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
Tr T
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue 2D IBUA 414,008 349,133
Consolidated revenue ZE WA 414,008 349,133
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
5 5
(Restated)
(FeE351)
Profit or loss BRREE
Reportable segment profit ER b 39,270 14,174
Finance costs A& B AR (236) -
Unallocated other revenue and other ADEREMBA R
net income H b W 55 F 58 8,301 4,924
Unallocated head office and corporate AOBRENER R
expenses and others ET R E A (24,523) (20,435)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation SEBRTRAN(EE) 22,812 (1,337)
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
Tr T
(Restated)
(feE51)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets RO PEE 723,301 394,136
Unallocated head office and corporate ADRENEER
assets and others EEEREM 229,022 198,136
Consolidated total assets EABEHBE 952,323 592,272
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DER R ()

b) SHRIBYA - BRSEE  EERAKY

2 Segment reporting (continued) 2

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

profit or loss, assets and liabilities are as follows:

BRINE @ (48)

(continued)
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
Fr Tt
(Restated)
(&%)
Liabilities &8

Reportable segment liabilities ERHMEE 122,761 92,844

Unallocated head office and corporate ADEREPER
liabilities and others rEEERE 107,468 4,727
Consolidated total liabilities mEREAEE 230,229 97,571

Revenue 3. WA

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of media sales

and design services and production of advertisements for transit

vehicle exteriors and interiors, online portal, mobile apps,

shelters, outdoor signages advertising businesses and the provision

of integrated marketing services covering these advertising

platforms. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group

started to engage in insurance brokerage services and other

financial services.

Analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

AEBTERERTEEWMB N REMAL
Bk FHREARER BREFRPIINESEREMHR
HEEHE RRARE  UREESEENER - I
RUBREULEFESFENGEEMISHERRSE - 1
BE—Z-\F+-A=+—HILFE  F&H
R F R LIRS R B A& BARTS

AEBAFERANIHIT :

2018 2017
$°000 $°000
T Tt

Income from media sales, design and management HEEGHE « Rt R BIEREUAR
services, production of advertisements B & RERA 380,516 348,449
Fund management service income HEEBBREWA 15,910 =

External asset management advisory INEREEEIEERAE WA

commission income 556 -
Insurance brokering service income R AL R IA 17,026 -
414,008 348,449

The Group applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.94 and

therefore expensed the incremental costs of obtaining a contract if

the amortisation period is one year or less.

AEERABEMBEREENESHE BB T
ATHEEETDE - RIS EIRBE AR EE R A (4

BB —FRUT) -

2018 3R -

EREREEERAR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABETI - BB H)

4 Other revenue and other net (loss)/income

(a) Other revenue

(a) HftzgA

4. B AR A (BR) ks FE

2018 2017
$°000 $’000
Tr Tt

Net unrealised gains on financial assets at BARBEAABSZZERMEE
fair value through profit or loss B R B IE W F R 11 -
Interest income from bank KERITHHE WA 3,596 5,260
Other interest income H b F 2 U A 6,151 -
Insurance brokering service income R B2 A8 42 AR 75 A - 684
Sundry revenue Haug A 160 4,815
9,918 10,759

(b) Other net (loss)/income (b) Hftp(B518) K FHE
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
Tr T
Exchange (loss)/gain M (BE), s (1,458) 12,287
(Loss)/ gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEREZE

plant and equipment (E518) (21) 1,987
(1,479) 14,274
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5 Profit/(loss) before taxation

5. BRBATERR,(E8)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREBRRR(FE) Sk :
(a) Finance costs (a) AELK
2018 2017
$°000 $°000
Fr Tt
Finance lease charges MEMEEY L 137 =
Interest on promissory notes RS EEZFE 99 -
236 -
(b) Staff costs (b) EIZZX
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
Tr T
Directors’ emoluments E ks 5,625 5,854
Contributions to defined contribution TF R TR AR &AM
retirement schemes 3,643 1,498
Salaries and other benefits e & EHMEF 80,545 59,246
89,813 66,598
(c) Other items (c) BfIEE
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
Tr Tt
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 A BN & 3,407 3,149
Depreciation and amortisation E R 8,058 4 764
Operating lease charges KEHES N
— land and buildings —t+i REF 7,069 3,355
2018 F$k +« BEHRERMEBBERARE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 6. mEBBERIPWAER

profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or () IRGFEBEBROBIES !

loss represents:

2018 2017
$°000 $000
T FT
Current tax 7N HA 4 18
Provision for Hong Kong Profits NEBRENGRBE
Tax for the current year 3,533 2,211
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years BEEE GRERE)/
BETR (98) 153
3,435 2,364
Provision for PRC corporate income tax B b 2 RS A B 727 419
Over-provision in respect of prior years BREFERERE (260) =
3,902 2,783
Deferred tax iEE BB
Reversal and origination of temporary M =R R KR
differences (see Note 26(b)) (%QE/}/75?26(1))) 2,653 3,407
Income tax expense FrEfis 6,555 6,190

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year is
calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated

assessable profits for the year. Taxation for subsidiaries in the

RNEEMNESHNESHBEDIRBAFE M
FERM BN 16.5% (ZF —+H 4 : 16.5%) 5
RPN B RN ERBHEIRT

PRC is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation BE AT RETHE o
ruling in the PRC.
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) REABRTENBERXESHRER (B
profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: B) W :
2018 2017
$°000 $7000
5 5
Profit/ (loss) before taxation BBLRT 2R (EiE) 22,812 (1,337)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation, BRI AR (EiE)
calculated at the rates applicable to profits/ R AN (BE) R B
(losses) in the relevant tax jurisdictions MG e AR EA
P55 21 5022 2 T 4,056 (127)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR MRS a2 1,266 1,336
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue HAEZRH AN TIE & (4,531) (2,649)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ARG EENTESE 6,567 7,213
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFEE GRERE) /BETE (358) 153
Others Hih (445) 264
Actual tax expense EERFIERX 6,555 6,190
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Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

7 EEME

BIEFBACRTEN) BE33IER(AR (BEE
EFEERD RO FBOETE EEMEEE

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation LU
are as follows:
2018
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
Directors’ in kind Discretionary scheme
fees (Note 7) bonuses contributions Total
e 2R
ENEH
EEHme (KteE7) WAL  RANFTEHER At
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T T
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. XU Peixin B A& 200 185 - 2 387
Mr. SUN Lei (Note 5) BEEE (W iEs) 4 53 26 - 83
Mr. BIAN Fang (Note 6) TH %k (Bite) 175 2,028 - 17 2,220
Mr. ZHU Dong REGAE 200 1,817 - 18 2,035
Non-Executive Director EHITES
Dr. MA Weihua SRERL 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-Executive BYEHITES
Directors
Dr. QI Daging BAEEL 300 - - - 300
Mr. CHEN Yigong BRI ELE 150 - - - 150
Mr. FENG Zhonghua BHEL L 150 - - - 150
1,479 4,083 2 37 5,625
2018 F$k +« BEHRERMEBBERARE
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7 EEMEw

7 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

144

2017
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary scheme
fees (Note 7) bonuses contributions Total
e 2ER
EWEN
EEHe (Hizt7) MBI RIRGTEIfR @t
$°000 $7000 $’000 $°000 $7000
i i 7 7 7
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. XU Peixin (Note 2) MR £ (A 7t2) 22 - = = 22
Mr. ZHU Dong (Note 3) R (B33) 10 92 - - 102
Mr. LOH Chan Stephen (Note 1) BIR& A (Hi21) 95 2,998 458 14 3,565
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Dr. MA Weihua (Note 2) SEEBL (W) 3 - - - 3
Dr. John CHAN Cho Chak (Note 4) BRI 2+ (424) 146 - - - 146
Ms. Winnie NG (Note 4 BB L (W) 25 . . . 5
Mr. YUNG Wing Chung (Note 4) KB (fiita) 269 - - = 269
Mr. MAK Chun Keung (Note 4) B4R 4 (Hi4) 104 - - - 104
Mr. John Anthony MILLER (Note 4) HEEEL (fite) 126 - - - 126
Mr. Allen FUNG Yuk Lun (Note 4) EEB LA (fie) 126 = = = 126
Mr. LEE Luen Fai (Note 4 B (H2e) 104 - - - 104
Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES
Directors
Dr. QI Daging (Note 2) EAEEL (Hi2) 3 - . - 3
Mr. CHEN Yigong (Note 2 BORT 4 (H222) 17 - - - 17
Mr. FENG Zhonghua (Note 2) ISR E S & (f1522) 17 = - - 17
Dr. Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI (Note 4) BRBEL (i) 278 - = - 278
Dr. Eric LI Ka Cheung (Note 4) BREE L (fi74) 274 = = = 274
Professor Stephen R HE (Hee)
CHEUNG Yan Leung (Note 4) 309 - -~ - 309
Dr. John YEUNG Hin Chung (Note 4)  #3 B 1§ L (f/7#4) 104 = = = 104
2,292 3,090 458 14 5,854
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Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. LOH Chan Stephen was appointed as a Director on 1 February 2017 and
resigned as a Director on 12 December 2017, but remained as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. XU Peixin, Dr. MA Weihua, Dr. QI Daqing, Mr. CHEN Yigong and
Mr. FENG Zhonghua were appointed as Directors on 21 November 2017.

Mr. ZHU Dong was appointed as a Director on 13 December 2017.

Dr. John CHAN Cho Chak, Ms. Winnie NG, Mr. YUNG Wing Chung, Mr.
MAK Chun Keung, Mr. John Anthony MILLER, Mr. Allen FUNG Yuk Lun,
Mr. LEE Luen Fai, Dr. Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI, Dr. Eric LI Ka Cheung,
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung and Dr. John YEUNG Hin Chung

resigned as Directors on 12 December 2017.

Mr. SUN Lei was appointed as a Director on 24 December 2018.

Mr. BIAN Fang was appointed as a Director on 8 February 2018 and resigned
as a Director on 24 December 2018.

Benefits in kind represent medical and personal accident insurance entitled
by the Executive Directors of the Group.

Individuals with highcst emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017:

one) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The

aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the three (2017: four)

individuals are as follows:

7 EEME

i -

1. BREAN-_Z—+HFE A AEZEAES I
BE-T—+E+-A+-AHREHTES  ANHAL
EREEETHBARINES -

2. BHMAAE - BEEEL - BAEREL  RALEL
EREREEAN -_E—+F+— A+ BEZ
ThEE-

3. g%%i%:§*t¢+:ﬂ+iﬁﬁéﬁﬁi

4. BAEEEL - mAELLT  BAkBEE - BIRBE
£ EHBEAL  BEBGL  FEBLAL R
Bt  TRESLT  RCRHEBRRBATELTH
T+ F+ A+ AREEES -

5. g%%i%:?-ﬂﬁ+:ﬂ:+wa%§&%%

6. THEAN-_E-NE-_AN\AEZEAES I
R-TE—N\F+-_A-+NHEIES -

7. E?%ﬂ%$%§ﬂﬁ§$$ﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁA%%

8 EmEMEAL

hEsE=aMEALHEERE (ZF—1F: —%)

B ZEEH

TERMEIEE - =R (ZF

—tF 0% ZREME A LM AESIINT

2018 2017

$°000 $7000

Tr T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e ERRHEMER 7,951 5,086
Retirement scheme contributions BRI 54 72
8,005 5,158

The emoluments of the three (2017: four) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Z=HR(CE—LF R &S

TATHME

DITEAT ¢

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
$500,001-51,000,000 500,0017C — 1,000,0007T - 1
$1,000,001-51,500,000 1,000,001 7 — 1,500,0007T - 2
$1,500,001-52,000,000 1,500,0017C —2,000,0007T 1 1
$2,000,001-52,500,000 2,000,0017C—2,500,0007T - =
$2,500,001-53,000,000 2,500,0017C —3,000,0007T 2 =
3 4

2018 ¥} - EHRTHMEEERAF
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B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

Dividends 9 KRE
(a) Dividend payable to equity shareholders of the (@) XEERSERAARRHKE :
Company attributable to the year:
2018 2017
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Final dividend proposed after the end of the ERBREHKRBEZDIEN
reporting period of nil cent per share KA B FARZL
(2017: Nil cent per share) (ZZ—+F: GREW) - =
(b) No final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 b) BERFAREREREHEE_T—tF+=

December 2017 approved and paid during the year (2017:
SNil).

10 Earnings/(loss) per share

(@)

(®)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
earnings attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of approximately $16,257,000 (2017: loss of
approximately $6,577,000) and the weighted average of
1,122,373,464 ordinary shares (2017: 997,365,332 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares is arrived at after deducting the
shares held for the share award scheme (the “Share Award

Scheme”).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

A=+—-BLMREENRERE (ZF
— 4 ER)

10 ERERN(FE)

@

BREXER(FHE)

BRERNRF HIREFAARR 7 E@EARRR
FE 15 & K #16,257,0007 (ZF — £ 4F : 518
#96,577,0007T) M B BT E B A I T
1,122,373,464R EBR (ZF — £ F :
997,365,332 HBAR) 7t & o E AR INE T 5
ARG ZEE B ([0 ZEE &) #
BEZRGOEBHEMSL -

ZEREFE

2018 2017
’000 000
TR’ F A%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HADRBTE@AR 997,365 997,365
Effect of placing new shares BRERROHOTE 129,452 -
Adjustment of shares award scheme R& 1 82 B =t & 1) 7 & (4,444) =
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt A=+—HBRL@AEK
shares at 31 December miEFHE 1,122,373 997,365
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (v) EREBERER(FBE)
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding REBEEZEZZE—N\FR=ZZT—tF+=ZA
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. T HLEFEYEAETEEEENE R

Accordingly, diluted earnings/loss per share is the same as

basic earnings/loss per share.
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11 Property, plant and equipment 1 ¥ -BERSE

Audio Hardware

and visual and Furniture Leasehold Motor
equipment software  and fixtures ~ improvements Billboards Panels vehicles Total
PERE FEREH GAREE BENERE BEl  BERE 8 )
$°000 §°000 $°000 §7000 §7000 57000 §°000 §°000
T R T T T T T T
Cost: HA:
At January 2017 HW=Z-+E-F-R 149,681 13,389 2,157 9,439 ) - - 174747
Exchange adjustments EH A% - U 44 - - - - 65
Additions %2 I 519 % 1,48 - 3,305 §14 6,030
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 26(5))  WEEHB AR ( ngi(b) ) - 86 59 - - - 502 647
Disposal e (147,058) (64) (35) . - . TR
At31 December 2017 RoE-tE+-A=1-B 2147 13,951 230 10,687 ) 3,305 1316 34,132
Acumulated depreciationand  ZHEERREER: 0
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2017 RZE2—+5-A-H 149,68 8,09 1,414 1,852 80 - - 161,118
Exchange adjustments EiAE - U 44 - - - - 65
Charge for the year ENFE 6 2,282 204 2,160 - 107 5 4,764
Written back on disposal HEBEMD (147,258) (64) (21) - - - - (147,383)
Impairment loss HEER = 20 17 = = = - 37
At 31 December 2017 RIE-tF+ZA=1-H 1430 10,349 1,658 4012 80 107 5 18,641
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2017 WoZ—rE+-ft-R 2 3,602 663 6,675 - 3,19 1311 15,491
Audio  Hardware
and visual and  Furniture  Leaschold Motor
equipment software  and fixtures improvements Billboards Panels vehicles Total
FERE EREREE GARRE AENERE BER  EERE fE &t
$000 §000 $000 §000 $000 §000 $000 §000
rn T n T n T n T
Cost: KA
At 1 January 2018 RoE-NE-A-A 247 13,951 23 10,687 ) 3,305 1316 34,132
Exchange adjustments ERAE - (53) 3) - - - (26) (562)
Additions NE - 11,679 2 4 - 18,711 - 31,526
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 26(a)) W B2 ] (H72228(a)) - 977 31 1,199 - - - 2,307
Disposal = - () (114) - - - - (637)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1-H 241 25,551 2757 12,600 80 2,016 1,290 66,766
Accumulated depreciationand ~ R FEREEFE -
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-f-H 2430 10,349 1,658 4012 80 107 5 18,641
Exchange adjustments Ei AR - (1) (1) - - - O] (16)
Charge for the year ERFE 7 2,257 M1 2,628 - 2,600 24 8,003
Written back on disposal HERED - (519) (%) - - - - (613)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=t-H 2437 12,076 1,840 6,640 80 2707 235 26,015
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2018 RIE-\E+ZA=1-H 35 13475 917 5,960 - 19,309 1,055 40,751
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

12 Intangible assets 12 BEEE

Fund Customer ~ Website and
Licence Contracts  relationship ~ mobile apps Total
fUR
R He8H EFBFE FHERER st
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T T

Cost: A
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017and ~ RZF—+5—F—H ZF—+F

1 January 2018 TZA=+t-Bk

-2 \&—f—§ - - - 3,238 3,238

Additions NE - - - 468 468
Disposal HeE - - - (3,238) (3,238)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 28(a)) IREEM B AR (ﬂf&?&(a}) 4,472 28,699 34,941 - 68,112
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\F+-A=t-H 4,472 28,699 34,941 468 68,580
Accumulated amortisation and LI BERAERR:

impairment losses:
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017and ~ RZF—+&F—f—H - ZF—+&

1 January 2018 +-A=+-BRk

—E—\E—f—A - - - 3,238 3,238

Charge for the year FREH - - - (55) (55)
Written back on disposal HEERR - - - (3,238) (3,238)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+-A=1-H - - - (55) (55)
Net book value: BERE
At 31 December 2017 R=E—+F+-A=t-H - - - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E+ZA=1+—-H 4,472 28,699 34,941 413 68,525

AEER T N\F+_A+NAZKNESKE
PrEERN A BB EERR

The identifiable intangible assets recognised by the Group upon
the business combinations completed on 14 December 2018

include:

—  Customer relationship — EPH#AR

—  Fund contracts - HEEE48

— Licence for regulated activities under the Securities and — BHERAEROEBETIZHAEETHNERE (R
Futures Ordinance with indefinite useful lives BERAI(ERFE)

BREEREBEHEKBEHNAABEHE
YAERFESS -

The fair value of the intangible assets at the date of completion of
the business combinations were appraised by an independent

valuer.
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12 Intangible assets (continued) 12 |MEEE @)

In assessing the useful life of licence, due consideration is given to REEERO A FERFHE B8R ERAE
the existing longevity of licence, the life cycle of the industry in BEMH AEBLEEMETENERABAKLA
which the Group operates and the renewal barriers of licence in BERERRER  ENZEERE - BEHBITIRE
the future. In light of these considerations, no factor could be EYEREEARIUFAFHNEZ AR
identified that would result in the licence having a finite useful life BEFIHAEEERACHAEH  HERBHR
and accordingly the licence have been assessed as having an 7N 52 (B 75 2R A 7 | 2 ) HA R 3 A AT 7B R RR

indefinite useful life which there is no foreseeable limit to the
period over the licence is expected to generate economic benefits

for the Group.

13 Goodwill 13 BHE
$’000
i
Cost and net carrying amount: RARRERE :
At 1 January 2017 R-—Z—+%—-—A—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 28(b)) W REH B A | (A1 7E28(b)) 40,770
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZBE—+tF+-_A=+—RBEK=Z—\F—A—H 40,770
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 28(a)) W IEHI B A Rl (B 7#28(a)) 178,444
Exchange adjustments [E i & (2,038)
At 31 December 2018 N—ZE—-NE+-A=+—8 217,176
Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing BEHENBRSEEENHNREDNR
goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGU) ANEBSIHEERSEESMN RELEESM)
as follows: m
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
T T
Insurance brokerage business {RERAE 40 RS 38,732 40,770
Investment advisory services business and KEBBREES R
fund management business EEEBEKR 178,444 -
217,176 40,770
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(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

13

14

Goodwill (continued)

Insurance brokerage business

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on historical data and financial budgets approved
by Board of Directors covering a five-year (2017: five-year)
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3% (2017:
3%). The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates. The
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 19% (2017:
20%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks

relating to the relevant CGU.

Investment advisory services business and fund
management business

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on historical data and financial budgets
(including the assumption that relevant licences to operate stock
dealing, margin financing and placing business can be obtained in
2019) approved by Board of Directors covering a five-year period
(2017: N/A). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of
3% (2017: N/A). The growth rates used do not exceed the long-
term average growth rates for the business in which the CGU
operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of
17% (2017: N/A). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.

Non-current prepayments and deposits

Non-current prepayments and deposits comprise the followings:

13

14

(42
BE @

RetEBMMA WO HEREREERSE - %
AESTAERRASRERD  KEELBERE
EEeMENAF (T —tF  1F) P KA
B -nFHERNBSRERZRMAEMEFIHE
R (CE—EF %) HE - IEAMNER
Ry EBHIERSAEEUEFENEBENRS
FHEEER WHSRERUTE K 19% (ZF
—£F 20%) TE - FEANFTRX QB AT R
[ BR AR B 3R & A E B A O 18 Bl R et

REBBBREXBERESCEERY

RAefEFEMMATKREMBREREETHE &
AESACRARSRETR  KEELBERE
EEgUROREH(ZE—+F: THEA) MK
BE(BERELLERERS RESZBREREER
BHEBEBAR-_Z-NAEFNEZRRZX) - &
FHERORSNER2RMEFINETHERE%
—E—EFTEREE - ERANIERERY
BERBREGRSEESMEFENETENRPTY
BREE - WRSREBRATRE17% (ZF—L5F:
TER)FE - FRERNTREXBBATH R R
HEAR e EEEMERRRE -

FRBENRERES
FERBDENKARZSBIEATER -

2018 2017

$°000 $’000

Tr T

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BENLE 15,032 1,960
Security and other deposits, and other receivables WD REMIRS R E M E KRR 39,811 1,258
54,843 3,218
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15 Investments in subsidiaries 15 MBATRE

The following list contains the particulars of material subsidiaries. TREBVNERAWNBRARINER - FRBHHEBEIN -
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. FrisiR (028 51139 A & @Ak o

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(d) Fir /8 Bt 88 & 139 /5 BT 5 1(d) PR 56 2% B X245 ) B 8
and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements. nEl  EEBEHAREBTBHRRANGEFE ©

Proportional of ownership

interest (%)
Place of Particulars of BiERRE(EA M)
incorporation/ issued and Effective
Name of company operation paid up capital interest Direct Indirect Principal activity
BERTREHR
ARER EMAYL/ EEHY RAGFE ERER EE 5k TEER
Acton Eagle Limited The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 100 = Investment holding
Hong Kong 1ETT REER
EBRTEE/EH
Creative Time Global Limited The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong EH RERR
EBRTEE/EH
Cityway Resources Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1%70 REER
EBRAEE/EH
Initial G]ory Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong £ REZR
KERIES/BA
Plenty Prestige Management Limited The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong IES REZR
RBRIHE /B
RoadShow Media Group Limited The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 100 = Investment holding
Hong Kong IE REER
RBRAHE/BF
RoadShow Media Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 1% REER
KERIES/BA
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15 MBARIRE (@)

15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

152

Proportional of ownership

interest (%)
Place of Particulars of RiEBR (A7 k)
incorporation/ issued and Effective
Name of company operation paid up capital interest Direct Indirect Principal activity
BROREHME
AGE:S EMAL EEBE BRAFE BERES E# B TEEHR
RoadShow Productions Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 = 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong IEH REER
RBRAHS/BH
RoadVision Holdings (China) Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong IE REER
EBRTEE/EH
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss2 100 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong VE REER
RBRIHE/BF
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong £ REZR
RBRAHE/BH
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong IE REZR
ERELHE /B
Top Treasure Enterprises Limited The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong EH REER
RBRAHS/BH
AdSociety Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 = 100 Investment holding
HREDEEERAA B WA RERR
Bison Financial (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100 = 100 Investment holding
B 1R RERR
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15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

15 MBARKRE @)

Proportional of ownership

interest (%)
Place of Particulars of RiEBR (BS k)
incorporation/ issued and Effective
Name of company operation paid up capital interest Direct Indirect Principal activity
BERTREHR

NGRS EMAYL/ XY RAGFE ERER EE & TEEK
Bison (HK) Management Services Hong Kong 1 share 100 - 100 Provision of
Limited B 1RBH management services
REEERE
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100 = 100 Provision of media sales
Bk 1RIRH service for advertising on
transit vehicle exteriors
and interiors
REtFESHEY
I BRABES
BEHERS
Leader Force Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100 = 100 Provision of media sales
B 1RBH service for advertising on
transit vehicle shelters
and billboards
REXBEHREEZR
BEREEH
R HERS
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - 100 Provision of media sales &
B R management services for
BUS-TV business
REBTEREBR
REHEREERY
RoadShow Productions Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - 100 Events production and
B R production of content for
BUS-TV systems
BRSEREEET
ERZHAR
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 = 100 Investment holding
i V3 REER
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong ) shares 100 - 100 Provision of employment
B R agency services

REBETNRE
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(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

15 MBARIRE (@)

Proportional of ownership

interest (%)
Place of Particulars of RiEBR (BS k)
incorporation/ issued and Effective
Name of company operation paid up capital interest Direct Indirect Principal activity
BERTREHR

DEER EMAYL/ XY RAGFE ERER =8 583 TEEH
Silver Sea Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100 = 100 Provision of media sales
i 1R &7 service for online
advertising
REALEER
BEHERS
Target Capital Management Limited Hong Kong 5,300,000 shares 100 - 100 Provision of investment
(Note (1)) B 5,300,000 R 3 advisory, fund advisory
FEEEERERAR Hitn) and other consultancy
services
REKEER  ELBH
RE MR RS
888 Lab Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100 - 100 Provision of integrated
i 1k marketing services
REGETRERRS
BTS Investment Limited Cayman Islands USs0.03 100 - 100 Provision of fund
(Note (i) (H1iE() REHS 0.03% 7T management services
REESEERE
BTY Investment Limited Cayman Islands Ss0.02 100 - 100 Provision of fund
(Note (i) (//fE(J)) FREHSE 0.02%7C management services
REESERRE
NanTai Investment Limited Cayman Islands Ss0.03 100 = 100 Provision of fund
(Note (i) (H1 (1) RERS 0.03%7T management services
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15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

15 MBARIKRE (&)

Proportional of ownership

interest (%)
Place of Particulars of BlRR (A1)
incorporation/ issued and Effective
Name of company operation paid up capital interest Direct Indirect Principal activity
BROREBHE
RAER HRAL EEBE RAFE EREL =8 & TEEH
Shangtaj Asset Management Limited Cayman [slands USs$0.02 100 = 100 Provision of fund
(Note (i) (B2 (1)) FEHS 0.00% 7 management services
REESERRE
EREHREEEEHERAR The PRC - 100 = 100 Investment holding
i REER
T RAREHEEEABRAR The PRC US$500,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
hE 500,000% 7T RALR
ZERE)CEEEEHERAR The PRC RMBS50,000,000 100 - = Investment holding
(Note (ii)) (A7 i) hE AR#50,000,0007C REER
R ERBREEER AR The PRC RMBS50,000,000 100 - = Provision of insurance
(Note (ii)) (M1t (i) HE AR #50,000,0007T brokerage service
RERBELRE
Notes: /‘(/ 752_ :
(i)  These subsidiaries were acquired during the year (see note 28(a) for details). () HEMBRANENE (FERNMT8@0) °
(i) These are the subsidiaries arising from the contractual agreements (see note (i) UEFERA RENHZMEEOMBAR (FERK

28(b) for details). FE28(b)) °
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(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to Bus Focus
Limited, the only subsidiary of the Group which has material non-

controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial

15 MBARIRE (@)

information presented below represents the amounts before any

inter—company elimination.

TEREIA AARE BN — A EARIEERER ([3E
R 2 |) BB B A A)Bus Focus LimitedH) & £} o
AT E25HMBEERMEE R A BIEEHATN S

2018 2017

$°000 $7000

5 i

NCI percentage (Note (1)) FEEREE A 2 (Bt 6) N/A TEA 40%
Current assets RENEE - 25,342
Current liabilities mEAaG - 4,667
Net assets BEZE - 20,675
Carrying amount of NCI JEFE RS BRE(E - 8,270
Revenue A - 29,287
Profit for the year RNEEZEEF - 2,376
Total comprehensive income >EkzEE - 2,376
Profit allocated to NCI DI E R B & T - 950
Dividend paid to NCI BT IR ER AR S - -
Cash flows from operating activities REKEEHNRESRE - 7,163

Cash flows from financing activities

REBEEBNRSRE

K>

Note:

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018

In June 2018, the Group acquired all the non-controlling interest in Bus (i)

Focus Limited from the previous shareholder, increasing its ownership from

60% to 100%. Bus Focus Limited has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Group after the acquisition.

RZZB-N\FERA  AEEBAERREER Bus
Focus Limited M) FTH FEIE M IE R © (FEHEEEH60%
HINZE100% ° RULIEZTE * Bus Focus LimitedfX 2

AEEZ2BEMBAR -



16 Accounts receivable

16 FEULHRFR

At At At

31 December 1 January 31 December

2018 2018 2017

(Notes (i) & (ii)) (Notes (i) & (ii)) (Notes (i) & (ii))

R=ZZB-—N\F RZZE—)\%F RZZT—+4F

+=A=+-A ~A—B +=A=t-8

(K 52¢i) % i) (Bt et (i) % ii)) (Bt et i) R ii))

$°000 $7000 $’000

5 Fi Fi

Accounts receivable FEURBE T8 142,023 92,276 91,737

Notes: Hist

(i)  Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment as at 1 January 2018 o) RN BE S IERELEAFHERE T~ \F

was made to reverse the ECLs on accounts receivable (see note 1(c)(i)).

(ii)  Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, some of the accounts receivable, for which
the Group’s entitlement to the consideration was conditional, were

derecognised (see note 1(c)(ii)).

Ageing analysis

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are

neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

TBEEEEE (2RH
(i) RERMES

BRERAEEGONE
BisE1(c)Gi)) °

AR 2 T

At 31 December

B RE R 1555 1%

—A—BR A RRE TR L‘Mﬁ@ﬂ’ﬂﬁ(ﬁﬁmﬁ’]

FaE1(0)G) °

AREFUEK
= T RKBEFEVERR (28

3RS BAPR - 4 3R 1 Bl 3k B B R (B A0 FE U AR
REERER DT FIFOT -

At 31 December

2018 2017
R=ZB-—N\F RZT—+t4F
+=A=t+-8 +-A=+-8
$°000 $’000
T v
Neither past due nor impaired N7 4 780 B 5 LB 75,714 60,561
Within one month past due wE DR — (& )5] 37,956 12,858
Over one month but within two months past due BEBE—FEABLAREA 12,418 7,513
Over two months but within three months past due iR m R & A f PR=18 B 6,698 4,547
Over three months but within one year past due BEBBE=EABLR—F 8,165 6,033
Over one year past due BEAHRE—F 1,072 225
142,023 91,737
According to the Group’s credit policy, credit period granted to BEAEBENEERR  —RBRETREFHNEEH
customers is generally within 90 days. Therefore, all the balances Ao0H o At - FTE EXATIEERN RSB E Y
which are not past due as disclosed above are within three months REZAHE=EARNEIH -

from the invoice date.

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be recovered within

one year.

2018

FBHIF B BUERF SR —

FANE -

FH - BRSHUEEERAF
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(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

17

18

19

Loan receivable

The loan was made to a third party. The balance is unsecured,

interest-bearing and repayable within one year.

Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

17

FEWE K

ZEERERHT —RE=ZT - AR A/EER
AERAR—FARER-

RAABEFABRGZEMERMEE

2018 2017

$°000 $’000

Tr T

Financial assets measured at FVPL BRARBESAEBENEREE 29,650 —

The balance represented financial investment products issued by a
bank in the PRC with variable return amounting to approximately

$29,650,000 (2017:$Nil).

Plcdgcd bank deposits

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between subsidiaries of the
Company and independent third parties, bank guarantees have
been provided to the independent third parties in respect of the
subsidiaries” due performance and payment under the respective
licence agreements. The Company has pledged bank deposits of
$97,248,000 (2017: approximately $97,248,000) to banks for the

bank guarantees issued.

The remaining deposits amounting to $1,450,000 (2017:
$1,000,000) have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group.
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19

ERE—RPERTETNEREAES - KA
8 61 37 4) 529,650,0007C (= F—+4F : TJT)

CEARITER

BEARRKMB AR BB E = LHE TR
HFiE o ZSHBRARCRNEEEBRITEIHHE
REEBRHFHBEETOEERIE  EHAZSE
BULE=HBXm ARRITHER - RARIB AT
ZEH AR TTE R A SR 7T SR 17 17 7097,248,0007T
(ZZ— 1+ : 4997,248,0007T) °

# T B 1F 3K 51,450,0007C (= ZF — £ F 1,000,000
L) EERFEARNSEERIBITRERER -



20 Bank deposits and cash

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

20 WITHFRRRE
(2 BEeRASEEYPEE:

2018 2017
$°000 $’000
Tr T
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEES 233,354 130,074
Bank deposits with original maturities within three BREHAA=EAAN
months RITHER 1,673 108,633
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of RERBEGERERERMS
the consolidated cash flow statement WESRECEED 235,027 238,707
Bank deposits with original maturities BRI HBEBE=EAN
over three months BITF R 10,710 11,598
245,737 250,305
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () BETBEENEGEZHE:
activities:
Obligation
under finance Promissory
leases notes Total
RMEHERE BARRERE wmet
$°000 $°000 $°000
Fr T Fr
(Note 23) (Note 24)
(H17#23) (Kt 5t24)
At 1 January 2017 R=—Z2—+%—-—A—H - - -
Non-cash flow change FESHREEF
New finance lease HBEHE 814 - 814
Change from financing MERLSREETF
cash flow
Repayment of capital element of finance (Eiggt AR E AL )
lease (73) - (73)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=-A=+—8H 741 - 741
At 1 January 2018 R=FE—NF—A—H 741 - 741
Non-cash flow changes FERERELH
New finance leases HMAERE 8,190 - 8,190
Finance charges on obligations under ERREREREN
finance leases BEEHR 137 - 137
Changes from financing cash flows BMEBRELHKESE
Repayment of capital clement of finance {EiE @& & & AR5
leases (2,296) - (2,296)
Repayment of interest element EERmEMERN B IS
of finance leases (137) - (137)
Issue of promissory notes BITAHER - 320,000 320,000
Redemption of promissory notes B o H EE - (220,000) (220,000)
At 31 December 2018 RZF—NF+=ZA=+—H 6,635 100,000 106,635

2018 3R -

EREREEERAR
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(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

21 Accounts payable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

21 FEATBRER
RIREHR - BNERFNEREDTEBOT ¢

2018 2017

$°000 $’000

Fr T

Due within one month R—1{E B RE 4,043 29

Credit period granted to the Group by suppliers is generally
within 90 days. The above balances are all within three months

from the invoice date.

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled within one

year.

22 Contract liabilities

HEF -—RETAEENEEH R0R - L4
BN BEZARR=_EARNIE -

TBEIFT A BN BRSO — F RBIAT -

2 EHEE

At At At
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
(Notes (i) & (ii)) (Notes (i) & (ii))
R=B—N\%F R=ZB-—N\#%F R=B—+t#%
+t=B=+—-H —A—B +ZA=t-H
(et ) R (i) (Bt a2) R i)
$°000 $°000 $°000
T T Fr
Fund management business: HeBEETE
— Receipts in advance —FE Uk A 2,717 - -
Media sales and production of WM E R ESRERH -
advertisement arrangements:
— Billings in advance of performance  — &%) 7 F8 % 5118 50,875 49,967 -
53,592 49,967 -
Notes: /f/jﬂ?l‘f g
(i)  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect () AEEEFEARTELINTSERESMBRELE
method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2018. A58 WHARBR-_ZE—N\NF—H—BHEY&
£ o
(i)  Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included as “deferred (i) MEMBBHEREERNFE158& - ZRIETA [H
income” under “Other payables and accruals” were separated and disclosed as RN REASER] BT [BEKRA] Z2EX
“contract liabilities” in the consolidated statement of financial position (see WikD WREAHBERARARABELS [648
note 1(c)(it)). & (2RM#E10)G6) °
(iii) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the corresponding credit amounts iy RIRMB BT ERELERIF1551% - R EEDH

recognised with the accounts receivable for the undelivered sales before the

invoice is due are derecognised (see note 1(c)(ii)).
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22 Contract liabilities (continued) 2 EHEE®

Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEES
2018
$°000
Fr
Balance at 1 January R—A—B2z#&#% 49,967
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising BAFRNWZ GFAFNELNBE) M
revenue during the year that was included in the EXNEHBEERD
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (49,818)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing in advance BAZENTEEENASLHABEM 53,443
Balance at 31 December R+—RA=+—B & 53,592
All of the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as FrEAHEBEEER —FRERAKE -
revenue within one year.
23 Finance leases 23 MEHE
Obligations under finance leases: RS ERIE
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had obligations under RZZE—NEFRZZT—tF+ZA=+—H &
finance leases repayable as follows: SE v REMEERENT
2018 2017
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

REEER REEE HEHE RIEEE
NRZBE NRBE AR RE N aE

$°000 $°000 $’000 $’000

Fr Fr T T

Within 1 year —FRQ 3,346 3,739 151 183

After | yearbut within 2years  —GFEmER YR e 58 5

After 2 years but within 5 years ~ WRERERF A 265 274 432 457
3,289 3,420 590 640

6,635 7,159 741 823
Less: total future interest expenses J5 : 7 2 5 S F L 58 (524) (82)
Present value of lease obligations & #&¥E 2B E 6,635 741
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(BB HHERIN -

24

25

BB E)

Promissory notes

The movements of the promissory notes are set out below:

24

ARRE
EARBZRBHIIMT :

2018 2017

$°000 $’000

Fr T

Issue of promissory notes (Note (i) BITERER (Wit6) 100,000 -
Issue of promissory notes upon acquisition P UK BE Y B 1 ) R B AT

of subsidiaries (Notes (ii)) A BT (M et i) 220,000 -

Redemption of promissory notes (Note (ii)) BB B A N Z 4% (72 Fii)) (220,000) -

At 31 December 2018 RZZE-—NE+=-A=+—H 100,000 -

Notes:

(i)  On 28 December 2018, the Company issued promissory note in the principal
amount of $100,000,000 to Kinetic Creation Global Investments Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CCB International (Holdings) Limited. The
promissory note bears interest at a rate of 9% per annum and has a term of
one calendar year. The promissory note is subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios, as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the promissory note would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in note 29(b). As at 31 December 2018, none of the covenants
relating to the drawn down facilities had been breached (2017: $Nil).

(ii)  On 14 December 2018, upon the acquisition of subsidiaries as disclosed in
note 28(a), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company issued promissory
notes in the principal amount of $220,000,000 as part settlement of the total
consideration. The promissory notes bear interest at a rate of 3% per annum

and were redeemed by the subsidiary on the even date.

Provision for onerous contracts

Given the increasingly keen price and market competition, a
provision was made for onerous contracts relating to the Group’s
outdoor signages advertising business. The Group assessed that the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under related
licences, which were all non-cancellable, may exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received therefrom and,
therefore, considered these licences to be onerous contracts.
Consequently, a provision for onerous contracts of $545,000 was

recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group remeasured the provision for onerous contracts and
considered that following the expiry of the licence, it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation as at 31
December 2018. A reversal of provision for onerous contracts of
$545,000 was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: $14,455,000).
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26 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 26 SJIRGEBBRRARNWETER

financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of () IREEMBRRTROFPEBIES :

financial position represents:

2018 2017
$°000 $’000
T Fr
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year REEEBENEFBE 3,435 2,211
Provisional Profits Tax paid B & SRS (3,520) (3,967)
(85) (1,756)
PRC corporate income tax payable FEN R BT ER 237 835
152 (921)
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial HREBMRRERE AR
position:
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
T T
Current tax recoverable recognised in the consolidated 4R & B 75 Ak 1 R HERR B
statement of financial position JE Y 7R BR A5 1R (1,475) (1,756)
Current tax payable recognised in the consolidated NI B BRI RIERL
statement of financial position FEST AR BAB IE 1,627 835
152 (921)
2018 F$k +« BEHRERMEBBERARE
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26 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 26 FIRGZEEHMBEMRRRWABHE @

financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) ERRNECHELE (BF) :
The components of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) recognised NG BRRRERANBEEREEE (8
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the &) B AR D KRR ENBEBIAT

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

allowances in

excess of
related
accelerated Tax Onerous Fund Customer
depreciation losses contracts contracts  relationship Total
bl
MEFEH
REES RBER BEEH HedH EFBf st
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T i i i T i
At 1 January 2017 K-E—+E-F—F 79 7,151 2,385 - - 10,55
Charged to profit or loss ERENGIY (547) (475) (2,385) = = (3,407)
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+F
+ZA=+-A 172 6,676 = - _ 6,948
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE-\%—HA—-H 172 6,676 - - - 6,848
Acquisition of subsidiaries B B2 = (#77282)

(Note 25 (a) - - - (4,735) (5,765) (10,500)
Charged to profit or loss ERERYR (1,513) (1,140) - - - (2,653)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F

+-A=+-A (1,341) 5,536 - (4,735) (5,765) (6,305)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial RIZAPMBRNRERNSEE :
position:
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
5 i
Net deferred tax assets EERIEEEFE 4,252 7,042
Net deferred tax liabilities BRI IBEEFE (10,557) (194)
(6,305) 6,848
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26 Income tax in the consolidated statement of

financial position (continued)

(©)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(n),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of
approximately $38,760,000 (2017: approximately
$32,407,000) in respect of cumulative tax losses of
approximately $233,582,000 (2017: approximately
$196,408,000), as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. At 31
December 2018 and 2017, the tax losses do not expire under

the current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 December 2017, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of a subsidiary in the PRC amounted to
approximately $10,634,000. Deferred tax liabilities of
approximately $1,063,000 have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of this subsidiary and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

2 FIRGZREMBRREROEAER @

(©)

()

RERNETEHBEE !

BB 1TSS ERER AR E @R
5 Bl AR R R B B8 T A A B 3R Al A DAIE 88
BEORRERTEF] - BREE L ERA
233,582,0007C (=& — 4 4F : #196,408,0007T)
B R 5T B 75 /85 18 7 38 4938,760,0007T (= &
— & : 4932,407,0007T) KU IEEFLIB & E ©
RZB-NER_ZE—+F+-_HA=+—8H"
BEBERTHEE - BBEELERRA -

AERANWELEHBEMSE
R=ZT—+F+-A=+—H BB [+
BB AR R RAFNEREZENA
10,634,0007T ° A A 2N 2 A4 il 3% [T /B & ] /Y
BBERE - BRAEZN B AR &g RIE
RABETEHIRAF - Bt - WS D IKZ
LR BN IR FE S0 7 1% T8 58 58 491,063,000
THRIEREE & -

2018 ¥} - EHRTHMEEERAF
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27 Capital and reserves 27 RERRES

() MESERBHHRD
REBGA EEEARBHPNEBRES
M ERREA ERBEBR - KD TS B
5400 B0 1 A AN 4 A 4 I R K P e 22 B

(a) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of BESNT :
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company P AY=7|
Share Share Contributed ~ Accumulated
capital premium surplus losses Total
A& 17 EE EfES 6 1 Eh
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T i
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-E-t5-8-8
fis 99,737 - 594 404 (339,602) 354,539
Change in equity for 2017 “E-LENERED .
Profit and total comprehensive income AEREFR2ENGEE
for the year = = = 1,334 1,334
Balance at 31 December 2017 and R-E-tE+=8
1 January 2018 =+-AR=E-NF
-B-AiEs 99,737 - 594,404 (338,268) 355,873
Change in equity for 2018: “E-\ENERED
Profit and total comprehensive income AEERFIRZEKSEE
for the year - - - 61,184 61,184
Placing of new shares REHRA 18,750 250,824 - - 269,574
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+=AH
S+-BMES 118,487 250,824 594,404 (277,084) 686,631
(b) Share capital (b) B
2018 2017
Number of Number of
shares shares
RHEEHE RRin &8
000 $°000 000 $’000
B F5 Fi Fi
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of $0.1 each FIREEO.1TH L @A 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHR:
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 1,184,865 118,487 997,365 99,737
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27 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) Share capital (continued)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is

as follows:

27 BREARBES®

®)

B A ()
RRABBRAEB 22T

Number
of issued Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
2 &1
RAEHE ZER B EE et
’000 $°000 $°000 $°000
TR Tr Tr FTr
At 1 January 2017, R=Z—tF—-HA—H"
31 December 2017 and “EZ—tE+-A=+-HEK
1 January 2018 —E-N\f¥-H—-H 997,365 99,737 - 99,737
Placing of new shares (Note (i) Bt & ¥ {5 (47 72(i)) 187,500 18,750 250,824 269,574
At 31 December 2018 R-—E-N\NE+=-A=+—8 1,184,865 118,487 250,824 369,311
Notes: /‘(/7 Eft"_ :

(i)  On 24 April 2018, the Company issued 187,500,000 new shares at a
price of $1.44 per share by way of placement to not less than six
individuals, who and whose ultimate beneficial owner are independent
third parties. The net proceeds from the subscription amounted to

approximately $269,574,000.

(i) The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
general meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(c¢) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Company’s Bye-laws and the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

(ii) Shares held for share award scheme

It represents the cost of shares of the Company

purchased under the Share Award Scheme.

(<)

@ RZZE—NFEMNA=+IEA  KXARMURTD
RAEBEAN (ERREZHBEARBILE=
F) BEZANIREERGRIRMD .44 BT
187,500,000 % ¥ A% 7 - REEIEFTSHKIBFE
%) /44269,574,0007T °

Gy TBERFEAERBBRTIREROKSE - IE
ERARARBRREAREG EHRHE—BREHOKR—
Z o AT ERUARRNFIBREEMSHZ
RS -

HESAMHEERAR

(i) REGZEE
%5 %R EER A B B AR R /A R4 Al
MBRE-NN\—FE(RBVEFTHR -

(i) BGREHBRE 2K
E AR B AR5 SR A BIAE B A A AR
BIRRAS o

2018 ¥} - EHRTHMEEERAF
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27 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

( iii) General reserve

General reserve is provided by the Group’s PRC
subsidiary at 10% of net profit after tax, based on the

relevant subsidiary’s PRC statutory financial statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up capital of

the relevant subsidiary.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the balance
of general reserve has been transferred to accumulated

losses upon deregistration of the PRC subsidiary.

(iv) Contributed surplus

(v)

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001, the
Company became the holding company of the Group.
The excess of the consolidated net assets represented by
the shares acquired over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange under the
reorganisation in 2001 was transferred to contributed
surplus. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
contributed surplus is available for distribution to

shareholders.

Other reserve

In 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with a
fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining 8% equity
interests in a subsidiary, KM-Vision Limited at a
consideration of approximately $1,211,000, resulting in
a premium of approximately $605,000. The additional
investment was accounted for as an equity transaction
and the premium was recognised directly in

shareholders’ equity.
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27 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. A PRC
subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31
December 2018. The cumulative amount of exchange
differences recognised in the exchange reserve relating to
this subsidiary was included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on deregistration in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 1(u).

(vii) Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to sharcholders of the Company
was approximately $317,320,000 (2017: approximately
$256,136,000). After the end of the reporting period,
the Directors did not propose a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: $Nil) (note 9(a)).

(d) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2018, the Group has an
outstanding promissory note amounting to $100,000,000
(2017: $Nil) issued to a financial institution. The Group had
bank deposits and cash balance as at 31 December 2018
amounting to approximately $245,737,000 (2017:
$250,305,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
sharcholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

27 BREARBES®

() RESHHEERAR (B
(vi) IMERHE
HNEE (B4 B IR R B B LA SN 7S B 7S R
REEWFMBERZ5 o —Hdh B
RARBE_ZT-—N\F+-_A=+—H
IEFERE8H o AR B M 1) Pr 8 & 5K
R &I B R RN E N AR E
REEZRF28E Bt AGtREHERZ
BRZtHE -

(vii) 2 8 7] 5 R
R-ZZBE-—NF+_A=+—8 "Dk
TARABRENBESLENR
317,320,0007T ( =& — 44 : £9256,136,000
TL) c REEIRE EETEEHEZE
T N\F+ZA=t+—HLEEERER
RERE(ZZE—tF: T x) (WiF
9a)) °

d) EXxEE
AEEEREANBRZAEBRIERSE R
WEBFBCENEEN - {ETE B ERE KK
FHREBNEREREER  UARESSE
BMANRE  EESBRRREHERRASEM
i & R -

RZE-NFR=ZF—tF+-A=+—0H"
AEETEFTMRITEE - R \F
TZA=tT—H AEECERSmMEIEET
HY A {8 1~ 7 H, Z 4% 5100,000,0007T (= Z —+
F o) o AKER=ZZT-—NFE+=A
T+t BEHNRTERRBLSESHROA
245,737,0007C ( —F — 4 : 250,305,0007T) °

AEEEGREMHEEARBRARS &
I AR S BCR B 3R T AT BE A S A
BEEEKTRRFNENRATROES
RREzHERGYE LRELERENE
EHEARRBIELRE -
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28 WRKE AR
) BEREEEEERESAA

28 Acquisition of subsidiaries

(a) Acquisition of TCM and Subject Companies

170

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23
January 2018 and circular dated 28 February 2018, Bison
Financial (Hong Kong) Limited (“Bison Financial”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement”) to purchase the entire issued share capital
in Target Capital Management Limited (“TCM”) for a
consideration of $270,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). Pursuant
to the Agreement, among others, the vendors of TCM shall
procure the respective shareholders of BTS Investment
Limited, BTY Investment Limited, NanTai Investment
Limited and Shangtai Asset Management Limited
(collectively, the “Subject Companies”), to which TCM is the
investment adviser of the Subject Company’s offshore private
equity funds, to sell the entire issued share capital of the
Subject Companies to Bison Financial or any subsidiaries of
the Company at a nominal consideration of $1 each on or

before the completion of the Agreement.

TCM held SEC license to carry out Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities and is principally engaged in
(i) external asset management and (ii) investment advisory
services to fund management businesses. The Subject
Companies are the fund managers/general partners of
offshore private equity funds. The directors of the Group are
of the view that the acquisitions will provide an opportunity
for the Group to diversify its scope of business to the financial
services sector with a view of broadening its income stream

and increasing sharcholders’ value.

On 14 December 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of TCM and Subject Companies.
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28 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Acquisition of TCM and Subject Companies

(continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of TCM
and Subject Companies and goodwill in respect of the

acquisition at the acquisition date were as follows:

28 WHEKI B A ") (@)
() WBEEEEEERESAT (/

b

)

RELETCERZSARZA#MNESREA
BENAAREBERRKEBHEERESEN
EENT

$7000

T

Property, plant and equipment M - WERERE 2,307
Intangible assets EREE 68,112
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R 13,294
Other receivables and deposits HEEWERRRIZ S 5,251
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEZEY 26,524
Accounts payable FETBR 3K (5,296)
Other payables and accruals HiEMNER RS (6,699)
Tax payables JEN R 18 (1,437)
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEE (10,500)
Total identifiable net assets acquired Fri B R B E R EARE 91,556
Goodwill (Note 13) BB (ME13) 178,444
270,000

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth and future market development of
the acquired business as well as the skills and specialised
knowledge of the work force of TCM and Subject Companies.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible

for tax purposes.

Satisfied by:

AEIEFARBRGARE WAL R XK
BEBARRTSERURRELEETERZER
AlZETHREREPIMBNNGE - BEAAE
FERR M A N AT AR ©

VARS8 B 2 A

Cash considerations HeERE 50,000
Promissory notes (Note 24) AR (K iF24) 220,000
270,000

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of WENBARIZIRERENDTAT

subsidiaries is as follows:

$’000
T
Cash considerations HeRE 270,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWBRERREEZEY (26,524)
Net cash flow e REFE 243,476

2018 ¥} - EHRTHMEEERAF
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28 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(@)

(®)

Acquisition of TCM and Subject Companies
(continued)

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
approximately $1,767,000 on legal fees, financial advisory
fee, valuation fee and due diligent costs. These costs have

been included in “other operating expenses”.

Accounts receivable of approximately $13,294,000 and other
receivables and deposits of approximately $5,251,000 were

expected to be collectible at the acquisition date.

Included in the profit for year ended 31 December 2018 was
a profit of approximately $14,740,000 attributable to the
business additionally generated by TCM and Subject
Companies. Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2018, consolidated revenue for the year would have been
approximately $478,998,000, and profit for the year would
have been approximately $23,260,000.

Acquisition of Ankai Tianjin & CSIB

On 14 December 2017, the Group acquired 100%
controlling stake in Ankai (Tianjin) Economic Information
Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Ankai Tianjin”), which held 100%
equity interest of China Sports Insurance Broker Co., Ltd.
(“CSIB”), for a total cash consideration of RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to HK$48,000,000), through certain structured
contracts. The principal activity of Ankai Tianjin is

investment holding while that of CSIB is insurance brokerage.

The Group exercises control over these subsidiaries and
enjoys all economic benefits of these subsidiaries through
structured contracts, notwithstanding the fact that it does not
hold direct equity interest in them, as it has power over the
financial and operating policies of these subsidiaries and
receives substantially all of the economic benefits from their

business activities through the structured contracts.

Taking control of Ankai Tianjin and its subsidiary will enable
the Group to strengthen its business development in the PRC

and broaden the sources of the Group’s revenue.
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28 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) 28 WEEKME AR ()

(b) Acquisition of Ankai Tianjin & CSIB (b) WBZERERFERE
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Ankai ZIERERFBRIROAIBANEEREED
Tianjin and CSIB and goodwill in respect of the acquisition at AREBEERREEBEHEANENEE Z5F
the acquisition date were as follows: BT
$’000
i
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R E 647
Accounts receivable JiE s BR 3R 1,772
Other receivables and deposits H i EUBR K R IE & 645
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBELEEY 7,500
Other payables and accruals HEMEMER RIS (2,784)
PRC tax payables FES AR BB I8 (550)
Total identifiable net assets acquired Pl B8 Al sk Bl & E B EAARE 7,230
Goodwill (Note 13) A (fit13) 40,770
48,000
Satisfied by: VAT BITEE A5
Cash consideration HERKE 48,000
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the future profitability EETEHRERAMBEERRRRATE DR
of the acquired business and the skills and specialised FERRE THEEREMAHMNFE -8
knowledge of the work force of CSIB. None of the goodwill ST E AT ERR P B R A E RS 5 HES K -
recognised is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of WEMNBARIZIREREMN DB T ¢
subsidiaries is as follows:
$’000
Tt
Cash consideration HeERE 48,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EHERSRBEEEY (7,500)
Net cash flow REREFE 40,500
The cash consideration for the acquisition is RMB40,000,000 W e IR & R (B B A K %40,000,0007T (8
(equivalent to approximately $48,000,000). No contingent £ 1 4948,000,0007T ) © AN 5 B 1 & 75 37 % 1
consideration was agreed between the Group and the FERARE o
vendors.
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28 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of Ankai Tianjin & CSIB (continued)
Accounts receivable of RMBI1,477,000 (equivalent to
approximately $1,772,000) and other receivables and
deposits of RMB538,000 (equivalent to approximately
$645,000) expected to be collectible at the acquisition date.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
RMB3,160,000 (equivalent to approximately $3,639,000) on
investment target referral fees, legal fees and due diligent
costs. These costs have been included in “other operating

expenses”.

Included in the profit for year ended 31 December 2017 was
a profit of approximately $77,000 attributable to the business
additionally generated by Ankai Tianjin and CSIB. The other
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 included
approximately $684,000 generated by Ankai Tianjin and
CSIB. Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017,
consolidated revenue for the year would have been
approximately $348,449,000, and loss for the year would
have been approximately $4,699,000.

29 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

28 WHEKI B A7) (@)
(b) WEBRBFERHERE(E)

JEULEBR s 49 A R %5 1,477,000 (R HE R4
1,772,0007T ) & H ) fE W BR 5k R iR & A R
538,0007C (48 55 1A #7645,0007T ) 78 HA AT 174 Uk B8
H B [m -

REEREEBRENE  ZMERIRE
& Rk AN E A YR RE A B B AR A R H3,160,0007T
(FEE R #I3,639,0007T) ° ZEMAEFTATE
o E B o

BINARERERFEREEBMEENR
477,000 Mt ABE=ZFT—tF+= A
=T HBLEFEMNRM BE_T—tF
TZA=T-HILEFENAEMKZBERIS
R R R BE AR R FIT EE A ) #9684,0007T © i IR
BEEN_ZT—+tF—A—BxK xFE
47 & U 25 B 49 55348,449,0007T * T AN 4F JE &S
B A4 54,699,0007T ©

29 MBEREEREMIANRAAEE

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and AEBNEEEBERGELEE RBHES
currency risks arising from the normal course of its business. FEREERR ZERBI NAANEETBEE
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management B R AMUER il <

policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk () FERR
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default FERBEXSHFRERBITEANRKM
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to EAKEELEMBERNRR AEE2H
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable TRACEBVELENEERRAR R
to accounts receivable. The Group’s exposure to credit risk BRXHBFRARERBEERBRBREMNR
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited because the 7

counterparties are banks for which the Group considers to

have low credit risk.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values of 29 BRREERERIENAAEER®)

financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) () FEERR(E)

Accounts receivable (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 12% (2017:
7%) and 34% (2017: 26%) of the total accounts receivable
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five

largcst customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Accounts receivable are due within 90 days from the date of
billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from

customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts receivable
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between

the Group’s different customer bases.

B AR (58)

REEAZNEERREFEZXZEPEAR
B(MIERECEEMETEREAR) L
Et AL EAZENRTFHNEANRR - 8l
EFEEERBREAER R|EHR - B

R R % (ZF—EF - 7%)&34%(:
T—+F 26%) REERBEAEEZATP &
AREFZERN -

AEEYHMBEERBEBETEREENTP
ETEBEENE ZSHENERERT
PRSI Mg RRENIMEN  LE
BEPUREFEEMBEBERENTEEER
£t o FEUBRTR B 3 F B Hi#ooX A F 8 - A
SE—RIERNEFFHEIERR -

AEEREARBEFEN 2 BHREEER
E’]%%E”rzﬁ‘éﬂ&ﬁﬁ X BEEE - B EM
BREEEETHE HRAEEBRENEE
BRI AR FRZF D BBERERNTREE
B ERERENERRETSE X
RAEETNREFEHR  HE—FRS -

2018 ¥} - EHRTHMEEERAF
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(a) Credit risk (continued)

Accounts receivable (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

29 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s

exposure to credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivable as at

() FEERR(E)
FER IR (1)

N\

29 MEEREEREMIANA

REE @)

TREIR-_F-NF+-_A=T—HAKKE
1 iy 10 B = 5 R\ e 0 3B e W B R O TR

31 December 2018: FEBR:
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
REEEE AR A E BERE
% $°000 $°000
Bk Fr Fr
Neither past due nor impaired 7 4% 780 B 5 L (B 0.05% 75,750 (36)
Within one month past due mEAOR—EA 0.14% 38,009 (53)
Over one month but within BEBBE—EAABLARRES
two months past due 0.31% 12,456 (38)
Over two months but within BB EMEABLRN=1EA"
three months past due 0.90% 6,759 (61)
Over three months but within BHBR=EAEIR—F
one year past due 4.49% 8,549 (384)
Over one year past due HEAFRE — & 86.61% 8,006 (6,934)
149,529 (7,506)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over

the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect

differences between economic conditions during the period

over which the historic data has been collected, current

conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over

the expected lives of the receivables.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see
note 1(j)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018). At
31 December 2017, accounts receivable of $9,192,000 were
determined to be impaired. The aging analysis of accounts
receivable that were not considered to be impaired was as

follows:

HEEREEREHMITA

KA REE G

DHF

\
1)

() FEERR(E)

BEEBEERFIRE T WL EBEEH
RZZE—NF—A—H8 RESBEERE
BEEERE %Mﬁ%ﬁwﬁﬁm?mm>m
ARZZE—N\F—A—BAKEXK) °
T—tF+ZA=+—8" ﬁEH&ZEﬁ%@,mz,ooo
TLETE BIRE o W AR AR E R EUER X
ZERBROTIAT

At 31 December

2017

RZE—+t%F

+=-—A=+—-H

$’000

FT

Neither past due nor impaired EIEE@HH R E 60,561
Within one month past due wmE LR —(EA 12,858
Over one month but within two months past due @Hﬂh —ERBLRWEA 7,513
Over two months but within three months past due BEHBMERAB LR =MA 4,547
Over three months but within one year past due mHEBR=@MAELR—F 6,033
Over one year past due @gﬂﬁ@_ ¢ 225
91,737

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been no
significant change in credit quality and the balances were still

considered fully recoverable.

3 8 B SR E R R U IR D B 5 R S I
BIERCHENEL AR -

BB BB RIBE R YRR T EE T B A
BEARIFEECHENBILIEFEH - RIE
BELR EEEMREHRZEAEBNEE
BRI AREBEERNE - AZSHERDKR
RAUZERE - MBERZESESKELRE
B

2018 ¥} - EHRTHMEEERAF

~



178

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHERIN - BRBEHHE)

29 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of

accounts receivable during the year is as follows:

() FEERR(E)

29 BBEREERESMIAND

VAN
/_\JL,

&

=3

=RE))

FRARKERZERBRERE <ZHMT :

2018 2017
$°000 $’000
Tr T
At 1 January n—A—H 9,192 6,334
Reversal of expected credit loss on accounts RS HRNE BN ISR S D
receivable upon initial adoption of HKFRS 9 o8k 1% B E FE N BR TR
TEEIfE BB (1,493) =
7,699 6,334
(Reversal of provision)/provision for ERZNREER
impairment loss recognised (B BRm), Bt (185) 2,858
Uncollectible amounts written off EHEA TR W B4 %E (8) —
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 7,506 9,192

(b) Liquidity risk
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s Board of Directors when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure

that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate

(b) RBEZERE

committed lines of funding from major financial institutions =5 o

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term.

The Company also monitors closely the cash flows of its
subsidiaries. Generally, the Company’s subsidiaries are
required to obtain the Company’s approval for activities such

as investment of surplus cash, raising of loans and settlement

of suppliers’ invoices beyond certain limits.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and BH:

the carliest date the Group can be required to pay.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values of

financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

2018

29 BIBEREEREMIAENAR

(b) RBESRER(E)

2017

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BORBRRERL aOAERAERE
Within ~ More than  More than Within -~ More than ~ More than
Iyear Iyearbut 2 year but Carrying Iyear  Iyearbut 2 year but Carrying
oron lessthan less than amount or on less than less than amount
demand 2 years 5 years Total  at31 Dec demand 2 years 5 years Total  at 31 Dec
BA-£ BERE Rt=A BE—F BERE R+=A
—ERE BHR BHR =t-B A% Bom EON =t-H
RERK mE k3 &t WEREE AR e ils #  wEkEE
$000 $2000 $°000 $2000 $2000 $7000 $°000 $7000 $7000 $7000
Tr Tr T i T T T i T T
Accounts payable ERER 4,043 - - 4,083 4,043 29 = - 29 29
Other payables and accruals £ fts & &3t [z
(excluding contract EHER
liabilities) (RFrENEE) 53,775 - - 53,775 53,775 44,306 = - 44306 44306
Provision for onerous  FEANERE
contracts - - - - - 545 - - 545 545
Promissory notes EHEE 109,000 - - 109,000 100,000 - - - - -
Finance lease liabilites ~ HAEEAE 3,739 3,146 m 7,159 6,635 183 183 457 823 741
170,557 3,146 74 173,977 164,453 45,063 183 457 45,703 45,621

(c) Interest rate risk

It is the Group’s policy to monitor market conditions closely

and devise suitable strategies against interest rate risk. The

Group regularly reviews its strategy on interest rate risk

management in the light of the prevailing market condition.

(c) FIERR
REENBERTINEET SN - A RE
EIEHFERBOEERE AEEREE
ATEY TS AR - T8 B o L ) 3 b o 3 5K

B o

2018 3R -

EREREEERAR
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29 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities at the end

of the reporting period.

29 BHEREERESMIENAAEER )

(c) F=ERER(E)
() FIE#E

TERANAREERBREMROGFBEE
REEOF R

2018 2017
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BERFRNE ERFER X
% $°000 % $’000
Bk T At T
Fixed rate liabilities: EEFREE :
Finance lease liabilities mEHEAE 8.0 6,635 4.8 741
Promissory notes A B 9.0 100,000 = =
106,635 741
Fixed rate assets: BEEFEEE :
Bank deposits (including SITFER
pledged deposits) (BEEERER) 1.3 111,081 1.5 218,479
Other receivables and deposits £ s & U BR 2 & 3% & 12.0 30,000 - -
Loan receivable ek &% 8.0 25,080 8.0 26,400
166,161 244 879
Variable rate assets: EHAREE :
Cash at bank SRITR S 0.1 184,025 0.3 67,521
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29 BEEREERSHT WA AMEE

A

29 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(c) F=mEE (&)
(i) BBEZH

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(1'1') Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax and
decreased/increased accumulated losses by
approximately §1,791,000 (2017: approximately
$547,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and accumulated
losses) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit after
tax (and accumulated losses) is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for
2017.

RZTE—NFE+—A=+—8 EHt#
RER EF T ER00EES  BEAE
HMmBSRFIE RNEENRTER
#4800, D & RETE B R 21
B0 #91,791,0007C (= F — £ 4F ¢ 49547,000
JL) °

LSRR DT BN R R A R RS
RAEREHECAREH A EAKE
FHeRTA (SAEERREHRE
HARBEMNXRAR) - BIAEENEK
BEBH (R RETER) % H 3 a0 B &
B BERAEERRERRAFEZD
MEFTESCHMTAMELANRESRE
MERER BAEEKBREREN (KR
BB NEE  eUMREEHETE
WARMFRCZEBIEH T - DMELE
BT FRAMMAER -
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29 Financial risk management and fair values of 29 BHEREERESMIENAAEER )

financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (@) EWEE
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end TREFIIASE HERIA R A e & #E LASN
of the reporting period to currency risk arising from BE¥ABEMNIENEERBEMNRSEHR
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency PR AR R & 1 E g -
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.
Exposure to foreign currencies SN LB
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ZEMETE)
2018 2017
usp RMB EUR SGD Uusb RMB EUR SGD
ESH ARH Brn  #HmKn e AR% Br AT
$°000. $°000 $°000. $°000 §°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
r i r i T T T i
Pledged bank deposits EERETER 30,183 - - - 31,183 = = =
Bank deposits and cash BIEREES 7,026 43 1,286 112 93,139 25,131 = -
Accounts receivable [AlEER 1,200 - 19,988 364 = = = =
Other receivables HihERERH R
and deposits 889 - - - - - - -
Non-current prepayment 37 8) 7 1 38 3,034 - - - _ _ _ _
Accounts payable ERER (1,030) - (1,878) (310) = = = =
Other payables and accruals E{th FE{f 8 5% ) FE &1 78 - - (2,17) - = = = =

41,302 8 16,679 166 124322 25,131 - -
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29 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
The following table indicates how changes in foreign
currencies against Hong Kong dollar at the end of the
reporting period would have affected the Group’s results for

the year and other components of equity.

9 BIEMEEREMIANAAEBE G

il

(@) E¥WER(E)
TRETRBEEHARIELBEEHH AL
BEREERE R EMEREKTONTZE -

2018 2017
Increase/
(decrease) Decrease/
in profit for (increase)
Increase/ the year and Increase/ in loss for
(decrease) decrease/ (decrease) the year
in foreign (increase) in in foreign and
exchange accumulated exchange  accumulated
rate losses rate losses
REEER
24, (R2) REEZ
R REG B8 N 25t
Exigm  BERDS S EXEZNS BERDS
(R2) (48 m) R ) (4% n)
$°000 $°000
T T
Renminbi AR 3% 1 3% 5,166
)% (1) (3)% (5,166)
Euro B 3% 492 3% —
(3)% (492) (3)% -
Singapore Dollar i ot 3% 4 3% -
(3)% “4) (3)% -
2018 £k - HAERMEEFRLR
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29 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rate had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the Group
which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the linked rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollar against other currencies.
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ results after tax and equity measured in their
respective functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollar at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes. The analysis has been

performed on the same basis as for 2017.

Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take place
either through the People’s Bank of China or other

institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values of 29 BRBREERERIENAAEE ¢
financial instruments (continued)

A

(e) Fair value measurement () RAMBETE
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BAZBEIGNEHBEEREE

value
Fair value hierarchy R EEER
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s TRIEBEEVBERELNERELAAE
financial instruments measured at the end of the EHEFRATH=FEALBEZSH 7
reporting pcriod on a recurring basis, catcgoriscd into RAEB SR T ARNBEHRIRLES M
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS HAHEN AL EE Do BESER
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair B2 A )R 2 B A R T BT A B
value measurement is classified is determined with ARt EBHETIT

reference to the observability and significance of the

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

*  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only . B mh(E RS — R A
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active BCEERSEXeERSEAR
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the SERTIBMRE (RSB HEY
measurement date NP (EE -

¢ Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level . BomEE FRE - RE A
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Bl 5 — R g A 5 8 A
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable i AT FREE 0] EREA
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which HIES BN S EE -~
market data are not available. A E MmO BT IS BIE K8 A

HUg o

¢ Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using . BSREE: PEEETAERE

significant unobservable inputs. ABUESTEM AR EE -

Fair value at

31 December Fair value measurements as at
2018 31 December 2018 categorised into
R=ZZF-—N\F
+=A
=t+—H#H R=ZZB-NF+=ZB=+—HH
DAREE DAEBEFESESR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
-8R et} B=R
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T
Recurring fair value measurements REM QA AEETE
Assets: BE -
Financial assets at fair value through BRAREBEGAEZR
profit or loss: MEMEE :
— Other financial assets —Hit e mEE 29,650 29,650 - -
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29 Financial risk management and fair values of

financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

)

Financial assets and liabilities measured atfair

value (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the

end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried

at other than fair value

All financial instruments carried at amortised cost are
carried at amounts not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. Given
these terms it is not meaningful to disclose their fair

values.

30 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

At 31 December 2018, the Group had the following capital

commitments in relation to the purchase of property, plant

and

equipment and investment in subsidiaries not provided

for in the financial statements:

29 BHEREERESMIENAAEER )

() DABEFEGE)
() BAAEBEIKHEHBEERSE (F)

EE-N\F+ZA=+—HIEE -
F-REE R zELEEFMER TR
BEBEAREBEHE=FR -AEEHRR/R
BEMREAABESREALRERE
HERER -

(i) LHZEALEBEIENEHEEREE
HAREE
FTERBHEKATIRN /M T AEER
T2 NFRZE—EFTZA=1+—
BRAARBEHMESAZE -ERHSE
B BEAEARBENERTK

30 ARIE

(a) BEREE
RZZB—NFE+_A=+—8 AE@EILX
RUBRRELBENEBREENE  BE
HERMEARIRENERAENT

2018 2017
$°000 $°000
T Fr

Contracted for EREITENE
Property, plant and equipment mE  MENFZE 14,993 1,960
Investment in subsidiaries B AFIRE 7,334 11,524
22,327 13,484

Bison Finance Group Limited * Annual Report 2018



30 Commitments (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

()

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of property and equipment are payable as follows:

30 A
(b) EEHEERE

RZEBE-—NFE+ZA=+—B FT5ERE
BERMERRBOTAZHECEHERMNT
ARZEHESBEMOT -

2018 2017

$°000 $’000

Tr T

Within 1 year —ER 10,445 5,028
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFRA 5,512 1,829
15,957 6,857

The Group leases property and equipment under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of 1 to 5 years,
with an option to renew the leases when all terms are
renegotiated. The leases do not include any contingent

rentals.

Other commitments

Under certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media sales
agency and management business on selected bus shelters, (ii)
solicit advertising business in respect of the interior and
exterior panels of buses operated by The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) and Long Win Bus
Company Limited (“Long Win”), and (iii) solicit advertising
business on billboards and other advertising spaces owned by
independent third parties, the Group has committed to pay
licence fees or royalty fees at a pre-determined percentage of
the net advertising rental received, subject to a guaranteed
minimum amount, as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. Such
licences will expire in periods ranging from 2018 to 2022.
The future minimum guaranteed licence fees and royalty fees

are payable as follows:

(©)

AEBERBLEHEERMERRE -HE
NERP—ERF  WARENER 2B
REEL - HETBREEMEIAES -

H At & iE
RZT—N\FR=ZT—tF+=A=+—8 "
BEALSBEERE ToRAGERE T RESIR
HERFHERBREEES R NEEL
(—h==2)BRAFRITAE]D) REEE+TE
BRAR([BEE]) T EELtMERA RS
HONBESAEITRE S EB R B L E =
FTHEANESRREMESETES ¥R
MBRISHE  NEECRBRIEERES
e FEMNELEETA ) LANFTERS
ME HAZHERRBESENR - ZEHF
RN TS —N\GFE_ZT-_—_FHEER °
ERRREFERBFTERIEMNENAT

2018 2017

$°000 $’000

Tr T

Within 1 year — &R 191,720 180,432
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFER 212,047 400,767
403,767 581,199

2018 ¥} - EHRTHMEEERAF
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30 Commitments (continued)

(<)

Other commitments (continued)
The above licences typically run for an initial period of 32 to
72 months, and certain of the licences contain an option to

renew the licence when all terms are renegotiated.

31 Share award and share option scheme

(@)

(b)

Share Award scheme

On 24 August 2018, a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the Board of
Directors of the Company under which shares of the
Company may be awarded to selected participants which
include employees, directors (including executive and non-
executive directors), officers, agents or consultants of the
Group (the “Selected Participants”). Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the Share Award Scheme will remain
valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the adoption date. Details of the Share Award Scheme have
been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 24

August 2018.

During the year, the Company purchased an aggregate of
24,644,000 shares of the Company from the market through
its trustee amounting to approximately $29,498,000. No
share was awarded to the Selected Participants under the
Share Award Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2018. The acquired shares were recognised and accumulated
in equity under the heading of “Shares held for share award

scheme”.

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) of the
Company was approved and adopted by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 8 June 2018. The Company might grant options to
the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of

the Share Option Scheme on 8 June 2018.

No share options had been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption up to 31 December 2018.
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32 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the plan
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to the MPF

Scheme vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participated in employee pension schemes organised by the local
governments under which the Company’s subsidiaries were

governed. Details of the schemes of the Group are as follows:

2 EER

R1E R

REBRBEESCGEH M RE S ENEH) BILE
ERECEBEODMBFNESER IAGEAES
eI ((REREE]D - aBesT8EEHEUATR
RSl - BB EEHETE - REBBESEE
EXrEHEESHARMGEEEESNES GRHK
As%B % - & A A AU AR _ERR %30,0007T °
RIRBETEIERTANREE -

RETFBEER  AEE2EMAREARAMER
AN TR ERNEERASE - AKRED
HEIFEBIT

Administrator Beneficiary Contribution rate
BEEA FHA =&
2018 2017
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Centre Employees 19% 20%
GtRmHERBESEEF L) =321
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33 Material related party transactions 33

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in

these financial statements, the Group has the following related

party transactions during the year:

EREATHNEARRS

BRAF B REREMEDARENR Z KA -
AEBERFAEATAERBEALNRS :

Expenses/(income)
BA,/(lA)
2018 2017
Note $°000 $’000
B E Fr T
Licence fee and service fees for conducting BELERERETBRREE
BUS-TV business ) - 10,042
Licence and royalty fees paid for the right HEHEE HIRE=EEER
to sell advertising space on bus shelters YT AREFRENE (ii) - 21,076
Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising B T B AP R s L 1T
business at advertising space on bus interiors BEERBOENNETE (iii) - 18,927
Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising RETEGINLEEMET
business at advertising space on bus exteriors S EBMRERN SR E (iv) - 86,552
Management fee and sales rebate EEEREERN (v) - 9,592
Service fee paid for logistic function MEORBIAREE (vi) - 245
Mobile data subscription fees REHERFE (vii) - 681
Key management personnel remuneration TEEBEAEME (viii) 13,630 11,012
Consideration received from disposal of audio HeEEZHEDWRE
and visual equipment (ix) - (2,000)
Shortfall of guaranteed rental REBEBRESHOTBZE (x) - (4,969)
Compensation for capital investment BARGEN®EE (xi) - (7,500)

Notes:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Licence fee and service fees were paid to a subsidiary of Transport
International Holdings Limited (“TIH”) for conducting BUS-TV advertising
business on buses operated by KMB and fitted with the BUS-TV broadcasting
system. TIH was the ultimate controlling party of the Group until 27
October 2017 when TIH disposed of approximately 73.01% of the entire
issued share capital of the Group to Bliss Chance Global Limited.

Licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising spaces on certain

bus shelters owned by a subsidiary of TIH.

Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for soliciting advertising business
in respect of the interior panels and other interior spaces inside the

compartments of buses operated by KMB.

Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for marketing, displaying and
maintaining advertisements at the exterior panels of the bodies of buses
operated by KMB.
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33 Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

33 EEEATHEARR
st -

///é;:\
\Rg)

(&)

Management fee amounting to approximately $10,207,000 and write back of v) $ £F !J—] kE ﬁ Eﬁ BN \ii =5 fi&fﬁ pice) H&i% 20
over-provision of sales rebate amounting to approximately $615,000 were 1= =5 R BRAR([ES =B ) XRNEREL
paid to JCDecaux Cityscape Limited (“JCDecaux Cityscape”), a fellow 10,207,0007T M2 4 % o] 47 7B 58 B 15 & [o 8¢ @ EERS)
subsidiary of a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, 615,0007T * A Al R AR A B A B JE R AR R
for the provision of management and agency services in relation to bus HREZWMBAR -REE_-Z — t GEqF = ﬂ
shelters during the year ended 31 December 2017. JCDecaux Cityscape =+t HIEE RAXEBAR =T — /\ E N A
ceased to be a related party of the Group when the Group acquired all the _‘f"t H E Eﬂy\%l—lﬁlgﬁ}aﬁﬁ 3’5? Hﬂg = o ?f =)
non-controlling interest from the previous sharcholder on 27 June 2018. BETEANEBBEAL -
The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Cityscape for the logistic function (vi) AEBFRESEENAEFBREREEHEE Lt RES
provided to the Group in relation to the bus shelters under the media sales HEEEEKBETHNRIBRBRESRSE 32 ~F R
business. BE-
Mobile data subscription fees were paid to a subsidiary of a substantial (vii) TEHIBERAEPERER NI EIEERE RS §Z %
shareholder of TIH for mobile data transmission services. iﬁﬁj{ = %i 0] MTE NEGILED] ;gf A e
(viii) Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts paid to the (viii) TEETBAENEE (B2 Bt sE7pT B 5B §Z i F R
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid N EENRBELARGSIEESINTFE TES
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: HEEEMKE)MT :
2018 2017
$°000 $’000
T T
Short-term employee benefits RHEE R 13,539 10,926
Post-employment benefits BEER 2R A 91 86
13,630 11,012
Consideration was received from disposal of audio and visual equipment from (ix) REFBHOM B QB E TSR BRI NRE
a subsidiary of TIH.
Shortfall of guaranteed rental was received from JCDecaux Cityscape in x) W SESREEERHREZRMEBHEERS
connection with the provision of media sales services for transit vehicle WEBRBHAEHNTEE -
shelters.
Compensation was paid to JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the capital (xi) HETRE=ESEHANERAREAINTES
investment of bus shelter panels. RIEEE -
Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions (xii) BHBER S EmRAERNL

(xii)

Prior to 27 October 2017, the related party transactions in respect of licence
fees and rental expenses payable to subsidiaries of TIH and management fee
payable to JCDecaux Cityscape above constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of service fee paid for logistic
function payable to JCDecaux Cityscape and the mobile data subscription
fees payable to a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the ultimate
holding company for the year ended 31 December 2017 constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, they were exempt from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

R-ZB—tHF+A-++HA BEAENTHA
MEBARNEFEREEER  URENTES
RENEEENEHREALIIBERBEIZK
HEMER S (EHELLTHRAETTAZ) -

REBE-_Z—+&E+-_B=+—RHIFEE HH#
%&%%%EH%%%EWW%%%&%H%%
BRERAREIERENHMBRAANRBEERF
E%Wﬁ MERS (EER EMARAE+TA
) o RM ZEXHERGBET EMBAUE
THAZEMFERT -
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34 Immediate and ultimate C()ntr()lling parties

35

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to
be Bliss Chance Global Limited and Bison Capital Financial

Holdings Limited respectively. Bliss Chance Global Limited and

Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited are incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands. Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited

does not produce financial statements available for public use.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs a
review to identify any indication that the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets may be impaired,
and test annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy (see
note 1(j)).

Such indications include physical damage of a property, plant
and equipment and a decrease in the revenue derived from an
intangible asset or property, plant and equipment. In
considering the impairment losses that may be required for
the property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and
goodwill of the Group, their recoverable amounts need to be
determined. The recoverable amount of an intangible asset or
property, plant and equipment and assets or CGU to which
the goodwill has been allocated is based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on reasonable assumptions that represent management’s
best estimate of the range of economic benefits from the asset

over its remaining useful life.

Impairment of accounts receivable and other
receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for accounts
receivable by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of
estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the end of
reporting period. Where the estimation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of accounts receivable and thus the impairment loss

in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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35 ACC()unting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(<)

(d)

(e)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Company
reviews annually the useful life of an asset. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant

changes from previous estimates.

Contractual arrangements

Certain subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of insurance
brokerage services, which falls under the scope of “Catalogue
of Restricted Foreign Investment Industries” and foreign

investors are prohibited to invest in such business.

The Group exercises control over these subsidiaries and
enjoys all economic benefits of these subsidiaries through

structured contracts.

The Group considers that it controls these subsidiaries,
notwithstanding the fact that it does not hold direct equity
interest in them, as it has power over the financial and
operating policies of these subsidiaries and receives
substantially all of the economic benefits from their business
activities through the structured contracts. Accordingly, they

have been accounted for as subsidiaries during the year.

Purchase price allocation

For the business combinations undertaken by the Group, the
Group allocates the costs of the acquisition to the assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their estimated
fair value on the date of acquisition. This process is
commonly referred to as the purchase price allocation. The
Group is required to determine the fair value of any
identifiable intangible assets acquired. The determination of
the fair value of the intangible assets acquired involves certain
judgement and estimates. These judgements can include, but
are not limited to, the cash flows that the intangible assets are

expected to generate in the future.

A change in the amount allocated to identifiable intangible
assets would have an offsetting effect on the amount of
goodwill recognised from the acquisition and would change
the amount of amortisation expense recognised related to

those identifiable intangible assets.

35
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36 Company-level statement of financial position

36 2 E) BT AR R 3R

2018 2017
Note $°000 $’000
Bt 3 T T
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ATIRE 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW KT B A 7 308 - 103,094
62,835 165,929
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU KT B A B R IE 480,400 372,064
Other receivables and deposits BEmERERRES 37,847 476
Pledged bank deposits BB ITER 97,248 98,248
Bank deposits and cash BOIFZIRES 114,271 119,647
729,766 590,435
Current liabilities RBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST I B A R I8 - 273,849
Promissory notes AHER 100,000 -
Other payables and accruals BEMENERRETER 5,970 6,265
105,970 280,114
Net current assets REBEESHE 623,796 310,321
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRAHERE 686,631 476,250
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHT B A7) FRIE - 120,377
NET ASSETS EEEE 686,631 355,873
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RAREES 27(a)
Share capital A% 7N 118,487 99,737
Reserves s 568,144 256,136
TOTAL EQUITY ExEE 686,631 355,873

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

March 2019.

SUN Lei
BEZ
Executive Director

HITEE
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37 N()n—adjustillg events after the rep()rting

period

(a) After the end of the reporting period, the Directors did not

propose a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note

9(a).

(b) On 22 February 2019, Premier Future Limited (“Premier
Future”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and BeiTai
Investment Limited (the “General Partner”), an independent
third party, entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription agreement”), pursuant to which Premier Future
has applied to subscribe for limited partner interests in BeiTai

Investment LP (the “Investment Fund”), with a capital

commitment of $93,000,000.

In connection with the Subscription Agreement, on 22
February 2019, the General Partner, Premier Future and the
other limited partners also entered into a limited partnership

agreement in relation to, among other things, the operation

and management of the Investment Fund.

Details of the transaction have been disclosed in the

Company’s announcement dated 22 February 2019.

37 A

(@)

(b)

BREHREE

EERHmERRETEZRBERABE

= &
— BRI o) 5 -

—NWE_A=-+=-B KEEHEE
B B /A &Premier Future Limited ([ Premier
Future | ) 238 37 28 = 77 BeiTai Investment Limited
(EBEBADL—H um,ﬁ%% : ([ R
1) o 3B o Premier Future[d) B 285 © BeiTai
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A H & 93,000,0007T °
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38 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

38 BEEMEREBZ_ZE—N\F+=H

=t - BLEFEERERNET - HE
ARBEAURERNTE

BEAMBHRRTIZAY FESHAMAGER
HMEERBE—_T—\E+_A=T—HLFE
ARERNIERT - FERI R 2B MAMBHRE
WERRZEER]  MEAREE  BRATH
SHRAKEEBNERT  HERRERE -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RTHRHRZ
BREANSTHBENR

HKEFRS 16, Leases
(BEMBREEAE 165 [HE

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

(BR (RBRVBHRERBEZESRE))E35  [EHNEEN T BT

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
T RFET+FRABREBMBREER 2 FESGE

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures

BEGRERFE R [REELAIRE EEEZ R E )

1 January 2019
—E-hF—H—H

1 January 2019
—E-hF—H—H

1 January 2019
—E-NF—H—H

1 January 2019
—E-hEF—H—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new standards which may
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
While the assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS
16, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group, and further impacts
may be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ending 30
June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standards are

initially applied in that financial report.
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38 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2018 (continued)

HKEFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(r), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the

lease.

HKEFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
HKERS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic
basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to

be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

The Group expects HKFRS 16 will primarily affect certain leases
that are currently classified as operating leases which the suppliers
have no substantive substitution right. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets
and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period of
the lease. The Group will need to perform a more detailed
analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities
arising from operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS
16, after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated
between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of

discounting.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FHBEEE

For the years ended 31 December
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEF T BEF T BEF T BEF T
RESULTS S
Revenue TN 414,008 348,449 407,511 411,946 459,462
Other revenue and E A A &
other net income W F 58 8,439 25,033 7,185 17,975 15,756
Total revenue LON -] 422,447 373,482 414,696 429,921 475,218
Profit/ (loss) from operations e A (EE) 18,903 (15,210) (4,734) (41,137) 48,087
Finance costs B A Al AN (236) -~ — -~
Gain on disposal of other HEE M E R
financial assets & E W - — — 36,603
Reversal of impairment loss H b fE UK BR BORE
on other receivables EiERE 3,600 - - -
Impairment loss on property, 9@% N Jﬁzﬁ%&ﬁ%fﬁ
plant and equipment WEEE = (37) (22,910) - -
Reversal of provision onerous  [E18 4 49 #
contracts, net ¥ o] F 58 545 13,910 (14,455) - —
Profit/ (loss) before BREATRF
taxation (B8 22,812 (1,337) (42,099) (41,137) 84,690
Income tax FRiEH (6,555) (6,190) (25) (4,892) (8,008)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF(BAE) 16,257 (7,527) (42,124) (46,029) 76,682
Attributable to: FEMEMN -
Equity sharcholders of the NAEIREE
Company 16,257 (6,577) (45,260) (47,913) 70,587
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE S - (950) 3,136 1,884 6,095
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF(BE) 16,257 (7,527) (42,124) (46,029) 76,682
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At 31 December

R+=—A=+—~H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT BEF T BEF T BEF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &EREGE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - B 5 M &% 40,751 15,491 13,629 32,125 39,255
Intangible assets WA E 68,525 - - 189 2,441
Goodwill o 217,176 40,770 . . .
Non-current prepayments FEFR B TR I
and deposits Nik& 54,843 3,218 1,523 14,502 7,444
Deferred tax assets ELEFRIEEE 4,252 7,042 10,393 4,775 4,311
Net current assets mEEEFEE 350,393 428,964 475,427 494,199 623,316
Total assets less current liabilities & E BB R AH B E 735,940 495,485 500,972 545,790 676,767
Non-current finance lease R EEERE
liabilities (3,289) (590) - — —
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIE A& (10,557) (194) (138) (217) (125)
Net Assets EETE 722,094 494,701 500,834 545,573 676,642
Capital and reserves BEAREHES
Share capital A& K 118,487 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves HiEe 603,607 386,694 391,877 438,152 566,305
Total equity attributable to equity 7N/ 7] f% 3 &
sharcholders of the Company AT 722,094 486,431 491,614 537,889 666,042
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR RE S - 8,270 9,220 7,684 10,600
Total Equity EHAEE 722,094 494,701 500,834 545,573 676,642
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Board of Directors E5 &

Dr. MA Weihua® (Chairman)
BRERL (E)

Mr. XU Peixin®

MR L

Mr. SUN Lei" (Chief Executive Officer)
REEEL (TTHAEZ)

Mr. ZHU Dong" (Chief Financial Officer)
KREEE (BREHMKEE)

Dr. QI Daqing*

R B L+

Mr. CHEN Yigong*

BRIR T 554+

Mr. FENG Zhonghua*

IR EE S A

* Executive Director 3] ffﬁ%
# Non-Executive Director ZFH7TE FH

* Independent Non-Executive Director 1)'5_‘_25/-:7%)? fff%

Company Secretary DRWE
Ms. Christine MAK Lai Hung

BB LL

Registrars REZME

Hong Kong Ede:d

CORPORATE DIRECTORY

Annual General Meeting BRRBFEARE

Date & Time ;18 June 2019 at 10:30 a.m.
Venue : Novotel Century Hong Kong
Plaza 4, Lower Lobby
238 Jaffe Road Wanchai
Hong Kong

A8 R ] C ZE-AFRATAR
EFTE=15

it B BB A EEE2385R
BB B LBE
REBESRERE

Closure of Register of Members

EEREROBFEEFE

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at

the Annual General Meeting:

13 June 2019 to 18 June 2019 (both dates inclusive)

AETRERLERRBAFRASYRG LERENEF

—E-AERNAT=ZRAEZZE-AENA+/N\H
(BEEBEMAH)

Registered Office TMREER

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEEPRBLFELERAA
BEEHE2RERERI83

ARFRO17 E1712-1716 E

Principal Place of Business FTEEEI

Rooms 4105-06, 41/F, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone  : (852) 2165 3000
Facsimile ¢ (852) 2165 3001
Bermuda BHEZ BB BT 2FKERI1835
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited A FIF D41 184105062
The Belvedere Building, 69 Pitts Bay Road BEE 1 (852) 2165 3000
Pembroke HMO0S BE : (852) 2165 3001
Bermuda http://www.bison.com.hk/
Auditors B EHH
KPMG
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong
E SR EAT

BFRTRETBIORAFAESE
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